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June 28, 2013

Mr. Christopher Grobbel

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Trading and Markets
Securities and Exchange Commission

100 F Street, NE

Washington, DC 20549

Dear Mr. Grobbel:
Enclosed please find an amendment to the EDGA Exchange, Inc. (“EDGA” or the

“Exchange”) Form 1 for registration as a national securities exchange. Pursuant to Rule 6a-2 of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“the Act”), the Exchange is filing the following:

e Form 1 Execution Page
e Annual Amendment to Form 1 including Exhibits D, I, J, K, M and N
Tri-Annual Amendment to Form 1 including Exhibits A, B and C

The Exhibits supplement materials filed in connection with EDGA’s Form 1 application
for exchange registration, which the Securities and Exchange Commission approved in March

2010," and its Form 1 update filed on April 19, 2013.

Very truly yours,

Wy fortet

Jeffrey Rosenstrock, Esq.
General Counsel

Enclosures: Original and two (2) copies of the above amendments to the Exchange’s Form 1

cc: Freedom of Information Act Officer (U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission)

! See Securities Exchange Act Release No. 61698, 74 FR 13151 (March 18, 2010).

Direct Edge, 545 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, NJ 07310 Tel 201.942.8228 Fax 201.604.7004 www.directedge.com
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June 28, 2013

Mr. Christopher Grobbel

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Trading and Markets
Securities and Exchange Commission

100 F Street, NE

Washington, DC 20549

Re: FOIA CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST

Dear Mr. Grobbel:

Pursuant to 17 C.F.R Section 200.83, EDGA Exchange, Inc. (the “Exchange™) requests
confidential treatment for the enclosed documents and all the information contained therein.

This confidential treatment request is based upon, among other things, exemptions 4, 7
and 8 of the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. 552(b)(4). The enclosed documents contain
or relate to: privileged and confidential trade secrets and commercial and financial information
relating to the Exchanges and other persons; information relating to techniques and procedures
for law enforcement investigations and prosecutions; and examination, operating or condition
reports prepared by the Exchanges which, as registered national securities exchanges, are
responsible for the regulation and supervision of financial institutions. The Exchanges further
submit that, to the extent the information provided relates to individuals, disclosure could affect
those individuals® rights under the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. 552a.

Please contact me at (201) 942-8295 upon receipt of any requests for copies of the any of
the enclosed documents, pursuant to 17 C.F.R. Section 200.83.

Sincerely,

Yoy o

Jeffrey Rosenstrock
General Counsel

ce: Freedom of Information Act Officer (U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission)

Direct Edge, 545 Washington Boulevard, 6" Fl., Jersey City, NJ 07310 Tel. 201.942.8200 Fax 201.557.8019 www.directedge.com
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Exhibit D

Exhibit Request:

For each subsidiary or affiliate of the exchange, provide unconsolidated financial statements for
the latest fiscal year. Such financial statements shall consist, at a minimum, of a balance sheet
and an income statement with such footnotes and other disclosures as are necessary to avoid
rendering the financial statements misleading. If any affiliate or subsidiary is required by another

Commission rule to submit annual financial statements, a statement to that effect with a citation
to the other Commission rule, may be provided in lieu of the financial statements required here.

Response:

1. The financials of Deutsche Borse AG are submitted in response to this Exhibit D.

2. Direct Edge Holdings LLC filed financial statements for the year ended December 31 ,
2012 with the Commission pursuant to Rule 17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 which include the financials for the entities listed below. They are submitted
again as a reference in response to Exhibit D.

* The financials of DECN d/b/a/ DE Route are submitted in response to Exhibit D.
® The financials of EDGA Exchange, Inc. are submitted in response to Exhibit D.

* The financials of EDGX Exchange, Inc. are submitted in response to Exhibit D.

3. The financials of Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Ziirich are submitted in response to
this Exhibit D.

4. The financials of Eurex Frankfurt AG are submitted in response to Exhibit D.
5. The financials of Eurex Ziirich AG are submitted in response to Exhibit D.

6. The financials of International Securities Exchange Holdings, Inc. are submitted in
response to Exhibit D.

7. The financials of International Securities Exchange, LLC are submitted in response to
Exhibit D.

The financials of U.S. Exchange Holdings, Inc. are submitted in response to Exhibit D.

o

9.  There are no financials available for U.S. Exchange, LLC as the entity was dormant
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2012.




Exhibit D
1. Deutsche Borse AG



Deutsche Borse Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt/Main
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2012

Assets

31/12/2012 31/12/2011 Shareholder's Equity and Liabilities 311272012 311212011
€ € (thousand) Per value of shares Subscribed capital € € (thousand)
. acquired for retiremnent before retirement
NONCURRENT ASSETS SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY e €
Intangible Assets ] Subscribed Capital 193.000.000.00 -8.921.326,00 184.078.674.00 183.400
Licenses and similar rights for data processing and software 13.058.459.00 9{58‘ T )
_Gooawill 442.925,00 461 Capital Reserve 1.286.328.955,19 1.284.329
Prepayments frtoqoo _§_ T
13.506.384,00 9.624 Retained Earnings
T 7 Other profit reserves 431.144.371,32 138.156
Tangible Assets S 431.144.371.32 138.156
Fixtures on third party land 23.174.252,00 24224
Other assets. fumniture and office equi 1t 54.604.766.94 53.769 .
- 77.779.018.94 77.993  Unappropriated Surplus 400.000.000,00 650.000
_ j;qlgl'§n‘a<(gh9!dg:s_iqqlly 2.301.552.000,51 2.255.885
Financial Assets
Shares in affiliated companies 3.086.328.369,45 2.496.1 12
Loans to affiliated companies 996.934.322,01 942,765
Investments 34.408.837,03 34,651 s and similar obligations 16.463.524,92 26.142
Loans to companies in which the company has a participating interest 77.187.98 549 ed taxes 130.838.773.33 114,995
_Long-Term securities 12.636.498,14 106_6?_ Other provisions 131.788.565.28 145.822
Other loans 50.574.30 6 Total provisions 279.090.863,53 286.959
4.130.435.788.91 3.484.812 _
Total Noncurrent Assets 4.221.721.191.85 3.572.428 LIABILITIES
B Bonds 1.746.387.690.66 1.463.106
CURRENT ASSETS Liabilities from bank loans and overdran 96.148,45 527
Accounts Receivable and Other Assets 21.589.616.21 29.944
Trade accounts receivable 118.807.282,50 119.887 J companies 557.352.867.42 440.423
Receivables from affiliated companies 253.331.809,10 2 oggi' ts owed 10 companies in which the company has a participating interest 13.260.012,84 12.988
Receivables from companies in which the company has a participating interest 1.438.448.48 "3.402 tes 7 T 51.268.160.69 62.163
Other current assets 78.061.601,38 37.467 Total Liabilities 2.389.954.496.27 2.009.152
thereof with residual term over 1 year € 13.976.760,02 (previous year € 15.671 (thousand)) e oo B
451.639.141,46 371.040  DEFERRED INCOME AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 907.288.40 2.367
Cash and Bank Balances 281.081.015.83 596.013

Total Current Assets

732.720.157,29

DEFERRED EXPENSES AND ACCRUED INCOME

17.063.299.57

Total Assets

4.971.504.648,71

4.554.362

Total Shareholder's Equity and Liabilities

4.971.504.648,71

4.554.362




Deutsche Borse Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt/Main

Profit and Loss Account

for the period 1 January to 31 December 2012

2012 2011
€ € € (thousand) € (thousand)
Sales Revenue 1.110.263.852,97 1.280.677
Other Operating Income 109.182.724,08 118.786
thereof from currency translation € 13.485.097,00 (previous year € 6.469 (thousand))
Personnel Expenses
Wages and Sataries -120.307.535,19 -119.487
Social securities, pensions and other benefits -17.668.253,18 -27.034 -146.521
thereof pensions € 5.958.765,98 (previous year € 15.245 (thousand))
Depreciation
of intangible and tangible assets -32.526.864,49 -28.439
Other Operating Expenses -522.140.871,83 -566.278
thereof from currency translation € 4.567.676,62 (previous year € 14.615 (thousand))
Income from Participating Interests — 79.772.463,08 39.489
thereof from afliliated companies € 72.200.950,71 (previous year € 37.195 (thousand))
Income from Profit and Loss Agreements 215.420.834,70 173.436
Income from Financial Assets: Long-Term Securities and Loans 27.018.291,41 16.754
thereof from affiliated companies € 15.000.000,00 (previous year € 15.286 (thousand))
Interest and Similar Income 1.094.474.84 43_9.1——2_
thereof from afliliated companies € 22.290,64 {previous € 36 (thousand))
Depreciation of Current Assets: Financial Assets and Securities -2.662.724,18 -25.876
thereof to afliliated companies € 0,00 (previous year € 0 (thousand))
Interest and Similar Charges —_ e e -121.143.275,18 106.376
thereof to affiliated companies € 1.147.005,48 (previous year € 3.033 (thousand))
thereof from addition of discounted interest € 10.608.388,48 (previous year € 8.408 (thousand))
Profit before Tax from Ordinary Activities 726.303.117,03 760.145
Extracrdinary income 0,00 60.261
Extraordinary expense 0.00 -118
Extraordinary earnings 0,00 60.143
Tax on Profit -120.639.985.13 -155.891
Other Taxes 29.868,10 15.289
Net Income for the Financial Year 605.693.000,00 679.685
Withdrawal from other profit reserves 0.00 [¢]
Allocations to other profit reserve -205.693.000,00 -29.685
Unappropriated Surplus 400.000.000,00 650.000
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Deutsche Borse Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main Page 1

Notes to the financial statements for financial year 2012

Accounting policies

Deutsche Borse AG’s annual report for the financial year 2012 was prepared in accordance with
the provisions of the Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB, German Commercial Code) and of the Aktiengesetz
(AktG, the German Stock Corporation Act).

The total cost accounting method was chosen for the income statement.
The Company is a large corporation as defined by section 267 (3) of the HGB.

Fixed asset line items denominated in foreign currency have been translated into euro amounts
using the exchange rates valid on the date of acquisition; in case of permanent impairment, the
conversion is at the period-end exchange rate.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency have been translated using the ECB
reference rate or the Bloomberg rates valid at the balance sheet date. If the assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency have a maturity of one year or less, then HGB sections 253 (1)
clause 1 and 252 (1) no. 4 subclause 2 were not applied.

Income and expenses were translated on the posting date at the ECB reference rate or the
Bloomberg rates.

Purchased intangible assets are carried at cost and amortised using the straight-line method or
valued at the lower fair value. No use was made of the option to capitalise internally generated
intangible assets.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost. Depreciable property, plant and equipment is
depreciated using the straight-line method over its useful life or valued at its lower fair value. Low-
value fixed assets with acquisition costs up to €410 were written off directly in the financial year
2012 in accordance with section 6 (2) of the German Income Tax Act (EstG). In this respect, no
use was made of the option granted by section 6 (2a) EStG to create a compound item.

Investments in affiliated companies stated under financial assets as well as participations are
carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Loans to affiliated companies and other loans are
recognised at nominal value, taking into account any permanent impairment, where applicable.
Securities are carried at cost or at the lower exchange rate on the reporting date, in the event of
likely permanent impairment. If the circumstances which led to a write-down no longer apply, a
reversal is made, up to a maximum of the original cost.

Receivables and other assets are always carried at their nominal amount. All discernible risks are
impaired individually, whilst latent risks are considered on a portfolio basis.
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Provisions for pensions and other obligations have been stated along with the projected benefit
obligation on the basis of actuarial tables using the "2005 G" mortality tables (generation tables)
developed by Dr Klaus Heubeck, modified by statistical information gathered by the German
Federal Statistical Office from 2006 to 2008.

Actuarial assumptions
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
% %
Discount rate 5.06 5.13
Salary growth 3.50 3.50
Pension growth 2.00 2.00
Staff turnover rate 2.00" 2.00"

" Up to age 50, thereafter 0.0 percent

Calculations for the projected benefit obligation arising from the employee-financed Deferred
Compensation Programme were made on the basis of an interest rate of 5.06 percent (previous
year: 5.13 percent) along with actuarial tables using the "2005 G" mortality tables (generation
tables) developed by Dr Klaus Heubeck, modified by statistical information gathered by the
German Federal Statistical Office from 2006 to 2008.

As per section 246 (2) 2 of the HGB, the amount of pension benefits to be paid as at the balance
sheet date was offset against the fair value of the asset, which is protected from any creditor
claims and is intended exclusively to meet the liabilities arising from pension obligations or other
similar long-term obligations to employees (plan assets). The cumulative costs of the plan assets
amount to €137.5 million (previous year: €122.2 million).

The plan asset, which corresponds to a 68.5 percent share (previous year: 69.4 percent) in a
special fund as defined by sections 1 and 2 (3) of the German Investment Act (InvG), had a fair
value at the balance sheet date of €128.7 million (previous year: €110.5 million), which is
equivalent to the current value as defined by section 36 of the InvG. This special fund is an
international mixed fund (mixed special fund) with regulatory investment restrictions. In addition to
replicating DJ STOXX 600 Europe, a capital protection concept is applied alongside a non-forecast-
orientated trend reporting system which is key to the portfolio management. During the period
under review, €2.9 million (previous year: €2.7 million) was withdrawn, which corresponds to the
amount of current pension payments, and which was immediately added back to the plan asset. A
total amount of €12.2 million (previous year: €23.3 million) was added to the special fund. This
asset is protected from any creditor claims and is thus not repayable on demand.
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The other provisions have been estimated in consideration of all known risks and unknown
liabilities as at the balance sheet date and were estimated at the amount which is required to be
paid according to a reasonable commercial assessment. Provisions with a maturity of more than
one year are discounted using the market interest rates published by the Deutsche Bundesbank
according to the remainder of their maturity.

The basis for determining provisions for the Stock Option Plan is the intrinsic value of the option,
whereas the basis for determining provisions for the Stock Bonus Plan is the price of Deutsche
Borse AG shares at the reporting date.

The provisions for anniversary payments and early retirement were estimated using actuarial
principles of the amount to be paid, and for early retirees valued at present value. The projected
unit credit method was applied as the basis of this assessment. During the period under review,
the interest rate of 5.06 percent (previous year: 5.13 percent) published by the German Ministry
of Finance was applied. The "2005 G" mortality tables created by Dr Klaus Heubeck (with the
modifications already mentioned) were the basis of these projections.

For all hedge accounting procedures as defined by section 254 of the HGB, Deutsche Bérse AG
exercises the option of only stating hedges on the balance sheet to the extent that the hedge was
ineffective and a negative result arises (compensatory valuation/net hedge presentation method). In
such an event, a provision for contingent losses is recognised.

Deferred taxes are calculated in accordance with section 274 HGB on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts according to commercial law and their taxable values. Deferred tax
liabilities are only reported insofar as they exceed deferred tax assets. In view of the existing
single-entity relationship for tax purposes with Clearstream Holding AG, temporary differences
between the carrying amounts according to commercial law and their taxable values of these
companies were accounted for at the level of the controlling company, Deutsche Borse AG.
Calculating deferred taxes is based on the combined income tax rate of all the companies
comprising a single-entity for tax purposes with Deutsche Borse AG, which currently stands at
25.79%.

As at 31 December 2012, the excess of deferred tax assets amounted to €12.5 million. The
excess of deferred tax assets is mainly the result of differences in the carrying amounts in the
provisions for pensions and their related cover assets.

In accordance with section 274 (1) (2) HGB, the Company refrained from reporting the excess of
deferred tax assets. Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates in effect or expected
in Germany on the date they are recovered.

There is currently a uniform rate of corporation tax of 15 percent plus a solidarity surcharge of 5.5
percent. Taking trade tax into account, this results in a composite tax rate of 25.79 percent. There
were no carryforwards of tax losses as at the reporting date.
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In accordance with section 253 (1) clause 2 of the HGB, these liabilities are treated with their
respective payment amounts as deferred items.
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Notes to the balance sheet

Fixed assets

The movements of fixed assets are described in detail in the appendix. In the financial year 2012,
write-downs of €2.7 million (previous year: €25.9 million) were made to financial investments.
These relate to loans to companies in which the company has a participating interest.

As at 31 December 2012, loans to affiliated companies totalled €996.9 million (previous year:
€942.8 million). Of this, €846.9 million (previous year: €790.2 million) is related to profit
participations rights issued by Eurex Frankfurt AG as part of the acquisition of International
Securities Exchange Holdings, Inc. (ISE). Owing to the profit generated by Eurex Frankfurt AG
there was a partial reversal of the earlier impairment in the amount of €56.7 million (previous
year: €29.3 million). The participation right qualifies to receive losses of the issuer, Eurex
Frankfurt AG.

Investments in affiliated companies

As at 31 December 2012, Deutsche Bérse AG had investments in affiliated companies as follows:

Company Domicile Currency | Own equity in | 2012 net profit Equity interest
€ thous.” loss in € thous. direct (indirect)
Clearstream Holding AG Germany € 2,115,314 215,421 100.00%
Clearstream International S.A. Luxembourg | € 819,349 235,169 (100.00)%
Clearstream Banking S.A. Luxembourg | € 533,929 125,044 (100.00)%
Clearstream Banking Japan, Ltd. | Japan JPY 35,252 5,564 (100.00)%
REGIS-TR S.A. Luxembourg | € 2,163 -635 (50.00)%
Clearstream Banking AG Germany € 276,259 87,318 (100.00)%
Clearstream Services S.A. Luxembourg | € 62,377 9,351 (100.00)%
Clearstream Fund Services Ireland € 586 86 (100.00)%
Ireland Ltd.




Deutsche Borse Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main Page 6

Company Domicile Currency | Own equity in | 2012 net profit Equity interest
€ thous.” loss in € thous. direct (indirect)
Clearstream Operations Prague Czech CZK 182,961 -10,303 (100.00)%
s.r.o Republic
LuxCSD S.A. Luxembourg | € 5,335 -365 (50.00)%
Deutsche Boerse Systems, Inc. us Uss 4,091 602 100.00%
Eurex Global Derivatives AG Switzerland CHF 282,455 -208,399 100.00%
Eurex Zurich AG Switzerland CHF 305,016 4,565 (100.00)%
Eurex Frankfurt AG Germany € 984,318 86,851 (100.00)%
Eurex Bonds GmbH Germany € 7.515 1,429 (79.44)%
Eurex Clearing AG Germany € 139,416 1,186 (100.00)%
Eurex Repo GmbH Germany € 550 11,098 (100.00)%
Eurex Services GmbH Germany € 1,182,469 86,754 (100.00)%
U.S. Exchange Holdings, Inc. us Us$ 0 -1,722 (100.00)%
International Securities Exchange | US uUss$ 1,721,482 13,091 (100.00)%

Holdings, Inc.

ETC Acquisition Corp. us US$ 3,639 125 (100.00)%

International Securities us Uss$ 61,261 44,011 (100.00)%
Exchange, LLC

Longitude LLC us uUss 3,945 3,923 (100.00)%
Longitude S.A. Luxembourg | € 454 -646 (100.00)%
Finnovation S.A. Luxembourg | € 121,183 -1,785 100.00%
Infobolsa S.A. Spain € 11,867 581 50.00%
Difubolsa, Servicos de Difusao e | Portugal € 155 18 (50.00)%

Informacgao de Bolsa, S.A.
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Company Domicile Currency | Own equity in | 2012 net profit Equity interest
€ thous."” loss in € thous. direct (indirect)
Infobolsa Deutschland GmbH Germany € 1,296 70 (50.00)%
Open Finance, S.L. Spain € 1,040 396 (31.00)%
Market News international Inc. us uss 20,600 816 100.00%
MNI Financial and Economic China Us$ 237 94 (100.00)%
Information (Beijing) Co. Ltd.
Need to Know News, LLC us Uss$ 5,425 -261 (100.00)%
Risk Transfer Re S.A. Luxembourg | € 1,225 0 100.00%
STOXX Ltd. Switzerland CHF 88,044 19,255 50.10%
Tradegate Exchange GmbH Germany € 913 230 76.23%
Deutsche Borse Services s.r.0. Czech CZK 84,372 28,760 100.00%
Republic

" Includes capital reserves and retained earnings, accumulated gains or losses and net profit or loss for the year and, if necessary,
further components according to the respective local GAAP




Deutsche Borse Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main

Equity investments
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Deutsche Bdrse AG held the following equity investments with a share of more than 20 percent as

at 31 December 2012:

Company Domicile Currency Own equity in | 2012 net profit Equity interest
€ thous.” loss in € thous. | direct (indirect)
European Energy Exchange AG Germany € 113,696 11,813 (56.14)%
Scoach Holding S.A. Luxembourg | € 26,816 6,567 50.01%
Indexium AG Switzerland CHF 5,514 -844 49.90%
Direct Edge Holdings, LLC us Uss 126,290 17,135 (31.54)%
Hanweck Associates, LLC us uss 273 -951 (26.44)%
ID's SAS France € 2,107 761 25.01%

" Includes capital reserves and retained earnings, accumulated gains or losses and net profit or loss for the year and, if necessary,
further components according to the respective local GAAP

As at 31 December 2012, Deutsche Bérse AG held directly or indirectly more than 5 percent of
the voting rights in the following companies:

Company Domicile Currency | Own equity in [ 2012 net profit Equity interest
€ thous.” loss in € thous. | direct (indirect)
The Options Ciearing us USs 12,433 1.829 (20.00)%
Corporation, USA
Deutsche Borse Commodities Germany € 3,155 1,503 16.20%
GmbH
Digital Vega FX Ltd. United GBP 676 -875 13.02%
Kingdom

Phineo gAG Germany € 1,224 -198 12.00%
Tradegate AG Germany € 27,109 -2,708 4.93%

Wertpapierhandelsbank

R Includes capital reserves and retained earnings, accumulated gains or losses and net profit or loss for the year and, if necessary,
further components according to the respective local GAAP
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Receivables from affiliated companies

This balance sheet item contains trade receivables from affiliated companies of €31.4 million
(previous year: €11.9 million) as well as other assets amounting to €221.9 million (previous year:
€198.4 million). The profit transfer agreement with Clearstream Holding AG accounted for €215.4
million (previous year: €173.4 million) of the other assets.

Receivables from companies in which the company has a participating interest

This balance sheet item primarily comprises trade receivables of €1.4 million (previous year: €3.4
mitlion) from companies in which the company has a participating interest.

Disclosures regarding financial instruments and hedging transactions according to section 285
(19) and (23) of the HGB.

At the reporting date, investments of the following derivatives were held; the financial instruments
are designated as part of the hedging transactions:

Risk Underlying transaction Hedging instrument Type of hedging | Prospective
relationship effectiveness
Type Type Amount { Risk Amount
Interest | Cash flows Planned issue of | €300 m | Swaption €300 m Micro cash flow | Maturity,
from planned | fixed-rate debt and forward hedge of an currency and
. anticipated volume
long-term debt | instruments swap ;
transaction congruence
instruments

To hedge against changes in interest rates in relation to the planned issue of long-term debt
instruments, Deutsche Borse AG concluded a swaption and a forward swap which mature in 2018
and a nominal amount of €150.0 million respectively in 2070. To the extent that the swaption
will be exercised in 2013, Deutsche Barse AG will act as fixed rate payer for both interest rate
derivatives. Along with the likely transaction (issue of a debt instrument) both derivatives together
represent a hedging instrument as defined by section 254 of the HGB. On 31 December 2012 the
market price of the swap was €-14.6 mitlion; the swaption was out-of-the-money.

On 24 October 2012, Deutsche Borse AG also concluded a forward foreign exchange transaction
with Eurex Services GmbH due 1 August 2013 for the purchase of USD 51 million. The US dollar
purchase transaction has a negative market value of €0.6 miilion. There is also another forward
foreign exchange transaction (sale of USD) due on 1 August 2013 for a nominal amount of USD
10 million which had a positive market value on 31 December of €0.1 million.
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In the year under review, two forward foreign exchange transactions for the purchase of USD
51 million each and the sale of USD 10 million each expired.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses contain discounts for bond issues as defined by section 250 (3) of the HGB of
€5.4 million (previous year: €2.1 million).

Deferred tax assets

Deutsche Borse AG does not exercise the option to recognise deferred tax assets.
Equity

Fully paid-in share capital amounts to €193.0 million (previous year: €195.0 million), divided
into 193,000,000 no-par value registered shares. 2.0 million shares were cancelled in February
2012.

There were 8,921,326 treasury shares held at the end of the year (previous year: 11,600,127),
representing 4.6 percent of share capital. As part of employee programmes, 116,068 shares were
sold at the price of €5.1 million in the year under review and, under the terms of the acquisition of
an equity investment, 5,286,738 shares were sold at the price of €255.9 million. As part of the
share buyback programme, 4,724,005 shares were acquired at the purchase price of €198.2
million. Shares thus valued at year's end amounted to €412.3 million, resuiting from the buyback
of shares from 2005-2012.
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Subject to the agreement of the Supervisory Board, the Executive Board is authorised to increase
the subscribed share capital by the following amounts:

Amount in €

Date of
shareholder
approval

Conclusion of
approval process

Existing shareholders' pre-emptive rights
may be disapplied for fractioning and/or
may be disapplied if the share issue is:

Authorised
share capital |

5,200,000

12 May 2011

11 May 2016

- against non-cash contributions for the
purpose of acquiring companies, parts of
companies, or interests in companies, or

other assets

Authorised
share capital Il

27,800,000

27 May 2010

26 May 2015

for cash at an issue price not significantly

lower than the exchange traded share
price up to a maximum amount of 10
percent of the nominal capital to issue

new shares

to employees of the Company or affiliated
companies with the meaning of sections
15ff of the Aktiengesetz (AktG, German
Stock Corporation Act), with the pro rata
amount of the share capital not allowed to

exceed €3 million

against non-cash contributions for the
purpose of acquiring companies, parts of
companies, interests in companies, or

other assets

Authorised

share
HI

capital

19,500,000

27 May 2010

26 May 2015

- N/A

Authorised
share
v

capital

6,000,000

16 May 2012

15 May 2017

for the issuance of up to 900,000 new
shares per year to Executive Board
members and employees of the Company
as well as to the management and
employees of affiliated companies within
the meaning of sections 15 ff. of the AktG

In addition to authorised share capital [, Il, 1l and 1V, the Company has contingent capital | that
allows the issue of up to 6,000,000 shares to settle stock options under the Group Share Plan.
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The Company'’s capital reserves and retained earnings performed as follows:

€m €m
Capital reserves
Brought forward as at 1 January 2012 1.284.3
Addition 2.0
Balance as at 31 December 2012 1.286.3
Retained earnings
Other retained earnings
Brought forward as at 1 January 2012 138.2
Addition from previous year’s net profit 27.1
Addition due to sale of own shares 255.6
Addition from 2012 net income 205.7
Transfer due to acquisition of own shares -193.4
Transfer due to cancellation of shares -2.0
Balance as at 31 December 2012 431.2

Page 12
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Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits

Pension liabilities on the basis of section 246 (2) 2 of the HGB

€m
Pension obligations payable 145.2
Fair value of plan assets -128.7
Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits 16.5
Netting profit and loss

€m
Income arising from pension obligations 0.6
Net revenue stated under personnel expenses 0.6
Interest expense arising from pension obligations 8.4
Reversals of plan assets 8.9
Income from plan assets 1.9
Net revenue stated under financial result 2.4

Page 13
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Other provisions

Other provisions, amounting to €131.8 million (previous year: €145.8 million), comprise the
following:

€m

Interest relating to tax audit 39.7
Provisions as part of the 2010 restructuring programme 24.5
Other personnel provisions 16.0
Phantom Stock Option Pian, Stock Bonus Plan and Group Share Plan 11.4
Outstanding invoices 10.7
Variable remuneration 9.0
Obligation to reimburse current and future pension payments to the
chamber of commerce (IHK) on the basis of the transition agreement 8.6
Remuneration for the Supervisory Board 2.1
Risk of litigation 1.9
Anticipated losses from leases and asset retirement obligations 1.6
Severance payments 1.6
Miscellaneous provisions 4.7

131.8
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Liabilities are divided into the categories below. Lien rights or similar rights are not included in

liabilities.

Amount in €m Total amount Thereof: up to 1 Thereof: 1-5 Thereof: > 5 years
year years
Bonds (previous year) 1,746.4 797.8 128.8 819.8
(1,463.1) (0.0) (1,238.6) (224.5)
Liabilities to banks (previous year) 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0
(0.5) (0.5) (0.0) (0.0)
Trade payables (previous year) 21.6 21.6 0.0 0.0
(29.9) (29.9) (0.0) (0.0)
Liabilities towards affiliated companies 557.4 557.4 0.0 0.0
(previous year) (440.4) (440.4) (0.0) (0.0)
- Thereof trade payables (previous 47.9 47.9 0.0 0.0
year) (55.4) (55.4) (0.0) (0.0)
- Thereof other liabilities (previous 509.5 509.5 0.0 0.0
year) (385.0) (385.0) (0.0) (0.0)
Payables to other companies in which 13.3 13.3 0.0 0.0
the company has a participating (13.0) (13.0) (0.0) (0.0
interest (previous year)

- Thereof trade payables (previous 0.1 01 0.0 0.0
year) (0.4) 0.49) (0.0) (0.0)
- Thereof other liabilities (previous 13.2 13.2 0.0 0.0
year) (12.6) (12.6) (0.0) (0.0)
Other liabilities (previous year) 51.2 50.4 0.4 0.4
(62.2) (61.8) (0.4) (0.0)
- Thereof taxes (previous year) 6.4 6.4 0.0 0.0
6.7) (6.7) (0.0) (0.0)
- Thereof social security 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0
contributions (previous year) 0.2) (0.2) (0.0) (0.0)
Total liabilities (previous year) 2,390.0 1,440.6 129.2 820.2
(2,009.1) (545.6) (1.239.0) (224.5)
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Disclosures to the income statement

Sales revenue

Sales revenue of €1,110.3 million (previous year: €1,280.7 million) consist mainly of
€660.2 million (previous year: €765.6 million) from the Eurex electronic derivatives trading
platform, €232.4 million (previous year: €306.8 million) from the cash market with the Xetra
electronic trading system and floor trading as well as the central counterparty for equities, and
€196.6 million (previous year: €196.9 million) from the sales and marketing of exchange data
and information, as well as index development and marketing.

Other operating income

Other operating income amounts to €109.2 million (previous year: €118.8 million). This item
comprises income from agency agreements with affiliated companies (€82.4 million; previous year
€84.7 million), income from foreign currency translation arising from exchange rate differences
(€13.5 million; previous year: €6.5 million) as well as out-of-period income from the reversal of
provisions (€6.9 million; previous year €19.5 million). It also includes rental income (€0.7
million; previous year: €0.9 million) and out-of-period income from receivables individually
written-down in prior years (€0.5 million; previous year: €0.5 million).

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses amount to €522.1 million (previous year: €566.3 million), and
comprise: agency fees to affiliated companies (€201.8 million; previous year €193.1 million);
legal and consulting expenses (€101.5 million; previous year €146.9 million); expenses for IT
services (€60.9 million; previous year €51.5 million); rental expenses (€40.0 million; previous
year €38.0 million); expenses arising from marketing exchange data (€26.8 million; previous year
€12.2 million); expenses for Xetra Market Services (€15.8 million; previous year: €10.9 million);
expenses for the communication network (€12.9 million; previous year €11.1 million); advertising
and marketing expenses (€9.3 million; previous year €10.6 million); and expenses from non-
deductible input tax (€2.8 million; previous year €14.6 million). Expenses from foreign currency
translation stated in the income statement include €4.6 million (previous year: €14,6 million)
from exchange rate differences.

Auditor’s fee

In accordance with section 285 (17) of the HGB, disclosures as to the auditor's fee are contained
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements of Deutsche Bérse AG.
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Other financial obligations and transactions not included in the
balance sheet

Other financial obligations relate to rental, lease, maintenance and other contracts.

Obligations relating to rental, lease and maintenance contracts in 2013 (€47.6 million: previous
year: €69.1 million) arise mainly from long-term contracts for office space rental of €23.1 million
(previous year: €23.1 million), as well as software maintenance contracts of €16.5 million
(previous year: €20.4 million). Other obligations in the amount of €8.0 million (previous year:
€25.6 million) relate to other rental and leasing agreements (€2.5 million: previous year: €11.6
million) and diverse other maintenance contracts in the amount of €5.5 million (previous year:
€14.0 million). For financial years starting in 2014, it is anticipated that €257.6 million (previous
year: €293.3 million) will be spent on these contracts.

In the financial year that ended in 2012, other obligations arose from management and agency
agreements with Eurex Frankfurt AG of €178.4 million (previous year: €167.5 million) and Eurex
Clearing AG of €23.4 million (previous year: €16.7 million). Deutsche Bérse AG assumes that the
obligations arising from agency agreements with Eurex Frankfurt AG and Eurex Clearing AG will not
deviate significantly in future from the figures in 2012. The obligations owed to Eurex Frankfurt AG
and Eurex Clearing AG are obligations owed to affiliated companies.

Other contracts, particularly service contracts, gave rise to financial obligations of €14.0 million in
2013 (previous year: €16.6 million), of which €10.2 million (previous year: €9.4 million) relates
to IT and application support. For the financial years from 2014 onwards, these contracts are
anticipated to generate expenses of €16.2 million (previous year: €43.7 million).

The Company provided a guarantee ("Patronatserklarung”) in favour of Eurex Clearing AG,
according to which Deutsche Borse AG is obliged to provide Eurex Clearing AG with the financial
means needed to fulfil its obligations arising from its activities and in its capacity as central
counterparty (CCP) for processing securities traded on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, futures traded
on the Eurex Germany and Eurex Zurich exchanges, contracts traded using the Eurex Bonds GmbH
system and real repurchase agreements traded with the Eurex Repo GmbH system, within the
meaning of the HGB section 340b (1 and 2). The guarantee is restricted to a maximum amount of
€700.0 million. Based on the risk management system implemented by Eurex Clearing AG,
particularly the Lines of Defence, as well as the fact that in the past no utilisation of Deutsche
Borse AG occurred due to failure of a clearing member, Deutsche Borse AG currently assumes that
utilisation resulting from the guarantee is not probable.

Referring to section 5 (10) of the statute of the Deposit Protection Fund, an unlimited statement of
commitment has been issued to Clearstream Banking AG, according to which Deutsche Borse AG
indemnifies the Bundesverband deutscher Banken e.V. from all potential loss claims.
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Moreover, Deutsche Borse AG provides loan commitments in favour of affiliated companies and
companies in which the Company has a participating interest of €72 million and €7 million
respectively.

In connection with the cooperation agreement between SIX Swiss Exchange AG and Deutsche
Borse AG with regard to both parties’ participation in Scoach Holding S.A., Deutsche Borse AG has
the right and the obligation, at the end of the cooperation after expiration or termination of the
agreement, to retain the Scoach Holding S.A. (including the collateral participation in Scoach
Europe AG, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Scoach Holding S.A.) as sole shareholder. This obligation
results in a contingent liability for Deutsche Borse AG to SIX Swiss Exchange AG to make a
compensation payment if the net financial liabilities and assets surplus to business requirements
of Scoach Holding S.A. (including Scoach Europa AG), are higher than those of Scoach Schweiz
AG, which will be taken over by SIX Swiss Exchange AG. On the other hand, if they are lower, a
liability results for SIX Swiss Exchange AG to Deutsche Borse AG. In December 2012, SIX Swiss
Exchange AG terminated the cooperation agreement with effect from 30 June 2013. With the
terminating of the cooperation agreement, the joint venture will be terminated as of 30 June 2013
and the brought markets will be transferred back to the parent companies.

Provisions arising from deferred compensation were recognised in the balance sheet under
employee expenses for individual subsidiaries. However, as Deutsche Borse AG has an obligation
as a provider towards participating employees, a contingent liability of €17.3 million (previous
year: €14.6 million) arises which is equivalent to the amount of the provisions made by the
individual subsidiaries.
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Other disclosures

Supervisory Board

The members of the Supervisory Board are:

Dr Joachim Faber Independent management consultant, Grinwald
Chairman
(since 16 May 2012)

Other appointments Allianz S.p.A., Trieste (Member of the Board of Directors, until 14
February 2012)
Allianz France, Paris (Member of the Board of Directors)
(Chairman of the Audit Committee since 7 March 2012)
Coty Inc., New York
(Member of the Board of Directors)
HSBC Holding plc, London
{(Member of the Board of Directors since 1 March 2012)
Joh. A. Benckiser SARL, Luxembourg
(Chairman of the Shareholders' Commiittee since 1 January 2012)

Gerhard Roggemann Vice Chairman, Cannacord Genuity Hawkpoint Limited, London
Vice Chairman

Supervisory Board Deutsche Beteiligungs AG, Frankfurt am Main
appointments GP Gunter Papenburg AG, Schwarmstedt (Chairman)
Fresenius SE & Co. KGaA, Bad Homburg

Other appointments Friends Life Group plc., London
(Member of the Board of Directors)
Resolution Limited, Guernsey (Member of the Board of Directors)
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Richard Berliand

Supervisory Board
appointments

Other appointments

Irmtraud Busch
(since 16 May 2012)

Karl-Heinz Floether
(since 16 May 2012)

Marion Fornoff
(since 16 May 2012)

Hans-Peter Gabe

Richard M. Hayden

Craig Heimark

Other appointments

Executive Director, Richard Berliand Limited, Ashtead, Surrey

Eurex Clearing AG, Frankfurt am Main (since 17 September 2012)
Eurex Frankfurt AG, Frankfurt am Main (since 17 September 2012)

Eurex Zurich AG, Zurich (Member of the Board of Directors
since 17 September 2012)

ITRS Group Limited, London

(Member of the Board of Directors since 6 February 2012,
Chairman

of the Board of Directors since 31 May 2012)

London Wine Agencies, London (Director)

Mako Europe Ltd, London
(Member of the Board of Directors)

Employee in the Settlement Product Design (OPD) section
Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt am Main

Independent management consultant, Kronberg

Employee in the Human Resources Germany section
Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt am Main

Staff member in the HR Policies & Corporate Training section
Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt am Main

Non-Executive Chairman, Haymarket Financial LLP, London
Senior Advisor, TowerBrook Capital Partners L.P., London

Managing Partner, Hawthorne Group LLC, Palo Alto

Avistar Communications Corporation, Redwood Shores
(Member of the Board of Directors)

Cohesive Flexible Technologies Corporation, Chicago
(Chairman of the Board of Directors)
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David Krell

Dr Monica Machler
{since 16 May 2012)

Friedrich Merz

Supervisory Board
appointments

Other appointments

Thomas NeifBle

Heinz-Joachim Neuburger
(since 16 May 2012)

Dr Erhard Schipporeit

Supervisory Board
appointments

Other appointments

Chairman of the Board of Directors
International Securities Exchange, LLC, New York

Lawyer, Pfaffikon
Former Vice Chair of the Board of Directors of the
Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority FINMA, Berne

Lawyer and Partner at Mayer Brown LLP, Dusseldorf

AXA Konzern AG, Cologne

BVB Borussia Dortmund KGaA, Dortmund
HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt AG, Dusseldorf
WEPA Industrieholding SE, Arnsberg

. (Chairman)

BASF Antwerpen N.V., Antwerp
(Member of the Board of Directors)
Stadler Rail AG, Bussnang
(Member of the Board of Directors)

Chief Executive Deka Investment GmbH,
Frankfurt am Main

Independent management consultant, London

Independent management consultant, Hanover

BDO AG, Hamburg

Fuchs Petrolub AG, Mannheim

Hannover Ruckversicherung AG, Hanover
SAP AG, Walldorf

Talanx AG, Hanover

Fidelity Funds SICAV, Luxembourg
{(Member of the Board of Directors)
TUI Travel pic., London

{Member of the Board of Directors)
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Jutta Stuhlfauth
(since 16 May 2012)

Martin Ulrici
(since 16 May 2012)

Johannes Witt
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Lawyer, M.B.A. (Wales) and Head of Unit Policies
and Procedures
Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt am Main

Staff member in the HR Policies & Corporate Training section
Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt am Main

Staff member in the Consolidation & Accounting Frankfurt section
Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt am Main

Former Supervisory Board members:

Dr Manfred Gentz
{(until 16 May 2012)
Chairman

Supervisory Board

appointment

Herbert Bayer
{until 16 May 2012)

Supervisory Board
appointment

Birgit Bokel
(untit 16 May 2012)

President of the International Chamber of Commerce (ICC) Germany,
Berlin

Zurich Financial Services, Zurich (Chairman of the Board of Directors
until 29 March 2012)

Former Trade Union Secretary
ver.di, Department 1 Financial Services
Area Frankfurt am Main and region, Frankfurt am Main

dwpbank - Deutsche WertpapierService Bank AG, Frankfurt am Main

Former staff member in the Facility Management section Deutsche
Borse AG, Frankfurt am Main
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Dr Konrad Hummler
(until 16 May 2012)

Other appointments

Hermann-Josef Lamberti
{until 15 May 2012)

Supervisory Board
appointments

Other appointments

Roland Prantl
(until 16 May 2012)

Norfried Stumpf
(until 16 May 2012)

Supervisory Board
appointment
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Managing Partner, Wegelin & Co. Private Bankers,
St. Gailen

AG fur die Neue Zurcher Zeitung, Zurich

(until 8 February 2012 Chairman of the Board of Directors,
since 8 February 2012 Member of the Board of Directors)
Buhler AG, Uzwil

(Member of the Board of Directors)

Gerlan Finanz AG, Zollikon

(Member of the Board of Directors)

Habib Bank AG Zurich, Zurich

(Member of the Board of Directors)

Former member of the Executive Board, Deutsche Bank AG,
Frankfurt am Main

BVV Pensionsfonds des Bankgewerbes AG, Berlin

BVV Versicherungsverein des Bankgewerbes a.G., Berlin

Carl Zeiss AG, Oberkochen

Deutsche Bank Privat- und Geschéftskunden AG, Frankfurt am Main
BVV Versorgungskasse des Bankgewerbes e.V., Berlin

(Member of the Supervisory Board)

European Aeronautic Defence and Space Company EADS N.V.

Schiphol-Rijk, (Member of the Board of Directors)

Staff member in the Configuration Management & Quality Assurance
section, Deutsche Bérse AG, Frankfurt am Main

Staff member in the New Issues & CSK Frankfurt section
Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt am Main

Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt am Main

In the financial year, the members of the Supervisory Board received remuneration of €2.7 million.
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The Supervisory Board has established the following committees:

Audit and Finance Committee

Dr Erhard Schipporeit (Chairman)

Friedrich Merz

Thomas NeiBe (until 16 May 2012)
Heinz-Joachim Neuburger (since 16 May 2012)
Johannes Witt

Personnel Committee

Dr Joachim Faber (Chairman) (since 16 May 2012)
Dr Manfred Gentz (Chairman) (until 16 May 2012)
Marion Fornoff (since 16 May 2012)

Hans-Peter Gabe (until 16 May 2012)

Richard M. Hayden

Gerhard Roggemann

Strategy Committee

Dr Joachim Faber (since 16 May 2012 Chairman)
Dr Manfred Gentz (Chairman) (until 16 May 2012)
Herbert Bayer (until 16 May 2012)

Richard Berliand (since 16 May 2012)

Birgit Bokel (until 16 May 2012)

Karl-Heinz Floether (since 16 May 2012)
Hans-Peter Gabe (since 16 May 2012)

Richard M. Hayden (until 16 May 2012)
Friedrich Merz (until 16 May 2012)
Heinz-Joachim Neubdurger (since 16 May 2012)
Gerhard Roggemann

Jutta Stuhlifauth (since 16 May 2012)

Technology Committee

Craig Heimark (Chairman)

Richard Berliand (until 16 May 2012)
Karl-Heinz Floether (since 16 May 2012)
David Krell

Roland Prantl (until 16 May 2012)
Martin Ulrici (since 16 May 2012)

Page 24



Deutsche Borse Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main

Clearing and Settlement Committee

Richard Berliand (Chairman) (since 16 May 2012)
Dr Konrad Hummler (Chairman) (until 16 May 2012)
Irmtraud Busch (since 16 May 2012)

Dr Joachim Faber (until 16 May 2012)

Dr Monica Méchler (since 16 May 2012)

Thomas NeiBe

Norfried Stumpf (until 16 May 2012)

Nomination Committee

Dr Joachim Faber (Chairman) (since 16 May 2012)
Dr Manfred Gentz (Chairman) (until 16 May 2012)
Richard M. Hayden

Gerhard Roggemann
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Executive Board
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The members of the Executive Board are:

Reto Francioni
Prof., Dr jur.

Supervisory Board
appointments

Other appointments

Andreas PreuB
University degree in
Business Administration
(Diplom-Kaufmann)

Supervisory Board
appointment

Other appointments

Chairman of the Executive Board
Chief Executive Officer

Clearstream Hoiding AG (Chairman)

Eurex Clearing AG (Vice Chairman, from 30 April 2012 until
15 August 2012 Chairman)

Eurex Frankfurt AG (Vice Chairman, from 30 April 2012 until
15 August 2012 Chairman)

Clearstream International S.A.

(Chairman of the Board of Directors)

Eurex Zurich AG (Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, from 30
April 2012 until 15 August 2012 Chairman of the Board of Directors)

Member of the Executive Board and Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Responsible for the Derivatives division, until 30 November 2012
also for the Market Data division

Chief Executive Officer, Eurex Clearing AG

Chief Executive Officer, Eurex Frankfurt AG

Chief Executive Officer, Eurex Zurich AG

Chairman of the Management Board, Eurex Deutschland
Member of the Management Board, Eurex Services GmbH

Clearstream Holding AG (Vice Chairman)

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (Member of the Board of Directors,
Shareholder Director)

Eurex Global Derivates AG (Chairman of the Board of Directors,
since 30 April 2012)

International Securities Exchange, LLC

(Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors)

International Securities Exchange Holdings, Inc.

(Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors)
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Member of the Executive Board
Responsible for the Xetra division

Frank Gerstenschlager
University degree in
Economics, Business
Administration and
Engineering
(Dipl.-Wirtschaftsingenieur)

Chairman of the Management Board, Frankfurter Wertpapierbérse

Supervisory Board Clearstream Banking AG

appointment

Clearstream International S.A.
(Member of the Board of Directors)
Scoach Holding S.A.

{(Member of the Board of Directors)

Other appointments

Michael Kuhn
Dr-Ing.

Supervisory Board
appointments

Member of the Board of Directors (until 31 December 2012)
Responsible for the Information Technology division
(until 30 November 2012)

Eurex Clearing AG (until 16 September 2012)
Eurex Frankfurt AG (until 31 December 2012)

Clearstream Services S.A.

(Member of the Board of Directors until 31 December 2012)
Deutsche Borse Systems Inc.

(Member of the Board of Directors until 31 December 2012)
Eurex Zirich AG

(Member of the Board of Directors until 31 December 2012)
International Securities Exchange, LLC

{(Member of the Board of Directors until 31 December 2012)

Other appointments

Member of the Executive Board
Chief Financial Officer

Gregor Pottmeyer
University degree in
Economics
(Diplom-Kaufmann)

Clearstream Holding AG
Eurex Ciearing AG
Eurex Frankfurt AG

Supervisory Board
appointments

Clearstream International S.A.
(Member of the Board of Directors)
Eurex Zurich AG

(Member of the Board of Directors)

Other appointments
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Hauke Stars Member of the Executive Board (since 1 December 2012)
Degree in IT Chief Information Officer (since 1 December 2012)
(Dipl.-Ing. Informatik) Responsible for the Information Technology and

Master of Science (M.Sc.) Market Data division

Supervisory Board GfK SE

appointments Kiockner & Co. SE

Jeffrey Tessler Member of the Executive Board

MBA Responsible for the Clearstream division

Chief Executive Officer, Clearstream Banking S.A.
Chief Executive Officer, Clearstream International S.A.
Chief Executive Officer, Clearstream Holding AG

Supervisory Board Clearstream Banking AG
appointment (Chairman)
Other appointments Clearstream Banking S.A.

(Chairman of the Board of Directors)
Clearstream International S.A.

(Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors)
Clearstream Services S.A.

(Chairman of the Board of Directors)
Link-Up Capital Markets, S.L.

(Chairman of the Board of Directors)

Executive Board

In 2012, the total remuneration of members of the Executive Board amounted to €9.5 miilion.
Total compensation includes share-based remuneration of €2.4 million. The shares are valued at
market price on the balance sheet date. The number of stock options (51,571) and the value
determined at the grant date is based on a share price of Deutsche Borse AG of €46.09 being the
average price during the first two calendar months of financial year 2012. See the Deutsche Borse
AG management report for additional disclosures regarding Executive Board compensation.

The remuneration of former members of the Executive Board and their surviving dependents
amounted to €1.6 million in 2012 (previous year: €1.6 million). A total of €34,1 million (previous
year: €32.7 million) has been earmarked for pension obligations to former members of the
Executive Board and their surviving dependants.
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Employees

The average number of employees during the financial year 2012 was 1,001 (previous year:
1,011). On 31 December 2012, 1,012 employees, excluding the Executive Board, were employed
at Deutsche Borse AG. Of these 1,012 employees, 17 are employed on a limited-term employment
contract and 136 employees work part-time. 26 employees were on maternity leave or received
the German parental allowance. The average of full-time equivalent (FTE) employees during the
year was 933 (previous year: 915).

Intercompany agreements

As part of the concluded profit transfer agreement between Clearstream Holding AG and Deutsche
Borse AG, Clearstream Holding AG is obliged to transfer its entire net income for the year to
Deutsche Borse AG, less any losses carried forward from the previous year and the amount to be
added to the reserves, as required by section 300 of the AktG. Simultaneously, Deutsche Borse AG
is required to equalise any losses incurred at Clearstream Holding AG during the year through loss
absorption, provided that such losses have not already been balanced by transfers from other
retained earnings added during the term of the contract.

On 2 March 2010, Deutsche Boérse AG entered into a control agreement ("Beherrschungsvertrag”)
with Clearstream Banking AG. As part of this agreement, Clearstream Banking AG subordinates the
management of its company to Deutsche Borse AG, and Deutsche Borse AG has the right to give
instructions to the Executive Board of Clearstream Banking AG with respect to the management of
the company.

Combined management report
The managements reports of Deutsche Borse AG and Deutsche Borse Group were combined in

accordance with section 315 (3) of the HGB in conjunction with section 289 (3) of the HGB and
German Accounting Standard (GAS) 20 (22).

Group structure

Deutsche Borse AG prepares a set of consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements are published in the electronic version of the German Federal Gazette and are also
available at the Company's premises.
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Shareholders

The Deutsche Borse AG has received the following notifications pursuant to § 21 WpHG:
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Discloser |Domicile and country in which the  |Date investment Over-/ in acc. with sections 22,
or place of resid: of the [reached, ded d hold 125 and 25a of the WpHG (%) (voting rights)
disdoser is located fell below threshold |(+/-)
Deutsche Bdrse AG Frankfurt/Main, Germany 17.02.2012 + 3,00%]n.a. 4,94% 9,533,
8lackRock Advisors Holdings, Inc. New York, USA 01.12. 2009 + 3,00)6+sec1ion 22(1) sentence 1n0.6in 3,35%, 6.526.163]
jconjunction with section 22 (1)
sentence 2 of the WpHG
lack k Finandal Inc. New York, USA 14.04.2011 + 5,00%|section 22 (1) sentence 1no.6in 5,04%, 9.821174
conjunction with section 22(1}
2 of the WpHG
BlackRock Holdco 2, inc. Delaware, USA 14.04.2011 + 5,00%|section 22(1) sentence 1no.6in 5,04% 9.821.174§
[conjunction with section 22(1)
sentence 2 of the WpHG
Black Rock Group Limited London, United Kingdom 07.12.2012 + 3,00%|section 22(1) sentence 1no. 6in 3,00% 5.790.525|
conjunction with section 22{1)
sentence 2 of the WpHG
BlackRock, fnc. New York, USA 12.04.2011 + 5,00%|section 22 (1) sentence 1no. 6in 5,01% 9.773.982f
conjunction with section 22(1)
2of the WpHG
Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc Edinburgh, United Kingdom 16.05.2011 - 3,00%| 1.50344 % of the voting rights in 1,50%| 2.931.849(
acc. with section 22 (1) sentence 1
of the WpHG and 0.00006 % of the
voting rights in acc. with section 22
(1) sentence 1 no. 6in conjunction
with section 22 (1) sentence 2of
the WpHG
Royal Bank of Scotland N.v. Amsterdam, Netherlands 16.05.2011 - 3,00%[n.a. 1,50%| 2.931.719)
BR Jersey intemnational Holdings, LP. St. Helier, Jersey, Channel Islands 08.02.2012 + 3,00%|section 22 (1} sentence 1no. 6in 3,58% 6.981 055
[conjunction with section 22(1)
sentence 2 of the WpHG
BlackRock International Holdings, Inc. New York, USA 02.08.2012 + 3,00%|section 22 (1} sentence 1no. 6in 3,58% 6.981.055
conjunction with section 22{1)
sentence 2 of the WpHG
RFS Holdings B.V. [Amsterdam, Netherands 16.05.2011 - 3,00%(section 22(1) sentence 1no. 10of 1,50% 2.931.719
[the WpHG
RBS Holdings N.V. [Amsterdam, Netherlands 16.05.2011 - 3,00%]section 22 (1) sentence 1no. 1of 1,50%| 2.931.719f
the WPHG
Capital Research and Management Company jLos Angeles, USA 01.10.2011 - 3,00%|section 22 (1} sentence 1no. 6of 2,88% 5.562.043]
the WpHG
Franklin Mutual Advisers, LLC Washington, USA 12.10.2011 - 3,00%|section 22(1) sentence 1n0. 6of 2,96%| 5.771.503
the WpHG
Sun Life of Canada (U.S.) Finandal Services  |Boston, USA 19.12.2011 - 3,00%(section 22(1) sentence 1no.6in 2,92%, 5.699.639
Holdings, Inc. with section 22(1)
2 of the WpHG
Sun Life Financial (U.5.) Investments LLC Wellesley Hills, USA 19.12.2011 - 3,00%|section 22(1) sentence 1no. 6in 2,92% 5.699.639
confunction with section 22(1)
sentence 2 of the WpHG
Sun Life Finandiat {U.5.) Holdings, Inc. Wellesley Hills, USA 19.12.2011 - 3,00%|section 22(1) sentence 1no. 6in 2,92%)| 5.699.639)
conjunction with section 22(1)
sentence 2 of the WpHG
Sun Life Giobal Investments Inc. Toronto, Canada 19.12.2011 - 3,00%|section 22(1) sentence 1no. 6in 2,92%| 5.699.639)
conjunction with section 22{(1)
2 of the WpHG
Sun Lite Assurance Company of Canada- U.S. |Wellesley Hilis, USA 19.12 2011 - 3,00%|section 22(1) sentence 1no.6in 2,92%,| 5.699.639
Operations Holdings, Inc. conjunction with section 22 (1}
sentence 2 of the WpHG
Sun Life Financial Inc. Toronto, Canada 19.12.2011 - 3,00%]section 22(1) sentence 1no. 6in 2,92% 5.699.639)
conjunction with section 22(1)
sentence 2 of the WpHG
Massachusetts Finanda) Services Company {Boston, USA 19.12.2011 - 3,00%|section 22 (1) sentence 1no. 6of 2,92% 5.699.639]
MFS ilhe WPHG
Credit Sulsse Group AG Zurich, Switzertand 23.05.2012 5,00%
section 25a of the WpHG
section 25 of the WpHG
sections 21, 22 of the WpHG
Credit Suisse Securities (Europe} Umited London, United Kingdom 23,05.2012 - S5,00%]sections 21, 22 of the WpHG
The Capital Group Companies Los Angeles, USA 02.10.2012 - 5,00%]sections 21, 22 of the WpHG
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{Discloser Domicile and country in whichthe  |Date investment Over-/ {Reporting |Attribution in acc. with sections 22,
d le or place of residk of the hed, ded or |und threshold [25 and 25a of the WpHG (%) (voting rights}
disclosar is located fell below threshold [{+/-)
Morgan Stanley Delaware, USA 29.05.2012 - 5,00% 3,58% 6.834.833]
section 253 of the WpHG 2,31%| 4.462.154
section 25 of the WpHG L17%| 2.253.884
sections 21, 22 of the WpHG 0,06%; 118.755)
Morgan Stanley | Holding: Del usa 29.05.2012 - 1,03% 1.984.463|
1,00%| 1.930.473|
0,03% 53.
London, United Kingdom 25.05.2012 - 0,88%| 1.693.951]
London, United Kingdom 29.05.2012 - 0,88% 1.693.951]
London, United Kingdom 29.05.2012 - 0,88% 1.693.951)
Morgan Stanley & Co Intemational Pic London, United Kingdom 29.05.2012 - 2,99% 5.775.662|
section 25a of the WpHG 2,11% 4.081.71]
section 25 of the WpHG 0,88% 1.693.951
Deka Bank Deutsche Girozentrale Frankfurt/Main, Germany 11.05.2012 + 5,00%| 5,70% 11.008.66
section 25 of the WpHG 0,81% 1567.
sections 21, 22 of the WpHG 4,89% 9.441 66!
Credit Suisse AG 2urich, Switzerland 23.05.2012 - 5,00%! 1,34% 2.587.
section 25a of the WpHG 0,02%, 39.4;
section 25 of the WpHG 0,04% 71.843]
sections 21, 22 of the WpHG 1,28% 2.476.223]
Credit Suisse Investments UK London, United Klnldom 23.05.2012 - 5,00%|sections 21, 22 of the WpHG 1,28% 2.471.378
Credit Suisse investment Holdings UK London, United Kingdom 23.05.2012 - 5,00%|sections 21, 22 of the WpHG 1,28% 2.471.378]
Warbug Invest Kapitalanlagegeselischaft Hamburg Germany 21.05.2012 - 3,00%]sections 21, 22 of the WpHG 1,61% 3.108.037
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German corporate governance code

On 10 December 2012, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board of Deutsche Borse AG
jointly issued the updated declaration of conformity in accordance with section 161 of the AktG
and made it available to shareholders on a permanent basis on the website of Deutsche Borse
Aktiengesellschaft.

Frankfurt am Main, 11 March 2013

Deutsche Borse Aktiengesellschaft

The Executive Board

% %ﬁ/é/ ' L—:? %/

Reto Francloni Andreas Preuss Frank Gerstenschlager

¢ /féc% Hots (s S Zorote

Gregor Hauke Stars Jeffrey Tessler



ETC Acquisition Corp.

Revenues:
Revenue

Expenses:
Administrative costs

Total expenses

Income

ASSETS
Accounts receivable
Receivable from affiliates
Current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES, AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Total liabilities
MEMBER'S EQUITY
Total member's equity

Total liabilities and member's equity

Year Ended December 31,
2012
$125,000
$125,000

December 31,

2012

$0
$3,634,963

3,634,963
3,634,963

0)

3,634,963

$3,634,963



Exhibit D

2.Direct Edge Holdings
LLC

e Direct Edge ECN LLC
d/b/aRoute

e EDGA Exchange, Inc.
e EDGX Exchange, Inc.



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries

2012 Statement of Income

Revenue
Commission Revenue
Market Data

Other Income

Total Revenue
Expense

Trade related Expense
Execution and clearance fees

Rebates
Total Trade Related Expense

Gross Profit

Fixed Expense
Compensation and Benefits
Communications and Data Processing
Depreciation and Amortization
Professional Fees
Other Expense

Total Fixed Expense
Net Income (Loss) Before Tax
Income Taxes

Net Income

Notes:

-DEH and DEI represent consolidated financial
statements
-DEH and DER represent audited financials

Direct Edge Direct Edge,

Holdings Inc. DE Route
(DEH) (DEI) EDGA EDGX {DER)
514,914,355 527,422,068 113,255,902 414,336,166 62,712,720

47,023,574 46,761,949 10,769,096 35,992,853
20,008,174 19,939,979 25,747

581,946,103 594,123,996 124,024,998 450,329,019 62,738,467
148,500,846 167,856,428 73,029,826 94,826,603 55,864,851
330,044,278 330,044,278 13,866,508 316,177,770
478,545,124 497,900,706 86,896,334 411,004,373 55,864,851

103,400,979 96,223,290 37,128,664 39,324,646 6,873,616

17.8% 16.2% 29.9% 8.7% 11.0%
29,293,740 29,101,240 14,400,620 14,400,620 192,500
24,569,022 21,199,696 7,399,474 12,600,222 3,369,326

6,009,268 5,294,338 2,089,327 3,205,012 714,929
11,088,255 10,728,771 5,489,386 5,489,386 359,484
4,615,258 4,607,713 2,178,857 2,178,858 7,494
75,575,543 70,931,758 31,557,664 37,874,098 4,643,733
27,825,436 25,291,532 5,571,000 1,450,548 2,229,883
9,359,520 9,359,520 1,007,750 570,203
18,465,916 15,932,012 4,563,250 880,345 2,229,883




Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Statement of Financial Condition
December 31, 2012

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations
Fixed assets, at cost, less accum depreciation

Goodwill

Deferred tax asset

Intercompany Receivable

Intangible assets, less accumulated amortization

Other assets

Total Assets
Liabilities and Members' Equity

Liabilities

Payable to brokers, dealers and clearing organizations
Rebates payable

Activity remittance fees payable

Loans payable

Intercompany Payable

Accrued compensation and other accrued expenses

Total Liabilities

Members' Equity

Total Liabilities and Members® Equity

Notes:

-DEH and DEI represent consolidated financial
statements
-DEH and DER represent audited financials

Direct Edge
Holdings Direct Edge, DE Route
(DEH) Inc. (DEI) EDGA EDGX (DER)
72,018,280 57,693,676 17,590,184 27,760,548 10,864,841
46,724,699 46,724,699 11,146,084 33,259,936
11,795,968 11,795,968
34,783,202 10,953,202
41,701,746 41,701,746
8,862,782 4,810,721
1,236,983 1,236,983
6,709,920 6,092,082
214,970,798 185,061,138 28,736,268 61,020,484 15,675,562
2,484,154 2,484,154
13,587,715 13,587,715 199,130 13,388,585
35,874,667 35,874,667 7,912,163 27,962,504
25,000,000 25,000,000
13,427,121 7,719,590 5,707,531 279,822
10,402,967 10,383,714 1,298
87,349,503 98,273,216 15,830,882 47,059,918 2,763,976
127,621,295 86,787,922 12,905,386 13,960,566 12,911,585
214,970,798 185,061,138 28,736,268 61,020,484 15,675,561
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Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries

Index
December 31, 2012

Page(s)
Independent AUdItOr's REPOIt ..o ar s aess aeessresns 1
Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition ..........ccviviieiiiiiniiniii e saesnenes 2
Consolidated Statement of Operations ... reccienireiinrnenei e sssesssssssesssesss 3
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members' EquUity........cc.ccooviivninicniicinnni e 4
Consolidated Statement of Cash FIOWS........cccciiiiiiii e 5

6-15

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatemMENtS.......cccovvvvirereiieiiiiiiiieierereissssrreeeesersressssressssseasesssssesesssanes



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Direct Edge Holdings LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Direct Edge Holdings
LLC, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2012,
and the related consolidated statement of operations, consolidated changes in members’ equity
and cash flows for the year then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Direct Edge Holdings LLC at December 31, 2012, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance w1th
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

W&W‘ LLP

New York, NY
April 16, 2013

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, PricewaterhouseCoopers Center, 300 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10017
T: (646) 471 3000, F: (813) 286 6000, www.pwec.com/us



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition
December 31, 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72,018
Receivables from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations 46,725
Fixed assets, at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization of $24,462 11,796
Goodwill 34,783
Deferred tax asset 41,702
Intangible assets 1,237
Other assets 6,710
Total assets $ 214,971
Liabilities and Member's Equity
Liabilities
Payable to brokers and dealers $ 2,484
Rebates payable 13,588
Activity remittance fees payable 35,875
Loans payable 25,000
Accrued compensation 6,835
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,568
Total liabilities 87,350

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 6)

Member's equity

Total member's equity 127,621
Total liabilities and member’s equity $ 214,971

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Revenues
Commissions and fees $ 514,914
Market data 47,024
Connectivity and member fees 19,903
Other revenues 105
Total revenues 581,946
Expenses
Rebates 330,044
Execution, routing and clearance fees 148,501
Communications and data processing 24,569
Employee compensation and benefits 29,294
Depreciation and amortization 6,009
Professional fees 11,088
Other 4,615
Total expenses 554,121
Net income before taxes 27,825
Income taxes 9,360
Net Income $ 18,466

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

3



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members' Equity
Year Ended December 31, 2012

Member's
Equity

(Dollars in thousands)
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 197,600
Distribution to Members (90,000)
Additional paid in capital - stock options 1,556
Net income 18,466
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 127,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

4



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2012

(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred tax asset
Stock Option amortization
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations
Other assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Rebates payable
Accrued compensation
Payable to brokers and dealers
Activity remittance fees payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Distribution to Members
Credit Revolver

Net cash provided by financing activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year

End of year
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

$ 18,466

6,009
1,176
1,556

(1,551)
4,266

957
(239)
(1,227)
(2,300)

(842)

26,272

(6,419)
(6.419)

(90,000)
25,000

(65,000)

(45,147)

117,165
$ 72,018

Cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds were $3.6 million and for interest expense was $59

thousand for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

1. Organization and Description of the Business

Direct Edge Holdings LLC, (the “Company"), a Delaware limited liability company, is the parent
company of two wholly owned operating subsidiaries, Direct Edge ECN, LLC, d/b/a DE Route
("DER") and Direct Edge Inc ("DEI"). The Company has no business operations beyond its status
as a holding company.

DEI is the parent company of two wholly owned subsidiaries, EDGA Exchange Inc (“EDGA") and
EDGX Exchange Inc (‘EDGX"), collectively the “Exchanges”. EDGA and EDGX independently
operate as national securities exchanges. DEI’s operations are limited to facilitating connectivity
and member services to both EDGA and EDGX.

DER operates as a routing broker-dealer for the Exchanges, by sending orders to other market
centers for execution in accordance with the Exchanges’ member order instructions and
requirements. DER is registered as a broker-dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA"), National Stock
Exchange, Chicago Stock Exchange, CBOE Stock Exchange, Nasdaq Stock Market, New York
Stock Exchange, EDGA and EDGX.

2 Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent short-term investments with an original maturity of less than
90 days and cash. The carrying amount of such cash equivalents approximates their fair value due
to the short-term nature of these instruments. As of December 31, 2012 the balance principally
consist of short term investments and cash held of $70.7 million.

Broker Dealer and Exchange Activities

Commissions and fees earned and related expenses, including execution and clearance fees and
rebates are recorded on a trade date basis. Fees include commissions and fees eamed and trade
expenses incurred by DER and the Exchanges. The Company pays Section 31 fees to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for supervision and regulation of securities markets. This
regulatory sales fee is in turn charged to the members of the Exchanges. Any amount receivable
at December 31, 2012 is recorded as activity remittance fee receivable.

Market Data Revenue

As members of the Consolidated Tape Association and the Unlisted Trading Privileges plan, the
Company earns market data revenue for displaying its quotes and reporting its trades. Revenue is
based on the Company's quote and trade reporting activity. Revenue is recorded for the period
transaction data is provided on an accrual basis.

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Management estimates that the fair value of financial instruments recognized on the consolidated
Statement of Financial Condition (including receivables, payables and accrued expenses)



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

approximates their carrying value; as such financial instruments are short-term in nature, bear
interest at current market rates or are subject to frequent repricing.

Depreciation and Amortization

Furniture and fixtures, computer hardware, software, equipment and intangible assets are being
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are
amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease or the estimated useful lives of
the improvements. In accordance with the provisions of subtopic 350 of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification for Intangibles-Goodwill and other ("ASC 350"), the Company capitalizes
certain costs associated with the development of internal use software at the point at which the
conceptual formulation, design and testing of possible software project alternatives have been
completed. The Company capitalizes employee compensation and related benefits incurred from
the commencement of the preliminary software project stage. Once the product is ready for its
intended use, such costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over three years. The Company
reviews the amounts capitalized for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company applies the provisions of ASC 350, which requires that goodwill and intangible
assets with an indefinite useful life no longer be amortized, but instead, be tested for impairment
annually or when an event occurs or circumstances change that signify the existence of
impairment.

Income Taxes
The Company is a Limited Liability Company, and as such, does not file consolidated federal
income tax returns. The Company pays state income taxes in select states where business

activities require such payments.

DEl is established as a corporation and files a consolidated federal income tax return. For state
and local income tax returns, DEI follows state guidelines, filing either a consolidated return, or
filing separate returns for DEI and each of its subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the DEI consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Valuation allowances are established when
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that, in the opinion of management, is more
likely than not realizable.

The Company has adopted guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. This guidance
describes how uncertain tax positions should be recognized, measured, presented and disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements to determine whether the tax positions meet the “more-likely-
than-not” criteria to be sustained by the applicable tax authority. Tax benefits related to positions
that do not meet the “more-likely-than-not” threshold would not be recognized in the current year.
The Company policy is to accrue interest and penalties associated with unrecognizable tax benefits
in income tax expense in the Statement of Operations, and the corresponding liability in income
taxes payable or income taxes receivable, net in the Statement of Financial Condition.
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Stock-Based Compensation
Employees of the Company participate in a stock option plan (the “Stock Plan”). The purpose of
the Stock Plan is to provide long-term incentive compensation, in the form of the Company's stock-

related awards, to employees.

Stock-based compensation is measured based on the grant date fair value of the awards. These
costs are amortized over a period of 5 years.

Certain employees of the Company also participate in a phantom stock unit plan (‘PSUP"). The
PSUP was created to provide a long term incentive to employees who started at an early stage of
the Company. No grants have been made under this plan since June, 2010. Terms of the PSUP
are such that payment for units granted occurs only upon a change in control, as defined by the
plan. Given the contingent nature of the PSUP, expense related to the settiement of units will be
recorded only upon a change in control.

In 2011 and 2012, subsequent and related to two extraordinary distribution to members, the
Company established Restricted Cash Awards for PSUP unit holders under the terms and
conditions of the Restricted Cash Award Agreements. Such awards established deferred cash
payment to be paid to each PSUP unit holder pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Restricted Cash Award Agreements.

3. Receivables from Brokers, Dealers and Clearing Organizations

Receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations primarily represents net commissions
of $20.7 million, market data receivables of $11.4 million, regulatory sales fee receivable of $12.3
mitlion, and connectivity and member fees receivable of $2.3 million.

4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2012, the Company had goodwill of $34.8 million. Goodwill of $11.0 million
resulted from the purchase of DER by its initial investor and $23.8 million resulted from the
purchase of the ISE on December 23, 2008.

At December 31, 2012, the Company had intangible assets with definitive lives of $1.2 million, net
of $238 thousand of amortization. The net intangible assets resulted from the purchase of
memberships to the Consolidated Tape Association and Unlisted Trading Privileges plan.

Under ASC 350, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment, at a
minimum, on an annual basis, or when an event occurs or circumstances change that signify the
existence of impairment. During 2012, the Company tested the goodwill and intangible assets for
impairment based on its assessment of fair value of the reporting unit in comparison to its book
value and concluded that there was no impairment.
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5. Fixed Assets

(Dollars in thousands)
Fixed assets comprise the following:

Computer software $
Computer hardware

Equipment

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Total Fixed Assets, Net $

6. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

19,480
8,335
1,085
5,112
1,246

36,258

(24,462)

11,796

The Company and its subsidiaries, from time to time, may be subject to examinations and inquiries

by various regulatory and self-regulatory bodies. In the opinion of management, based on

consultation with legal counsel, any adverse outcome with regard to these potential matters would
not likely have a material adverse effect on the results of operations or the financial position of the

Company.

DEI has an obligation under a sublease agreement for office space with Knight Capital Group
("KCG") extended to 2021 with certain rental increases included within the agreement. Aggregate

annual rent for office space at December 31, 2012 is listed below:

(Dollars in thousands)

2013 $
2014

2015

2016

2017

2018 and later years

$

1,078
1,078
1,078
1,097
1,191
3,772

9,296

Occupancy expense for 2012 was $1.2 million and is included in other expenses on the Statement

of Operations.

The Company has an obligation under a lease agreement for certain hardware extended to 2013.

Aggregate annual lease expense for the hardware at December 31, 2012 is listed below:

(Dollars in thousands)

2013 $
2014
2015
2016
$

4,586
3,049
1,366

80
9,081
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Expenses relating to lease agreements for hardware for 2012 were $7.3 million and included within
communication and data processing on the Statement of Operations.

7. Loans and Credit

In December 2012, DEI entered into a credit agreement with the Bank of Montreal. The agreement
provides DEI a revolving credit line of up to $50.0 million until December 7, 2015, the date of
termination. The Company is a guarantor of this agreement. Terms include the ability for DEI to
choose amongst interest rate options, which each have varying repayment and other terms. In
addition to the interest assessed on the borrowed amount, an additional fee will be assessed on
the unused portion of the $50.0 million available as well as a non-refundable upfront fee of 0.5% on
the amount of Commitment at the closing date, regardless of whether any credit is use. Under the
conditions of the agreement, the Company must maintain a leverage ratio of under 2:1 and a fixed
charge covered ratio of at least 1.3:1. During 2012, interest expense related to the revolver,
included in the other expense line on the Statement of Operations, was $59 thousand and the
upfront fee of $250 thousand is contained in other expense line on the Statement of Operations. At
December 31, 2012, the Company had $25.0 million in loans outstanding, the leverage ratio was
.7:1 and the fixed charge ratio was 3.5:1.

8. Employee Benefit Plans

Employees of DEI are eligible to participate in a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the “Plan”). In July of
2009, the Company became its sole administrator. Under the terms of the Plan, the Company is
required to make contributions to the Plan equal to 100% of the contributions made by each
participant, up to certain limits. For 2012, the total expense recognized by the Company and
included in Employee compensation and benefits on the Statement of Operations with respect to
the Plan was approximately $582 thousand.

In August 2010, the Company created a Stock Option Plan, in which employees receive stock units
as a portion of their total compensation. Awards vest, with certain restrictions on exercisability,
over the earlier of three years or upon a change in control. Subject to vesting, awards are
exercisable on the earliest of a change in control, an IPO or five years from the grant date. Awards
are no longer exercisable ten years from the grant date, and are canceled if employment is
terminated before the end of the relevant vesting period.

The Company measures compensation cost related to the option awards based on the estimated
fair value of the Company at the date of grant and utilizing assumptions such as the risk free rate
and expected life of the option of 6.75 years to determine the grant price per option. For 2012, the
total expense recognized by the Company and included in Employee compensation and benefits
on the Statement of Operations with respect to the Stock Option Plan was $1.6 million. The
following table summarizes share activity during 2012:
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Weighted
No. of Options Average
(in thousand) Grant Date

Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 470 $ 16.90
Granted 39 14.15
Vested
Surrendered (24) 15.82
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 485 16.73

There is $4.5 million of unamortized compensation related to the unvested awards outstanding at
December 31, 2012. The cost of these unvested awards is expected to be recognized over the
weighted average remaining life of 2.8 years.

In connection with extraordinary distribution to members in 2011 and 2012, the Company
established Restricted Cash Awards and related Restricted Cash Award Agreements for
employees who participated in the Phantom Stock Unit Plan ("PSUP"). In December of 2012, the
Board of Managers of the Company determined that the payment terms of the 2011 Restricted
Cash Awards would be accelerated and paid in December 2012. The Company recorded expense
of approximately $3.4 million in December 2012 related to such payment.

9. Income Taxes

The Company is a multiple-member limited liability company that is treated as a partnership for
federal income tax purposes and, accordingly, is not subject to federal and state corporate income
taxes. The domestic corporate subsidiaries of the Company, DE| and the Exchanges, are subject
to federal, state and local income taxes and will be included in the filing of a consolidated federal
income tax return with combined and separate state and local income tax returns being filed.

The Company's provision for income taxes consists of the following:

(Dollars in thousands)

Current

Federal $ 5,848
State 2,335
Total Current Tax $ 8,184
Deferred

Federal $ 2,153
State 977
Total Deferred Tax $ 1,176
Provision for Income Tax $ 9,360

11
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The difference between the Company's consolidated effective tax rate of 33.6% and the U.S.
federal statutory tax rate of 35% is primarily due to an increase for state and local income taxes
netted by a decrease for a change in the state rate applicable to deferred taxes and a decrease for
income earned at the partnership level, which is not subject to income tax.

DEI has an effective tax rate of 37% and DEH, including DER, has an effective tax rate of 0%.

The Company's deferred tax assets/(liabilities) included in Deferred tax assets on the Statement of
Financial Condition are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Deferred Tax Assets
Goodwill 40,833
Stock Compensation 1,562
Other 1,400
Total Deferred Tax Assets 43,794

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Goodwill (558)
Intemally developed software (1,449)
Other (85)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (2,093)
Net Deferred Tax Asset 41,702

Based on its recent history of cumulative eamings, the Company believes that its net deferred tax
assets are more likely than not realizable and accordingly has not recorded a valuation allowance.

12
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10.

11.

As for liabilities for uncertain tax positions, the Company had no liabilities at the beginning of 2012
and no liabilities for uncertain tax liabilities at year-end. The Company and its subsidiaries file
income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. The Company has
open tax years for U.S. federal income tax and various state filings for calendar tax years ending
2008 and forward. The Company is currently under examination by the Intemnal Revenue Service
for its partnership tax return for the tax year ended December 31, 2010. Under this examination,
the Internal Revenue Service has issued a Notice of Waiver of Ciosing, proposing no change to the
2010 return. The Company and its subsidiaries are currently not under examination by any
additional taxing jurisdictions

Related Party Transactions

On July 23, 2007, the Company entered into a Transition Services Agreement (“TSA”) with KCG.
Under the terms of the agreement, KCG would provide certain technological and administrative
services, in addition to facility overhead, to the Company as it transitioned from a wholly-owned
subsidiary to a majority-owned subsidiary. The contract remained in effect as the Company
transitioned from a majority-owned subsidiary to an independent company. In 2012, expense
related to the TSA amounted to $193 thousand which is included in the relevant line items on the
consolidated Statement of Operations. In addition to the TSA, the Company holds a sublease
agreement for office space with Knight Equity Markets, an affiliate of KCG, which amounted to $1.1
million during 2012 and is included within other expenses on the consolidated Statement of

Operations.

Prior to the merger, the Company entered into a “Regulatory Services Agreement” with ISE LLC.
The agreement commenced with the close of the acquisition of the ISE by the Company. Under
the terms of the agreement, the ISE LLC would provide certain regulatory oversight services to the
ISE Stock Exchange. In November 2010, the Company entered into a “Mutual Services
Agreement, under which the ISE and the Company charge each other for mutualiy provided
technological services. During 2012, expense related to the Regulatory Services agreement and
Mutual Services Agreement was $894 thousand, and $2.1 million respectively. The Company
charged the ISE $813 thousand in relation to the Mutual Services Agreement.

During 2012, three members of the Company were also members of the Exchanges. During 2012,
commissions earned, net of rebates paid or accrued to those members, amounted to $20.3 million
and membership and connectivity fees amounted to $3.8 million.

The Company routes transactions to three member affiliates. These affiliates either rebate or
charge fees to the Company for these transactions. During 2012 rebates received or accrued, net
of transaction fees paid or accrued amounted to $934 thousand.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations of Credit Risk

DER clears all of its securities transactions through a clearing broker on a fully disclosed basis.
Accordingly, substantially all of DER's credit exposures are concentrated with the clearing broker
and the Exchanges. Additionally, pursuant to the terms and conditions between DER and the
clearing broker, the clearing broker has the right to charge DER for losses that result from a
counterparty's failure to fulfill its obligations. DER has the ability to pursue collection from or
performance of the counterparty. DER's policy is to monitor the credit standing of the clearing
broker and all counterparties with which it conducts business.
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As the right to charge DER has no maximum amount and applies to all trades executed through the
clearing broker, the Company believes there is no maximum amount assignable to this right. At
December 31, 2012, the Company has recorded no liabilities with regard to the right.

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in financial institutions, which at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Fair Value Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value Measurement—rFair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The authoritative guidance around fair value establishes a framework for
measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy used to classify the inputs used in measuring fair
value. The hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques into three levels. The level in the
fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement falls is determined based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The levels of the fair value
hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1—Fair value is based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible to
the Company for identical assets or liabilities. These generally provide the most reliable evidence
and are used to measure fair value whenever available. Active markets are defined as having the
following characteristics for the measured asset/liability: (i) many transactions, (ii) current prices,
(iii) price quotes not varying substantially among market makers, (iv) narrow bid/ask spreads and
(v) most information publicly available.

Level 2—Fair value is based on significant inputs, other than Level 1 inputs, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability
through corroboration with observable market data. Level 2 inputs include quoted market prices in
active markets for similar assets and liabilities, quoted market prices in markets that are not active
for identical or similar assets or liabilities, and other market observable inputs.

Level 3—Fair value is based on at least one or more significant unobservabie inputs for the asset
or liability. The inputs reflect the Company's assumptions about the inputs market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Company did not have any assets or liabilities carried at fair value; however, it is required by
US GAAP to disclose the fair value of certain financial instruments that are not carried at fair value.
For the following financial instruments the carrying amount equals or approximates fair value: cash
and cash equivalents, receivable and payable to brokers and dealers, rebates payable, activity
remittance fees payable, accrued compensation expenses and other liabilities and long-term debt.
The Company's Level 1 financial instruments represent cash and cash equivalents.

The Company's remaining financial instruments would be characterized as Level 2.
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Net Capital Requirements

DER is a member of FINRA and is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule ("Rule 15¢3-1") of the
SEC, which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital, as defined, equal to the greater of
$100,000 or 6 2/3% of aggregate indebtedness, as defined. At December 31, 2012, Direct Edge
had net capital of $8.1 million which was $7.9 million in excess of the amount required of $184
thousand. The percentage of aggregate indebtedness to net capital was 34.23%.

DER is exempt from the SEC Rule 15¢3-3 under Paragraph (k)(2)(ii) because all transactions are
cleared through another broker-dealer on a fully disclosed basis.

Subsequent Events
The Company has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through April 19, 2013, which is
the date the consolidated Financial Statements were issued. There have been no material

subsequent events that occurred during such period that wouid be required to be recognized in the
consolidated Financial Statements as of or for the year ended December 31, 2012.
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Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Zurich

2012
Enclosure 1
Balance sheet as at Note 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
ASSETS CHF thousand CHF thousand
Current assets
Cash 1 349 100
Receivables 2 78.200 0
78.549 100
Non-current assets
Participations 3 28.566 0
Certificates of participation (loans) 4 175.863 0
204.429 0
TOTAL ASSETS 282.978 100
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 5 3 0
Accrued expenses and deferred income 6 11 0
Total current liabilities 14 0
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 7 508 0
Total non-current liabilities 508 0
Total liabilities 522 0
Equity
Share capital 100 100
Legal reserves
- Shareholders’ contribution reserve 8 490.755 0
Unappropriated surplus
- Profit carried forward 0 0
- Net profit for the year -208.399 0
282.456 100
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 282.978 100




Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Ziirich

2012

Enclosure 2
Income statement Note 2012 2011

CHF thousand CHF thousand
Net revenues 9 130.259 0
Staff costs 10 -26 0
Other operating expenses 11 -51.935 0
Operating results 78.298 0
Financial expense 4,12 -286.833 0
Financial income 13 628 0
Earnings before taxes -207.907 0
Taxes 14 -492 0
Net profit for the year -208.399 0




Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Zlrich
2012

Enclosure 3/1

Notes to the financial statements

1 Purpose of the Company

The purpose of the company is to maintain and manage interests in companies with activities related to stock
exchanges, financial infrastructure and financial services both domestically and internationally; the company can
also maintain interests in companies which operate their business on the company's own behalf.

The company can set up branches or subsidiaries both domestically and abroad and maintain an interest in other
companies both domestically and abroad, as well as operate any business which is indirectly or directly related to

the company purpose.

The company can acquire, mortgage, sell or administrate property domestically or abroad. It may enter into
financing arrangements on its own behalf and that of others, as well as become a party to guarantees, sureties and
similar legal transactions, specifically indemnifications for the parent company or other companies associated with

the Group or third parties.

It may hold an interest in Group financing arrangements, for which purpose it may extend or receive loans on
behalf of the parent company or other companies associated with the Group.

2 Share capital

The share capital, consisting of 100 restricted registered shares of CHF 1,000 each, is fully paid in and amounts to
CHF 100 thousand.

Eurex Global Derivatives AG is 100% owned by Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt.

Eurex Global Derivatives AG was established on 12 December 2011. The share purchase agreement between
Deutsche Borse AG, SIX Group AG and SIX Swiss Exchange AG governing the sale of the Swiss derivatives
business, including shares of Eurex Zurich AG, was concluded on 7 June 2011 and modified on 7 November 2011.
This share purchase agreement was completed on 30 April 2012, effective retroactively as of 1 January 2012.

Because the transfer of assets and contractual relationships related to the Swiss derivatives business of Eurex
Zurich AG (with the exception of the Swiss franc repo market and the OTC spot market) took place in the period
from January 2012 and April 2012 between SIX Swiss Exchange and Eurex Global Derivatives AG by means of
singular succession, the previous year's balance sheet figures are not comparable to this year's.

3 CO 663b para. 12 Risk Assessment

Eurex Global Derivatives AG is an integral part of the Eurex Group. The risk assessment was conducted within the
framework of the Group-wide risk management processes established by Eurex Clearing AG. Eurex Global
Derivatives AG also relies on the risk management processes of its parent, Deutsche Bérse AG. For that reason, a
separate risk assessment on the part of the Board of Directors of Eurex Global Derivatives AG was waived.



Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Zirich
2012

Enclosure 3/2

Notes to the financial statements

Accounting policies

As a general rule, the historical cost principle has been adopted for the financial statements. This is based on the
principle of individual valuation of assets and liabilities. Notes on any deviations from this principle are provided
on the relevant balance sheet items.

Cash

Cash includes cash in hand, balances with banks and in postal accounts as well as demand and time deposits
payable within no more than 90 days. These are valued at their nominal values.

Participations and certificates of participation (loans)

Participations and certificates of participation (loans) are stated at their acquisition price less accumulated
amortisation.

Receivables

Receivables are stated at their nominal value.

Provisions

Provisions are formed as required for operational reasons.

Taxes

Tax provisions are reserved on a full accrual method basis.



Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Zirich

2012
Enclosure 3/3
Notes to the financial statements 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
CHF thousand CHF thousand
4 Notes to the individual balance sheet and income statement items
1 Cash
Bank accounts 349 100
Total 349 100
2 Receivables
Eurex fees (Eurex Clearing AG) 12.991 -
Eurex fees (Eurex Frankfurt AG) 786 -
Eurex fees (Eurex Zurich AG) 123 -
Trade receivables for affiliated companies 7.014 -
Loans from affiliated companies 45.761 -
Tax receivables 11.525 -
Total 78.200 -

3 Participations

Participation - Eurex Zurich AG, Zurich 28.566 -
Total 28.566 -

4 Certificates of participation (loans)

B-series certificates of participation - Eurex Frankfurt AG 175.863 -
Total 175.863 -

Shares of Eurex Zurich AG and the B-series certificates of participation from Eurex Frankfurt AG were included in
the share purchase agreement dated 7 June 2011 between SIX Swiss Exchange AG and Eurex Global Derivatives

AG (see also 2 Share Capital).

The share capital of Eurex Zurich AG is held in equal shares of 50% each by Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Zurich,
and Deutsche Bérse AG, Frankfurt. The share capital amounts to CHF 10 million and is fully paid in.

The certificates of deposit issued by Eurex Frankfurt AG have a total nominal value of USD 2,600,000,000.00 and
are divided into 260,000 participation rights, each with a nominal value of USD 10,000.00, each having equal
rights. Of these, there are 221,000 A-series participation rights and 39,000 B-series. Series A is owned by Deutsche
Bérse AG, while series B was transferred from SIX Swiss Exchange AG to Eurex Global Derivatives AG. These
participation rights may only be transferred to companies affiliated with participation certificate holders. The
participation rights have an indefinite term.

The B-series certificates of participation from Eurex Frankfurt AG, Frankfurt, were posted by SIX Swiss Exchange
AG at a carrying amount of CHF 462,189,000.00. Due to the likelihood of permanent impairment, they were
written down to a value of CHF 175,862,901.87. This impairment is due to the fact that the certificates were part of
losses sustained by Eurex Frankfurt AG.



Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Zirich

2012
Enclosure 3/4
Notes to the financial statements 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
CHF thousand CHF thousand

5 Other liabilities
Trade payables for affiliated companies 3 -
Creditors 0 -
Total 3 -
6 Accrued expenses and deferred income
Salary accruals 3 -
Other accrued expenses and deferred income 8 -
Total 11 -
7 Provisions
Taxes 492 -
Provisions for bonuses 10 -
Provisions for outstanding leave 6 -
Total 508 -
8 Shareholders’ contribution reserve (premium)
Shareholders’ contribution reserve 490.755 -
Total 490.755 -

Capital reserves are generated by the transfer of the participation held by Eurex Zurich AG, Zurich, and the B-
series certificates of participation held by Eurex Frankfurt AG, Frankfurt, as per the terms of the share purchase
agreement dated 7 June 2011 (also see 2 Share Capital as well as 4.3 Participations and 4.4 Certificates of

Participation (loans)).



Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Ziirich

2012
Enclosure 3/5
Notes to the financial statements 2012 2011
CHF thousand CHF thousand
9 Net revenues

Income from transaction fees

Income from communications revenues
Income from sale of data

Income from agency agreements

Total

10 Staff costs

Wages and salaries
Social security expenses
Other staff costs

Total

11 Other operating expenses

Cost of agency agreements
Non-deductible input tax
Advisory costs

IT operating cost

Other operating expenses
Total

116.240 -
7.687 -
4.750 -
1.582 -

130.259 -

-18 .

-6 -

-38.873 -
-1.313 -
.13 .
-11.734 -
%) .
-51.935 -

Agency agreement costs include a variety of expenses that were first posted under other Group companies and then

carried at 15% as per the shareholders' agreement.



Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Zurich
2012

Enclosure 3/6

Notes to the financial statements 2012 2011

CHF thousand CHF thousand

12 Financial expense

Depreciation of capital assets from profit sharing See 4.4 -286.326 -
Foreign exchange expense -504 -

Other capital expense -3 -
Total -286.833 -
13 Financial income

Foreign exchange income 612 -
Other financial income 16 -
Total 628 -
14 Taxes

Direct federal tax and state and municipal taxes -492 -
Total -492 -

5 Fire insurance value of property, plant and equipment
Eurex Global Derivates AG, Zurich, does not own any property, plant or equipment.
6 Contingent liabilities

Deutsche Borse AG has issued a guarantee in favour of Eurex Clearing AG according to which Deutsche Borse AG
is required to provide Eurex Clearing immediately with such financial means (up to EUR 700,000,000.00) as are
needed at any time to fulfil its obligations arising from its clearing activities in those markets explicitly mentioned
in the guarantee.

As a company affiliated with Deutsche Bérse AG, Eurex Global Derivatives AG has entered into an
indemnification agreement for 15% of the risk related to the guarantee mentioned above. This amount is limited to
EUR 105,000,000.00 (15% of EUR 700,000,000.00).

There are no other matters that are required to be reported under Article 663b of the Code of Obligations.
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Enclosure 4

Proposal on the appropriation of the unappropriated surplus

Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Ziirich

The unappropriated surplus amounts to:

Carried forward from the previous year
Net profit/loss for the year

Accumulated loss to be carried forward

Appropriation of profit

The Board of Directors proposes that the unappropriated loss be carried forward.

11

2012
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
0
-208.399 0
-208.399 0



Exhibit D
4. Eurex Frankfurt AG



Balance sheet as at 31 December 2012
of Eurex Frankfurt Aktiengeselischaft, Frankfurt/Main

Assets 31/12/2012 31/12/2011 Shareholders’equity and liabilities 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
€ € thousand € € thousand
NON-CURRENT ASSETS "~ 'SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Intangible Assets Subscribed capital 6.000.000.00 6.000
Licences and similar rights 550.715.00 242 _
242 Capital reserve 7,158,086.34 7,158
Property, plart and equipment ~ _l{roﬁ_(ﬂag\_icipg rights 971,092,457.47 884,801
Operating and business equipment 190,482.39 260
190.482.39 260 Total shareholders’ equity 984,250.543.81 897,959
Finacial assets _PROVISIONS
Investments in subsidiaries 1.321,635,492.27 _.1.296,636 :P[cyif@n_srpr(p‘en__s_igrg and similar obfigations 1,704.176.27 2,492
Other loans 10,860.63 3 Provisions for taxes 21,980.418.08 26,773
1,321.646.352.90 1.296.639 Other provisions 14.309.162.63 12,865
Total non-current assets 1.322,387,550.29 1297141 Totat provisions 37,993,756.98 42,130
CURRENT ASSETS LIABILITIES
ivables and other assets Trade accounts payable 2.067.484.11 2,257
le accounts receivable 145.698.92 996 Accounts payable to affiliated companies 692,461,366.05 662,117
Accounts receivable from affiliated companies 381.469,157.98 305,188 Other liabilities 1.731,717.99 4,499
Other assets 12.837.960.20 4,597 thereof for taxes €1.600.887,02 (previous year €3.763 thousand)
394,452,817.10 7 Total liabitities 696,260,568.15 668,873
Bank balances 1.343.128.17 565 | ]
Totat cumrent assets 395,795.945.27 311,346 [ I
PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED CHARGES 321,373.38 415 7 | |
Total assets 1,718,504,863.94 1,608,962  Total shareholders squity and liabilities 1,718,504,868.94 1,608,962




Income statement
of Eurex Frankfurt Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt/Main
for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2012

2012 2011
€ € € thousand € thousand

Other operating income 130.801,111.41 154,997

thereof from currency transtation €49.506,75 (previous year: €39 thousand)
Personnel expenses

Wages and salaries -23,320,830.52 -22.445

Sociat security and expenses for pensions and other employee benefits -3,563,045.74 -26,883,876.26 -3,357 -25,802

thereof for pensions € -1.704.690, 30 (previous year: €-1.540 thousand)

Depreciation and amortization

of intangible assets and property. plant and equipment -264,034.48 -216
Other operating expenses -102,823,666.56 -103,121

thereof from currency transiation €-151.958,32 (previous year: €-322 thousand)
Income from profit transfer agreements 98,246,336.20 65,563
Income from other non-currert securities and loans 1,042,056.78 11
Other interest and similar income 2,418,285.40 2,077

thereof from affiliated companies €2.397.176,27 (previous year: €2.077 thousand)
Write-downs of non-current financial assets and current securities 0.00 -356
Interest and similar expenses -13.586.075.61 .28,812
____ thereof to affiliated companies €-12.675.637.54 (previous year: €-24,726 thousand)

thereof from discounting €-910.307,00 (previous year: €-682 thousand)
Net operating income 88,950,136 .88 64,441
Taxes on income -2.660,051.14 -7,329
Other taxes 1.796.26 -23.564
Net income (pﬂig_us_year: net loss) for the year 86,291,882.00 33,548
Allocations to profit participation rights 86.291,882.00 -33,548
Unappropriated surplus o 0.00 [+]
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Notes to the financial statements, financial year 2012

Accounting policies

The annual report of Eurex Frankfurt AG (hereinafter referred to as “Eurex Frankfurt”) for financial
year 2012 was prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB,
German Commercial Code) and the Aktiengesetz (AktG, German Stock Corporation Act).

The total cost accounting method was chosen for the income statement.
The Company is a medium-sized corporation as defined by section 267(2) of the HGB.

Fixed asset line items denominated in foreign currency have been transiated into euro amounts
using the exchange rates valid on the date of acquisition; in case of permanent impairment, the
conversion is at the period-end exchange rate.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency have been translated using the ECB
reference rate or the Bloomberg rates valid at the balance sheet date. If the assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency have a maturity of one year or less, then HGB sections 253 (1)
clause 1 and 252 (1) no. 4 subclause 2 were not applied.

Expenses and income in foreign currency were translated on the posting date at the ECB reference
rate or the Bloomberg rates.

Purchased intangible assets are carried at cost and amortised using the straight-line method or
valued at the lower fair value.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciable property, plant and equipment are
depreciated using the straight-line method over their useful life or valued at their lower fair value.
For movable assets, the tax simplification rules regarding the depreciation start date are applied in
their valid form on the respective date of acquisition. Low-value fixed assets with acquisition costs
up to €410 were written off directly in the financial year 2012 in accordance with section 6 (2) of
the German Income Tax Act (EstG). in this respect, no use was made of the option granted by
section 6(2a) EStG to create a compound item.

Investments in affiliated companies stated under financial assets and other loans are carried at
cost or the lower of fair value.

Receivables and other assets are always carried at their nominal amount. Recoverability of
receivables is considered individually, whilst latent risks are considered on a portfolio basis.

Provisions for pensions and other obligations have been stated along with the projected benefit
obligation on the basis of actuarial tables using the “2005 G" mortality tables (generation tables)



o

Eurex Frankfurt AG, Frankfurt am Main Page 2

developed by Dr Klaus Heubeck, modified by statistical information gathered by the German
Federal Statistical Office from 2006 to 2008.

Actuarial assumptions

31.12.2012 | 31.12.2011

% %

Discount rate 5.06 5.13
Salary growth 3.50 3.50
Pension growth 2.00 2.00
Fluctuation rate (up to age 50, thereafter 0.0 percent) 2.00 2.00

Calculations for the projected benefit obligation arising from the employee-financed Deferred
Compensation Programme were made on the basis of an interest rate of 5.06 percent (previous
year: 5,13 percent) along with actuarial tables using the “2005 G” mortality tables (generation
tables) developed by Dr Klaus Heubeck, modified by statistical information gathered by the
German Federal Statistical Office from 2006 to 2008.

As per section 246 (2) of the HGB, the amount of pension benefits to be paid as at the balance
sheet date was offset against the fair value of the asset, which is protected from the claims of
creditors and is intended exclusively to meet the liabilities arising from pension obligations or other
similar long-term obligations to employees (plan assets). The accumulated acquisition costs of this
asset are €13,778 thousand (previous year: €11,321 thousand).

The total asset, which corresponds to a 7.5 percent share in a special fund as defined by section 1
in conjunction with section 2 (3) of the German Investment Act (InvG), had a fair value at the
balance sheet date of €14,060 thousand (previous year: €10,738 thousand), which is equivalent
to the current value as defined by section 36 of the InvG. During the period under review, a
dividend of €51 thousand (previous year: €11 thousand) was paid, which corresponds to the
withdrawal for current pension payments, and which was immediately added back to the plan

asset.

A separate asset in the amount of €2,457 thousand (previous year: €2,239 thousand) was also
added. This asset is protected from any creditor claims and is thus not repayable on demand.

The other provisions have been estimated in consideration of all known risks and unknown
liabilities as at the balance sheet date and were estimated at the amount which is required to be
paid according to a reasonable commercial assessment, whereas the basis for determining
provisions for the Stock Bonus Plan is the price of Deutsche Borse AG shares at the reporting date.
The provisions for anniversary payments and early retirement were estimated using actuarial
principles of the amount to be paid, and for early retirees valued at present value. The projected
unit credit method was applied as the basis of this assessment. During the period under review,
the interest rate of 5.06 percent (previous year: 5.13 percent) published by the Bundesbank
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(German Central Bank) was adopted. The “2005 G" mortality tables created by Dr Klaus Heubeck
(with the modifications already mentioned) were the basis of these projections.

Deferred taxes are calculated in accordance with section 274 HGB on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts according to commercial law and their taxable values. Deferred tax
liabilities are only reported insofar as they exceed deferred tax assets. In view of the existing
single-entity relationship for tax purposes with Eurex Clearing AG, Eurex Repo GmbH and Eurex
Services GmbH, temporary differences between the carrying amounts according to commercial law
and their taxable values of these companies were accounted for at the level of the controlling
company, Deutsche Borse AG. Calculating deferred taxes is based on the combined income tax
rate of all the companies comprising a single-entity for tax purposes with Eurex Frankfurt, which
currently stands at 26.01 percent.

As at 31 December 2012, the excess of deferred tax assets amounted to €3.1 million. The excess
of deferred tax assets is mainly the result of differences in the carrying amounts in the provisions
for pensions, their related cover assets and non-current assets.

In accordance with section 274 (1) (2) HGB, the Company refrained from reporting the excess of
deferred tax assets. Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates in effect or expected

in Germany on the date they are recovered.
There is currently a uniform rate of corporation tax of 15 percent plus a solidarity surcharge of 5.5
percent. Taking trade tax into account, this results in a composite tax rate of 26.01 percent. There

were no carryforwards of tax losses as at the reporting date.

In accordance with section 253 (1) clause 2 of the HGB, these liabilities are treated with their
respective payment amounts as deferred items.

Notes to the balance sheet

Noncurrent assets

The performance of noncurrent assets is described in detail in the appendix.
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Investments in affiliated companies
As at 31 December 2012, Eurex Frankfurt had investments in affiliated companies as follows:

Page 4

Company Domicile Own equity in 2012 net profit loss in € | Equity interest
thous. thous. direct (indirect)
Eurex Bonds GmbH Germany 7,515 1,429 79.44 %
Eurex Clearing AG Germany 139,416 1,186" 100.00 %
Eurex Repo GmbH Germany 550 11,098" 100.00 %
Eurex Services GmbH Germany 1,182,469 86,7549 100.00 %
U.S. Exchange Holdings, Inc. us uUsD 0 USD -1,722 thousand 100.00 %
International Securities Exchange Holdings, us usD 1,721,482 USD 13,091 thousand (100.00 %)
Inc. thousand
International Securities Exchange, LLC us UsSD 61,261 USD 44,011 thousand (100.00 %)
thousand
ETC Acquisition Corp. us uUsD 3,639 USD 125 thousand (100.00 %)
thousand
Longitude LLC us USD 3,945 USD 3,923 thousand (100.00 %)
thousand
Longitude S.A. Luxembourg USD 454 USD USD -646 thousand (100.00 %)
thousand

Y Before profit transfer

Equity investments

As at 31 December 2012, Eurex Frankfurt held a direct stake of at least 20 percent in the

following companies:

Company Domicile Equity Net profit/loss 2012 Equity interest
direct (indirect)
Direct Edge Holdings, LLC us USD 126,290 USD 17,135 thousand (31.54 %)
thousand
The Options Clearing Corporation, USA us usD 12,766 usD 1,829 thousand (20.00 %)

thousand"
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Hanweck Associates, LLC, USA us USD 126 thousand USD -951 thousand (26.44 %)

! Figures as at 31 December 2011
Receivables from affiliated companies

This item includes receivables from products and services in the amount of €9,300 thousand
(previous year: €45,468 thousand), receivables from profit pooling agreements in the amount of
€98,246 thousand (previous year: €65,563 thousand) and receivables from cash pooling,
including interest accruals in the amount of €273,923 thousand (previous year: €194,157

thousand).
Equity

Fully paid-in share capital (subscribed capital) amounts to €6,000,000, divided into 6,000,000
no-par value registered shares.

The Company's capital reserves are €7,158 thousand (unchanged versus the previous year).

Issued participation certificates are recognised as equity. The whole of the net profit for the year in
2012 in the amount of €86,292 thousand (previous year: €33,548 thousand) was allocated to
participatory capital, which as at 31 December 2012 amounted to €971,093 thousand (previous
year: €884,801 thousand). As the fair value of the plan asset is higher than its acquisition cost
when deferred tax liabilities are taken into account, there is a block on distributions in accordance
with section 268 (8) of the HGB in the amount of € 209 thousand.

Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits

Pension liabilities on the basis of HGB section 246 (2) clause 2

€ thous.
Pension obligations payable 15,764
Fair value of plan assets (14,060)
Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits 1,704
Netting profit and loss

€ thous.
Expenses arising from pension obligations 1,137
Net expense stated under personnel expenses 1,137
Interest expense arising from pension obligations 890
Reversals of impairments to cover assets (865)
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Income from cover assets (177)
Net income stated under financial result 152

Other provisions

Composition of other provisions amounting to €14,309 thousand:

€ thous.

interest on taxes 3,387
Stock bonus programmes 3,754
Variable remuneration 2,834
Other personnel provisions 1,401
Outstanding invoices 2,034
Miscellaneous provisions 899

14,309

Liabilities

Liabilities are divided into the categories below. Lien rights or similar rights are not included in
liabilities.

Figures in € thousand Total amount | Thereof: up to 1
year

Trade payables (previous year) 2,068 2,068
(2,257) (2,257)
Liabilities towards affiliated 692,461 189,461
companies (previous year) (662,117) (159,117)
- of which trade payables 12,283 12,283
(previous year) (14,683) (14,683)
- of which other liabilities 680,178 177,178
(previous year) (647,434) (144,434)
Other liabilities (previous year) 1,732 1,732
(4,499) (4,499)
- of which from taxes (previous 1,601 1,601
year) (3,763) (3,763)
Total liabilities (previous year) 696,261 193,261
(668,873) (165,873)
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Liabilities towards affiliated companies in the amount of €503,000 thousand (previous year: €0)
concern a loan with a maturity of more than one year, but less than five years. The loan may be
terminated at any time by the creditor.

Disclosures to the income statement

Sales revenue

The Company does not generate any sales revenue. The connection fees generated by Eurex
Frankfurt in the year under review were transferred in full to Deutsche Borse AG and Eurex Zlrich

AG.

Other operating income

Other operating income amounted to €130,801 thousand (previous year: €154,997 thousand)
and mainly comprises revenue from management for DBAG (less the portion attributable to Eurex
Clearing AG) amounting to €112,581 thousand (previous year: €128,589 thousand) and for
Eurex Zirich AG amounting to €3,259 thousand (previous year: €6,222 thousand); revenue from
agency agreements for DBAG (€6,261 thousand; previous year: €8,773 thousand) and for other
Group companies (€3,124 thousand; previous year: €2,872 thousand); revenue from provision of
price information for DBAG (€2,468 thousand; previous year: €2,468 thousand); revenue from
services for European Energy Exchange, Leipzig (EEX) towards Deutsche Bérse AG (€1,117
thousand; previous year: €1,720 thousand).

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses amounted to €102,824 thousand (previous year: €103,121 thousand)
and mainly comprised costs arising from agency agreements (€40,089 thousand; previous year:
€43,796 thousand), costs for pricing and securities services (€30,020 thousand; previous year:
€32,924 thousand), non-deductible input tax (€14,583 thousand; previous year: €11,425
thousand), general consulting costs (€9,527 thousand; previous year: €6,877 thousand), costs for
advertising and marketing (€3,120 thousand; previous year: €3,001 thousand), costs for travel,
hospitality and representation (€1,932 thousand; previous year: €1,678 thousand), and expenses
relating to currency translation (€152 thousand; previous year: €322 thousand).

Auditor's fee

In accordance with section 285 (17) of the HGB, disclosures as to the auditor's fee are contained
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements of Deutsche Borse AG.
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Other financial obligations

Other financial obligations relate to lease, maintenance and other agreements arising from internal
obligations. In financial year 2013, payments to affiliated companies amounting to approximately
€36,591 thousand (previous year: €44,613 thousand) will be required. Obligations arise from
agency agreements towards DBAG (€31,795 thousand; previous year: €39,383 thousand),
towards U.S. Exchange Holdings (€4,686 thousand; previous year: €5,136 thousand) and
towards Clearstream Banking AG (€110 thousand; previous year: €94 thousand). In addition,
financial obligations exist in association with the use of various index data as product underlyings,
for example towards STOXX Ltd. The associated costs depend on the contracts negotiated in the
year under review in the respective products; for 2013, costs amounting to around €21,102
thousand (previous year: €25,412 thousand) are to be anticipated.

Furthermore, there are also financial obligations in 2013 towards KRX in the amount of €2,547
thousand for the provision of volume-related index licences traded on the leading Korean index
KOSPI, and for leasing contracts in the amount of €246 thousand).

Other disclosures

Supervisory Board

The members of the Supervisory Board are:

"Dr. Hugo Banziger Chairman of the Supervisory Board, Eurex Clearing AG,

Chairman Frankfurt/Main
President of the Board of Directors of Eurex Zlrich AG, Zurich,
Professor, London Schoo! of Economics, London (member until 15
August 2012, Chairman since 16 August 2012)

Prof. Dr. Reto Francioni Chairman of the Executive Board of Deutsche Borse AG

Vice Chairman Frankfurt/Main
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board from 4 May 2012 until 15

August 2012)

Richard Berliand Executive Director, Richard Berliand Limited, Longfield
(since 17 September 2012)

Serge Demoliere Member of the Executive Board, Landesbank Berlin AG, Berlin
(since 17 September 2012)

Martin Klaus Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, Swiss Investment Company
SIC Ltd., Zurich (since 17 September 2012)
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Susanne KloB

Gregor Pottmeyer

Dr. h.c. Petra Roth

GmbH

Head of Global Deposits & Payments, Deutsche Bank Privat- und
Geschaftskunden AG, Frankfurt am Main (since 17 September 2012)

Member of the Executive Board, Chief Financial Officer,
Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt am Main

Former Mayor of Frankfurt am Main
Member of the Advisory Council of Consileon Business Consultancy

Frankfurt/Main, (since 17 September 2012)

Members of the Supervisory Board who left in 2012

Prof. Dr. oec. HSG
Peter Gomez
Chairman

Walter Jirg Baumann
Matthias Frisch

Dr.-Ing. Michael Kuhn

Erik Tim Mdller

Dr. Roger Mller

Dr. Martin Reck

Dr. Urs Riegsegger

Jacques de Saussure

Chairman of the Supervisory Board, Eurex Clearing AG,
Frankfurt/Main

President of the Board of Directors of Eurex Zirich AG, Zurich,
and SIX Group AG, Zurich,

Professor of Business Studies, University of St. Gallen,

St. Gallen (until 30 April 2012)

Managing Director, Credit Suisse AG, Zurich (until 30 April 2012)
CEQ, UBS Investment Bank Switzerland, Zurich (until 30 April 2012)

Member of the Executive Board, Chief Information Officer,
Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt/Main until 31 December 2012)

Head of Department, investor Relations & Treasury,
Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt/Main (Vice Chairman
of the Supervisory Board from 4 May 2012 until 15 August 2012)

Managing Director, Legal Affairs, Deutsche Borse AG,
Frankfur/Main (until 16 September 2012)

Managing Director, Group Strategy, Deutsche Borse AG,
Frankfurt/Main (until 16 September 2012)

Chairman of the Group Executive Board, SIX Group AG,
Zurich (until 30 April 2012)

Managing Partner, Pictet & Cie, Banquiers,
Geneva (until 30 April 2012)
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Executive Board

The members of the Executive Board are:

Andreas Preuf3 Chief Executive Officer
Chairman
Jurg Spillmann responsible for Information Technology

Vice Chairman

Dr. Thomas Book responsible for Clearing/CCP

Gary Katz responsible for the International Securities Exchange

Michael Peters responsible for Sales & Marketing

Peter Reitz responsible for Business Development, Product Development

and services in the energy market

In 2012, the total compensation of members of the Executive Board amounted to €4,696
thousand (previous year: €4,817 thousand). Total compensation includes share-based
remuneration in the amount of €1,265 thousand (previous year: €913 thousand). For one
member of the Executive Board the grant date for share-based remuneration is in 2012, and for
the remaining members the grant date is in 2013. In the year under review, the corresponding
shares were valued at the market price on the balance sheet reporting date. The estimated number
of shares (31,833) is based for one member of the Executive Board on a Deutsche Borse AG share
price of €46.09, which is the average price in the first two calendar months of financial year
2012, and for the remaining members on the price of the Deutsche Bérse AG share as at balance
sheet date. Eurex Frankfurt paid €3 thousand in rental deposits for one member of the Executive

Board in the previous year.

A total of €2,527 thousand (previous year: €2,373 thousand) has been reserved for pension
obligations to former members of the Executive Board and their surviving dependents.

Employees

During the year under review, the average number of employees was 171.3 (previous year:
154.0). As at 31 December 2012, the number of employees at Eurex Frankfurt (excluding the
Executive Board) was 172 (previous year: 164). Of these, 5 (previous year: 2) have a temporary
employment contract, and 20 (previous year: 50) are part-time employees. There were 4 (previous
year: 3) employees away on maternity leave or as recipients of the German parental allowance.
There was an average of 150.9 full-time equivalent (FTE) employees during the year (previous

year: 151.1).



Management report for the 2012 financial year

Business and operating environment

General situation of the Company

The Executive Board of Eurex Frankfurt Aktiengeselischaft (hereinafter referred to as: Eurex
Frankfurt) considers the business trend in 2012 to have been even more challenging than in the
previous year.

The economic environment in 2012 was dominated by the European debt crisis. The longstanding
uncertainty regarding the overall economic trend going forward, especially in the eurozone, had a
generally paralysing effect on financial market participants. This was compounded by far-reaching
regulatory reform proposals by policymakers, whose implications for market structures and
business models cannot as yet be fully assessed. This economic and regulatory framework
prompted institutional clients to act more cautiously and to exercise restraint in their trading
activities. As a result, there was a year-on-year decline in the use of exchange-traded and centrally
cleared derivatives — on both Deutsche Bérse Group's derivative markets and on derivative markets
operated by other stock exchange organisations across the world.

In 2012, a total of 2,292.0 million contracts were traded on Deutsche Borse Group's derivative
markets (Eurex and International Securities Exchange, hereinafter referred to as: ISE), a decrease of
19 percent on the previous year (2011: 2,821.5 million).

The Eurex trading volume in European futures and options was 1,660.2 million contracts, a
decline of 19 percent versus the prior year (2011: 2,043.4 million).

The trading volume for the US options traded on the ISE was down by 19 percent to 631.8 million
contracts (2011: 778.1 million).

Clearing

As well as derivatives trading, Eurex operates Eurex Clearing, Europe’s leading clearing house.
Besides its function as a central counterparty for clearing and the risk management of products
from linked exchanges such as Xetra®, Eurex®, Eurex Bonds®, Eurex Repo®, European Energy
Exchange (EEX) and Irish Stock Exchange, Eurex Clearing offers services for futures and options on
equities and fixed-income products traded off the order book whose contract specifications are

comparable with Eurex contracts.

On 13 November 2012, Eurex Clearing launched EurexOTC Clear, the new clearing offering for
over-the-counter (OTC) interest rate swaps, thus creating an environment in which institutional
investors can be connected to its clearing platform in time before the mandatory clearing of OTC
derivatives set out in the European Market Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR) at EU level takes
effect. Numerous well-known banks have cooperated with Eurex Clearing and supported the
development and launch process. Thirteen banks have already been admitted as market
participants and have successfully processed their first interest rate swap transactions via



EurexOTC Clear. The new clearing provision for OTC derivatives is specially tailored to the needs of
institutional clients and ascribes great importance to security and efficiency.

With its Individual Clearing Model, Eurex Clearing offers completely individual booking
(segregation) of customer positions and collateral. The collateral and trading positions therefore
benefit from optimum protection and are immediately transferable if a clearing member defaults,
enabling customers to continue their trading activities without interruption.

Furthermore, Eurex Clearing has become the first European clearing house to introduce a central
counterparty for the bilateral securities lending market. This offering enables customers to make
more efficient use of capital and simplify operations. Upon completion of the pilot phase, the new
service will be extended to European lending markets for equities, exchange-traded funds (ETFs)
and fixed-income securities.

Distribution

The number of market participants linked directly to the Eurex network fell to 426 in the year
under review of 2012 (2011: 436). Those who left were predominantly market participants with
low trading activity and their departure was based on their commercial decision against a direct

link.

In 2012, the Eurex derivatives exchange again pressed ahead with its expansion in the Asia-Pacific
region via initiatives involving Asian partners, with memorandums of understanding (MoUs) being
signed between Deutsche Borse and China Financial Futures Exchange (CFFEX), China Futures
Association (CFA) and, separately, with GreTai Securities Market (GTSM) from Taiwan. Under
these MoUs, both partners aim to achieve a comprehensive exchange of information with a view to
furthering the ongoing mutual development of the financial markets.

In March 2012, Eurex signed a further MoU with Singapore Exchange (SGX). making it easier for
participants to gain access to both marketplaces. The connection between the two companies’ co-
location computer centres in Singapore and Frankfurt am Main gives market participants a
straightforward link to the other exchange's markets in each case.

Product innovations

New products give market participants fresh impetus to develop their investment, hedging and
arbitrage strategies, thus generating additional trading volumes. The products launched by Eurex in
the 2012 reporting year included various equity, equity index, interest rate, commodity and
dividend derivatives. The futures contracts on French government bonds, for example, show that
new products and asset classes not only expand the portfolio, but can also make a sustained
contribution to value. Eurex generated a trading volume of 4.3 million contracts in the year under
review with the OAT (Obligations Assimilables du Trésor — OAT) futures launched in April 2012,
which are based on notional long-term bonds issued by the French Republic. The trend in the



futures on ltalian government bonds that were launched in 2009 remained similarly positive.
Dividend derivatives, which are relative newcomers, offer a further example of the success of new
products. Trading volumes in these products rose again in 2012, this time by 15 percent to 6.9
miition contracts (2011: 6.0 million). In volatility index derivatives, Eurex generated an increase at
an even sharper rate of almast 120 percent to 5.3 million contracts in 2012 (2011: 2.4 million).

When launching new products, alongside proprietary developments Eurex also focuses on
cooperation agreements with partner exchanges. The partnership with Korea Exchange (KRX) in
relation to a product on Korea's benchmark KOSPI index that has been available for trading on
Eurex since 30 August 2010 has been particularly successful. The product became one of the
strongest index option contracts on Eurex in 2012, almost doubling its volume during the year to
32.4 million contracts (2011: 17.4 million). However, the Korean supervisory authority ordered an
increase in the minimum contract size in the domestic market in June 2012, which has since led
to a fall in the average contract volumes traded each day.

New trading architecture

In early December 2012, Eurex launched a new trading architecture to which it will gradually
migrate the entire portfolio of tradeable contracts. The changeover is likely to be completed in May
2013. The migration means that market participants will benefit from far better performance and
enhanced functionalities alongside the existing reliability in terms of system stability and
availability. The new system is based on Deutsche Borse Group's global trading infrastructure,
which was already successfully launched at ISE. It offers greater flexibility, thus enabling shorter
times to market in launching new products and functionalities. The high-performance messaging
architecture ensures lower latencies and faster communication.

Ownership structure

Deutsche Borse AG completed the full acquisition of the 50 percent stake held by SIX Swiss
Exchange in Eurex Frankfurt's parent company, Eurex Zurich AG, on 30 April 2012 with effect
from 1 January 2012. Deutsche Borse AG has since indirectly held all the shares in Eurex Zurich
AG and Eurex Frankfurt.

Overview of business development in the year under review

At €86.3 million, Eurex Frankfurt posted a net profit that was up by €52.7 million on the previous
year; this was largely due to the far higher income from profit transfer agreements.



The report will now go on to examine the trend in trading and clearing volumes at Eurex Frankfurt
in detail. On the basis of the existing agreements and the transfer of revenues to Deutsche Borse
AG and Eurex Global Derivatives AG, these have no direct influence on Eurex Frankfurt's earnings,
financial and asset situation.

In 2012, a total of 2,292.0 million contracts were traded on Deutsche Boérse Group's derivative
markets (Eurex and ISE), a decrease of 19 percent on the previous year (2011: 2,821.5 million).
This equates to a daily average of around 9.0 million contracts (2071: 11.7 million). The Eurex
trading volume in European futures and options was 1,660.2 million contracts, a decline of
19 percent versus the prior year (2011: 2,043.4 million). The trading volume in US options on the
ISE was also down against the backdrop of the weak overall market trend and a market
environment characterised by intense competition: during the year under review, market
participants traded 631.8 million contracts, 19 percent down on the previous year (2011: 778.1
million). The ISE's market share of US equity options was 17.0 percent in 2012 (2011: 18.2
percent).

European equity index derivatives were again the product group generating the highest sales
revenue. Trading in these derivatives saw a year-on-year decrease of 20 percent to 770.4 million
contracts (2011: 959.8 million). Although contracts on the EURO STOXX 50 remained the most
heavily traded products by some margin (315.2 million futures and 280.6 million options),
derivatives on European STOXX indices were impacted both by the debt crisis in Europe and the
lack of trust in the single currency. 413.1 million contracts were traded in the equity derivatives
product group (single stock options and futures) in 2012, a decrease of 8 percent (2011: 450.5

million).

The trading volume in the interest rate derivatives product group fell by 25 percent to 470.4
million contracts (2011: 630.4 million). The consistently low level of key rates and persistently
high yield spreads for some euro area countries versus Germany meant that investments in
government bonds were relatively unattractive. As a result, hedging on German government bonds
solely via derivatives was no longer considered adequate by many investors. However, Eurex
registered a rise in the number of contracts involving trading in alternative hedging instruments
such as futures on French or Italian government bonds.

As well as the futures and options business, Eurex Frankfurt conducts OTC repo trading for a wide
range of fixed-income securities - including government bonds and covered bonds such as the
Jumbo Pfandbrief - via Eurex Repo. The Euro GC Pooling product for trading collateral recognised
by the European Central Bank (ECB) has proved to be especially valuable during the liquidity crisis
on the financial markets.

Eurex Repo achieved an average outstanding volume of €234.7 billion in 2012 (2011: €276.6
billion, single counting for both years). While the euro market, with a rise of 19 percent to €36.1
billion, set a new record (2011: €30.3 billion, single counting in each case), there was a
significant decline in the average outstanding volumes for the Swiss franc repo market. This was
predominantly due to the interest rate policy measures pursued by the Swiss National Bank (SNB)



to lower the value of the Swiss franc, and also to the fall in issuance of its own money market
paper (SNB bills).

GC Pooling, the collateralised money market which Eurex Repo operates jointly with Eurex Clearing
and Clearstream, again proved to be a reliable liquidity pool for market participants. The average
outstanding volume in this market increased by 23 percent to the new record of €145.4 billion in
2012 (2011: €118.2 billion; single counting for both years). GC Pooling enables balance-sheet
friendly and anonymous money market trading in which standardised collateral baskets (a group of
securities with similar quality features, such as issuer credit rating) are traded and cleared via a
central counterparty (Eurex Clearing). Eurex Repo generates revenues from the fees charged for
trading and clearing repo transactions.

In the fourth quarter of 2012, GC Pooling was extended to non-financial institutions (GC Pooling
Select). Banks' corporate clients have since been able to utilise the collateralised financing offering
with central clearing, thus minimising the counterparty risk for their investments.

In conjunction with institutional market participants, Eurex Frankfurt operates Eurex Bonds, the
international electronic trading platform for interbank bond trading. Trading volumes on Eurex
bonds were up by 2 percent in the year under review of 2012 to €119.7 billion (single counting,
2011: €117.2 billion). The positive overall performance was due to the increased need for
investments in issues with high-quality ratings.

Employees

In the 2012 financial year, the number of staff employed by Eurex Frankfurt increased to 172
(previous year: 164) employees as at the reporting date of 31 December 2012. On average over
the 2012 financial year, 171.3 (previous year: 154.0) employees worked at Eurex Frankfurt.

The turnover rate during the course of the 2012 financial year was 4.1 percent (previous year:
3.90 percent).

Eurex Frankfurt employs staff at three locations (as at 31 December 2012):

Frankfurt 155
Hong Kong 6
Singapore 11
Total 172




The employee age structure at Eurex Frankfurt as at 31 December 2012 was as follows:

< 30 years 19 11.0%
30 - 39 years 51 29.7%
40 - 49 years 79 45.9%
50 > years 23 13.4%
Total 172 100.0%

As at 31 December 2012, the breakdown of employees’ length of service was as follows:

< 5 years 55 32.0%
5 - 15 years 74 43.0%
15 > years 43 25.0%
Total 172 100.0%

As at 31 December 2012, 72.09 percent (previous year: 72.56 percent) of Eurex Frankfurt's
employees were graduates. This figure is calculated on the basis of the number of employees
holding a degree from a university, university of applied sciences or dual university combining
professional studies with practical training, and employees who have completed studies abroad.

The average number of training days at Eurex Frankfurt was 2.1 (previous year: 3.2) days per
member of staff.

Results of operations, financial position and net assets

The Company does not report any sales revenue. The connection fees generated by Eurex Frankfurt
in the 2012 financial year were transferred in full to Deutsche Borse AG (hereinafter referred to as
"DBAG") and Eurex Global Derivatives AG (hereinafter referred to as "EGAG").

Other operating income amounted to €130.801 million (previous year: €154.997 million), a
decrease of 15.6 percent on the previous year. The decline in the current year is primarily a result
of lower operating payments to Eurex Frankfurt based on provisions in the shareholders’ agreement
between DBAG and EGAG.

Other operating expenses amounted to €102.824 million, in line with the prior year level (previous
year: €103.121 million). The slight fall in the current year is primarily a result of lower expenses



from agency agreements of €40.089 million (previous year: €43.796 million) and for purchases of
price data and index licences of €23.882 million (previous year: €29.775 million).

Income from profit transfer agreements rose to €98.246 million (previous year: €65.563 million).
This was due to the positive net profit of Eurex Services GmbH (€86.754 million; previous year:

€55.770 million).

Impairments on financial assets and current securities totalled €0 thousand. In the previous year,
charges in connection with a market value adjustment of plan assets were incurred in the amount
of €356,000 thousand.

Because the participatory capital absorbed a share of Eurex Frankfurt's losses in previous years, the
net profit recognised in the year under review of €86.292 million was transferred to participatory
capital. An unappropriated surplus of zero was then recognised as at 31 December 2012.

Eurex Frankfurt's fixed assets amount to €1,322.388 million (previous year: €1,297.14 million).
They primarily consist of stakes in affiliated companies. The Company’s holdings of intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment are limited. This is because Eurex Frankfurt is provided
with the software required to operate the derivatives market by Deutsche Borse AG and EGAG at no
cost. All the other operating resources required to run the derivatives market are provided by
Deutsche Borse AG on the basis of agency agreements. The extent to which fixed assets are
covered by equity is 74 percent (previous year: 69 percent).

Current assets amount to €395.796 million (previous year. €311.346 million). The increase is
predominantly due to the rise in receivables from affiliated companies, which amounted to
€381.469 million (previous year: €305.188 million), and in particular to receivables from profit
transfer agreements of €98.246 million (previous year: €65.563 million) and receivables from
cash pooling of €273.9 million (previous year: €194 million).

As at the end of the financial year, Eurex Frankfurt's equity capital totalled €984.251 million
(previous year: €897.959 million). Additions of €86.291 million were made to participatory
capital, which is recognised as equity capital (level of €971.092 million, previous year: €884.801
million). Eurex Frankfurt's equity ratio is 57.3 percent (previous year: 55.8 percent).

Trade payables fell to €2.068 million (previous year: €2.257 million). Liabilities to affiliated
companies climbed to €692.461 million (prior year: €662.117 million) and largely resulted from
taking out a loan from Eurex Services GmbH in the amount of €503 million in 2011. Furthermore,
liabilities from cash pooling rose to €177.122 million (prior year: €144.3 million).

Liquidity inflows arise on account of the regular payments under the existing operating agreement.
A credit line with DBAG in the amount of €50 million is also in place for refinancing purposes.

The financial situation of the Company is assessed as being in order.



Risk report

Eurex Frankfurt is integrated into the Group-wide risk management system of Deutsche Borse AG
(DBAG). Deutsche Bérse Group has established a Group-wide risk management system, which
defines functions, processes and responsibilities and is binding on all staff within the Group.

The risk management system ensures that all management committees of Deutsche Borse Group
can promptly monitor the risk profile of the Group as a whole or of individual legal entities such as
Eurex Frankfurt, as well as specific material risks. The aim is to ensure the timely identification of
developments that could threaten the Group's or Eurex Frankfurt's interests and to take appropriate
countermeasures.

Eurex Frankfurt takes great care to mitigate risk and ensures that appropriate measures are taken
to avoid, reduce and transfer - or intentionally take on - risk. The aim is to make use of suitable
safeguards and controt measures such as guidelines and procedures, the segregation of functions,
the principle of dual control, limit restrictions and also business continuity management to reduce
both the frequency and level of potential losses from the corresponding risk cases for Eurex
Frankfurt. In addition, potential operational losses are limited further via an insurance portfolio.

The Executive Board of Eurex Frankfurt is responsible for the Company’s risk management system.
The decentralised departments identify risks and report these promptly to Group Risk Management,
a central function with Group-wide powers. Group Risk Management evaluates all existing and new
risks. The execution of risk control measures is the responsibility of the competent decentralised
departments.

Eurex Frankfurt uses a standardised approach - value at risk (VaR) - for measuring and reporting
all risks. The aim of this concept is to create a comprehensive overview of general risk tolerance

and to facilitate the prioritisation of risk measures.

VaR quantifies existing and new risks. It constitutes the upper threshold of the cumulative losses
which Eurex Frankfurt can incur if certain independent loss events occur within a specified period

and with a defined probability.

Eurex Frankfurt calculates economic capital as its main risk management tool. This is used in
addition to other performance indicators to determine the capital needed for business operations so
that even extreme and unexpected losses can be covered. Economic capital is calculated using a
VaR method for a period of one year and a confidence level of 99.98 percent, taking into account
diversification effects. Eurex Frankfurt uses the equity on its balance sheet as risk coverage equity
for economic capital.

Independent audits by the Internal Auditing function ensure that the risk control and risk
management functions are appropriate. The resuits of these examinations also feed into the risk

management system.



Specific risks

Operational risks

The material risks for Eurex Frankfurt are operational risks. Operational risks comprise potential
losses from inadequate or faulty systems and internal processes, from human or technical failure
and from damage to tangible assets as well as from legal and business practice risks.

For Eurex Frankfurt, specific operational risks comprise a threat to the availability of the system
infrastructure deployed and in processing errors in manual processing operations. This availability
risk is specifically addressed by means of comprehensive activities in the field of business
continuity management (BCM). The BCM system encompasses all of the processes which ensure
that business continues as normal if a crisis occurs and therefore substantially reduces availability
risk. it covers arrangements for all key resources (systems, premises, employees, suppliers/service
providers), including the redundant design of all critical IT systems and the technical infrastructure,
as well as backup workstations in each of the main operational centres for employees in critical
functions. These precautionary BCM measures are reguiarly reviewed.

However, if trading is interrupted or other operational errors do occur, this may result in loss of
income, claims for damages and additional costs for rectifying the problem. If outages last for a
long period of time or if they recur frequently, there may also be reputational losses which, in the
final consequence, might also result in participants taking their custom elsewhere and in volumes
declining (business risk).

Business practice risks also include personnel risks. The dedication and performance of our
employees are the key foundations for Deutsche Borse Group’s success. In this regard, the Group is
exposed to the risk that important members of staff in key positions leave the company or that
positions cannot be adequately filled.

No notable operational losses were incurred in the year under review and there are no indications
of events in 2012 which would point towards significant operational losses in the future.

Business risk

Business risk constitutes a further material risk for Deutsche Borse Group. It reflects the sensitivity
to macroeconomic developments and the susceptibility to event risks such as regulatory
adjustments or changes in the competitive environment. This risk is expressed in relation to EBIT.
Business risk can impact sales revenue and cost trends, for example causing a decline in actual
sales revenue compared to target figures, or a rise in costs. In addition, external factors such as the
performance and volatility of — or a lack of investor confidence in - the financial markets may
impact financial performance. In particular, in view of the ongoing European sovereign debt crisis
and the associated possibility of a further deterioration in the economic environment, a negative
trend in Eurex Frankfurt's earnings cannot be ruled out.

Regulatory initiatives represent a material business risk. Firstly, they may have a negative impact
on Eurex Frankfurt's competitive position. Secondly, they may affect the business models of its



customers and reduce the demand for Eurex Frankfurt's products and services. With respect to the
risk of a changed competitive environment, the possibility that Eurex Frankfurt's financial
performance might deteriorate due to intense competition for market share in individual business
areas cannot be ruled out. This could in some circumstances lead to the value of equity
investments being partially or fully written down following an impairment test.

Scenarios are prepared and gquantitatively assessed for Eurex Frankfurt based on the most
significant risk events. Eurex Frankfurt monitors these developments very closely with a view to
initiating risk-mitigating measures at an early stage.

Financial risk

Eurex Frankfurt is included in Deutsche Borse AG's cash pooling arrangements. Financial
investments are only conducted to a limited extent. All in all, the financial risk of Eurex Frankfurt is
low.

Summary

In the past financial year further external risk factors have arisen for Eurex Frankfurt's business.
However, Eurex Frankfurt identified newly occurring risks at an early stage and took appropriate
measures to counter them. Based on these measures, in the opinion of the Executive Board there
has been no material change to Eurex Frankfurt's risk profile. The Executive Board of Eurex
Frankfurt firmly believes in the effectiveness of its risk management system.

Outlook

Eurex Frankfurt assesses its risk situation on an ongoing basis. Taking the stress test calculations
that have been conducted into account, the economic capital arising and the risk management
system which it deems to be effective, the Executive Board of Eurex Frankfurt comes to the
conclusion that the risk coverage equity is adequate. Furthermore, it cannot identify any risks
which jeopardise the Group's ongoing existence.

Further developments in the area of risk management are also planned for 2013. In addition, in
2013 an increased number of risk appraisals of business and regulatory risks that have effects on
the Company beyond the period of one year used to calculate economic capital will be undertaken.

Furthermore, Eurex Frankfurt will overhaul its risk bearing capacity concept. Intrarisk diversification
effects will no longer be assumed when calculating the required economic capital. Thereby, Eurex
Frankfurt will apply the most conservative approach.



Branch offices

Since 14 January 2011, Eurex Frankfurt has had a registered branch office in Singapore to expand
on and strengthen its business activities in the Asia/Pacific region. As well as marketing Eurex
Frankfurt's products and services, the main duties of the former representative office (since July
2009) mainly involve maintaining existing business relationships, establishing cooperation projects
and connecting new exchange participants from the Asia/Pacific, India, Middle East and emerging
markets regions.

Report on events after the balance sheet date

On 5 February 2013, Deutsche Borse AG announced - subject to approval by the Supervisory
Board - the Executive Board's plans to accelerate the measures to heighten operating efficiency. To
this end, Deutsche Bérse AG intends to identify and leverage additional potential across the Group
with an annual volume of €70 million in HR and material costs. All efficiency improvements
should be fully effective for the first time in 2016. The specific effects on the individual companies
within Deutsche Boérse Group cannot be fully evaluated at present.

Report on expected developments

The report on expected developments describes the anticipated business performance for Eurex
Frankfurt in the 2013 and 2014 financial years. It contains statements and information about
future events. These forward-looking statements and information are based on the Company's
expectations and assumptions at the time of publication of this report on expected developments.
These assumptions and expectations are in turn subject to known and unknown risks and
uncertainties. Numerous factors have an influence on the Company’s success, business strategy
and results. Many of these factors are outside the Company’s control. Should one of these risks or
uncertainties materialise or any of the underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, the actual
performance of the Company may differ positively or negatively from the expectations and
assumptions contained in the forward-looking statements and information in this report on
expected developments.

At present, various factors are influencing the lower investments by market participants in
derivatives. Eurex Frankfurt expects the factors set out below to continue to have a major influence
on business development over the next two years.

o The financial crisis that began in 2008 had extremely pronounced consequences for trading
institutions' investment behaviour. The internal analysis process in relation to the events at
that time led to a critical engagement with high-risk investments and what were apparently



partially ineffective internal mechanisms to prevent losses. As an outcome of this process,
Eurex now sees far less risk capital and trading activity on the market on the part of the
trading institutions.

o The current uncertainties, particularly those affecting the eurozone as regards the single
currency and in relation to the economic viability and credit ratings of its participants, are
also leading to lower investments in products that cover the eurozone directly such as
Eurex's Euro Stoxx index family. This particularly applies to investors from non-EU countries
and their activities in euro products on the euro region exchanges.

* On the whole, the low levels of key rates are leading to low investment in derivatives on
government bonds, and the downtrend in credit ratings for the government bonds of various
European nations has led to weaker demand for derivative market products on German
government bonds, as these could no longer be used as a benchmark for European
sovereign bonds in light of the yield spreads that have arisen.

o Political measures in response to the financial crisis have come at the expense of trading
volumes. The possible introduction of a financial transaction tax or bans on short-selling
have affected trading participants whose business models assigned a high level of liquidity
to the order book and which exhibit high-frequency trading.

¢ Regulatory measures relating to the mandatory disclosure (reporting obligation) and
collateralisation of OTC transactions and the revision of the Capital Requirements Directive
are creating the need for amendments and additional work on the part of trading
participants due to higher capital requirements amid deteriorating risk/return expectations.

In view of the interplay between the global economic trend and geopolitical risks, the Company
expects an ongoing need for consolidation on the part of the financial industry and therefore
continued uncertainty with regard to forecasting developments in the operating business.

At the same time, Eurex Frankfurt is operating in a highly competitive environment which in the
future will be subject to structural changes in general regulatory conditions in both Europe and the
US. In Europe, this specifically relates to the measure taken by the European Union, which took
effect on 16 August 2012, to introduce a European Market Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR) to
regulate the financial market, a revision to the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MIFID
2/MIFIR) and amendments to the Capital Requirements Directive (CRD V). The main regulatory
provisions of EMIR with a direct effect on exchanges are as follows: the implementation of greater
interoperability between different clearing houses, greater price transparency and the obligation for
certain transactions conducted on an over-the-counter basis to be cleared using a central
counterparty in order to protect against counterparty risk.

Additional plans for legislation in respect of the tax treatment of securities transactions on a
national and EU level as part of the planned introduction of a financial transaction tax may pose
risks to Eurex Frankfurt's trading volumes. Following the introduction of a financial transaction tax,
Eurex might expect the number of transactions to fali and income to be lower on account of higher
trading costs per transaction for participants and the possible transfer of trading activities out of the
area in which the tax would apply. However, as the legislation process has not yet been completed
and it is still unclear whether the measure will be extended to derivatives trading, the indirect
consequences for Eurex Frankfurt cannot be quantified at present. Eurex Frankfurt will continue to
contribute to the discussion at all levels.



To sum up, a stable assessment of general economic conditions and therefore also trading activity
on the part of Eurex customers as external growth drivers during 2013 and beyond for 2014 is
only possible to a limited extent. Against this backdrop and given the connections between the
general economic environment and the need for trading participants to use derivative markets to
hedge against risks, the general trend in trading volumes and revenues in 2013 is expected to be
in line with the previous year's level.

At the same time, Eurex Frankfurt continues to assume that the structural growth drivers in the
derivatives business are largely intact. These growth drivers are as follows:

¢ Due to the great importance of risk management, more and more OTC transactions are
being cleared centrally to eliminate counterparty risk.

¢ Demand for Eurex products from investors and trading houses from non-European regions
such as Asia is growing.

Eurex Frankfurt also looks for a generally positive stimulus to operating business activities for the
forecast period of 2013 and 2014 thanks to a wide range of measures to enhance the trading
system and network, expand the customer base in terms of numbers and geographical reach,
expand the number of tradeable products and product classes, increase the appeal of the pricing
model and continue the expansion of risk management systems.

We will now go on to address a number of growth prospects in detail below:

e Extension of the global distribution network. Eurex will continue to expand its customer
network and the distribution of its products and services, especially in Asia, North and
South America and in other emerging market regions. In this regard, the collaboration with
Korea Exchange should be emphasised as a model for future product cooperations.

e In 2012, the Eurex product range was expanded again with the addition of over 150 new
products. On the product development side, Eurex is planning to maintain the continuous
development of the existing portfolio in line with market requirements. Further additions will
be made to the product classes of European equity, dividend, index or commodity
derivatives via issuance on new underlyings.

e The continuing process of valuing the service and product portfolio also applies to the Eurex
pricing structure/ pricing model. That way continuing scrutiny of requirements needing
adjustments is to be expected. These measures align (or adapt) fees for large trading
volumes and offer rebates for selected products. Changes in the price list of Eurex generally
aim to create incentives for larger trading volumes by the client and thus to improve the
liquidity of the order book trading as well as to increase market transparency and efficient
price determination.

¢ High-performance technology remains an important competitive factor in a market
environment characterised by intense competition. Eurex Frankfurt therefore launched a
new trading platform in December 2012. The plan is for the migration of all Eurex products
to take place in several stages in which they will be gradually transferred from the current
to the new trading system. The new Eurex system was developed entirely in-house and is
based on Deutsche Borse Group's proprietary global trading architecture, which is already
in use at ISE. The new trading infrastructure is based on an extremely flexible operating



system, an integrated high-performance messaging architecture to ensure minimal latency,
a high-speed communications interface and reliable database systems. In future, this will
enable a substantial reduction in the time taken to launch new products and functionalities.
In addition, the system will incorporate new functionalities for strategy and spread trading.
Moreover, exchange participants will have access to new interfaces which will replace or
expand on existing interfaces. They are based on the FIX and FAST industry standards,
allowing participants to achieve implementation more quickly. Once again, the migration to
the new system will enable Eurex to offer its trading participants an industry-leading
solution.

e Intense competition in the US-stock option market is going to continue in future and is
expected to show an increasing trend. As this is going to have a direct impact on the
development of ISEs trading volumes and revenues, ISE took several measures, to obtain
competitive advantages and regain market share. Besides incentives for liquidity providers
on the market and implementing new attractive order types, there was most notably the
introduction of the new electronic trading systems, which was launched in 2011.

e A further strategic initiative pursued by Eurex Frankfurt relates to the expansion of business
activities in Eurex Clearing's risk and trade management. To enable Eurex Clearing to
continue to expand its market position as one of the leading clearing houses, effective risk
management will be further extended and enhanced in future, as was recently the case with
the 2012 launch of Client Asset Protection and the Individual Clearing Model as
foundations for the provision of services, functionalities and product coverage for 0oTC
trading. All the new risk management models are part of a comprehensive expansion of
Eurex Clearing's services in anticipation of regulatory reforms planned at EU level. These
reforms aim to have central counterparties play a greater role in the clearing and risk
management of exchange-based and OTC derivatives trading.

In addition, Eurex Frankfurt will continue to evaluate cooperation or acquisition options for
generating both organic and non-organic growth to complement and build on the current business

model.

In summary, against the backdrop of the general political and regulatory conditions and
requirements referred to above, Eurex Frankfurt expects both caution and a need for further
changes on the part of customers in 2013. If stabilising signals in Europe and changes in key rates
fail to materialise on the back of measures by the leading central banks, Eurex expects trading
volumes to be in line with those of the 2012 financial year despite positive impetus from organic
growth initiatives. Eurex Frankfurt also expects the trend in pre-transfer sales revenues in the 2013
financial year to be at the prior year level. The planned pre-transfer operating expenses for 2013
are also expected to be in line with the operating expenses for 2012. Eurex Frankfurt therefore
expects earnings to be at least stable in 2013 at the level of 2012, before investments,
depreciation and amortisation, loss absorptions and/or income from profit transfer agreements.
With regard to subsequent business performance beyond 2013, ongoing developments in general
regulatory conditions and the continued stabilisation of the macroeconomic environment will be
crucial. On the whole, despite possible risks to the stability of the financial markets and the
expectation that competition will intensify further, the Company anticipates a structurally positive
trend for the global derivatives market to which Eurex Frankfurt will actively contribute via its own
business model.



On the basis of the management agreement, Eurex Clearing also expects earnings to be stable in
2014.

Closing declaration in accordance with section 312 of the German
Companies Act (AktG)

Pursuant to section 312 AktG, a report has been prepared on relationships with affiliated
companies. Our report closes with the following declaration:

"In connection with each legal transaction with affiliated companies, our Company received an
appropriate consideration in accordance with the circumstances that were known at the time at
which the legal transactions were carried out. Other measures were neither taken nor omitted.”

Frankfurt/Main, 27 February 2013

Eurex Frankfurt Aktiengesellschaft

Andreas Preul3 Jurg Spillmann Dr Thomas Book

Gary Katz Michael Peters Peter Reitz
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Intercompany agreements

As part of the profit transfer agreement concluded between Eurex Frankfurt and Eurex Clearing AG,
the latter is obliged to transfer its net income for the year to Eurex Frankfurt, minus any losses
carried forward from the previous year and the amount required by section 300 of the AktG to be
added to the reserves. At the same time, Eurex Frankfurt is required to make up any losses
incurred at Eurex Clearing AG during the year through loss absorption, provided such losses have
not already been offset through transfers from other retained earnings added during the term of the
contract.

In addition, profit transfer agreements have been concluded between Eurex Frankfurt and Eurex
Repo GmbH and with Eurex Services GmbH. Both companies are obliged to transfer their net
profit to Eurex Frankfurt. At the same time, during the term of the contract, Eurex Frankfurt is
obliged to compensate any annual deficit incurred by Eurex Repo GmbH and Eurex Services GmbH
through loss absorption.

Group structure

Eurex Frankfurt is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eurex Zirich AG. It is incorporated into the
consolidated accounts of DBAG, which may be viewed at the business premises of our Company.
These consolidated financial statements exempt the Company from the requirement to produce
accounts in accordance with the HGB. The consolidated financial statements of DBAG are
prepared on the basis of the relevant IFRS standards and published in the electronic German
Federal Gazette.

In accordance with section 20 (4) of the AktG, DBAG has notified us that it holds a majority
interest in our Company.

Frankfurt/Main, 27 February 2013

Eurex Frankfurt Aktiengesellschaft

ST Qu&mt 178 145,

Gary Katz Michael Peters Peter Reitz
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Eurex Zlrich AG, Zlrich

2012
Enclosure 1
Balance sheet as at Note 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
ASSETS CHF thousand CHF thousand
Current assets
Cash 1 9,336 13,924
Receivables 2 18,072 12,893
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 3 1,163 22
28,571 26,839
Non-current assets
Other assets. furniture and office equipment 26 0
Participations 4 298,293 298,293
298,319 298,293
TOTAL ASSETS 326,890 325,132
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 5 19,180 21,902
Current provisions and deferred income 6 1,137 1,311
Total current liabilities 20,317 23,213
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 7 1,557 1.467
Total non-current liabilities 1,557 1.467
Total liabilities 21,874 24,680
Equity
Share capital 10.000 10.000
Legal reserves
- General legal reserve 12.097 517
- Shareholders contribution reserve 8 217,402 228,983
Unappropriated surplus
- Profit carried forward 60,952 57,604
- Net profit for the year 4,565 3,348
305,016 300,452
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 326,890 325,132




Eurex Zurich AG, Zurich

2012
Enclosure 2
Income statement Note 2012 2011
CHF thousand CHF thousand
Net revenues 9 41,400 46,948
Staff costs 10 -5,878 -6,304
Other operating expenses 1l -34,798 43,283
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment -132 0
Operating results 592 -2.639
Dividend income EEX 12 4,863 4.890
Financial expense -1,384 -1.666
Financial income 937 2,845
Earnings before taxes and items related to previous years 5,008 3,430
Income related to previous years 13 0 13,189
Expenses related to previous years 14 0 -12,560
Earnings before taxes 5,008 4.059
Taxes 15 -443 <711
4,565 3.348

Net profit for the year




Eurex Ziirich AG, Zurich
2012

Enclosure 3/1

Notes to the financial statements

1

Purpose of the Company

The purpose of the Company is to maintain a cross-border operating organisation for an electronic futures
market for financial products (e.g. options and futures).

It may provide services in the area of stock-exchange trading, in particular in software development and the
processing and provision of financial data.

The Company may establish branches and subsidiaries in Switzerland and abroad and may acquire holdings
in, purchase or establish other companies in Switzerland and abroad. The Company may purchase, rent and
sell real estate and may acquire and exploit property rights and know-how.

The Company may conduct all commercial, financial and other transactions which are related to the
purpose of the Company.

Share capital

The share capital, consisting of 10,000 restricted registered shares of CHF 1,000 each. is fully paid in and
amounts to CHF 10 million. In addition, the Company has issued 5,000 participation certificates with no
par value which, in the event that a dividend is declared, are entitled to 14/3 of the amount of the dividend

for registered shares.

The share capital of Eurex Ziirich AG is held in equal shares of 50% each by Eurex Global Derivatives AG,
Zurich, and Deutsche Boérse AG, Frankfurt.

The agreement dated 7 June 201 1. according to which SIX Swiss Exchange sold its Swiss derivatives
business. including its shares in Eurex Zirich AG. to Deutsche Bérse AG was completed on 30 April 2012.
Since that date, Eurex Zirich AG has been a wholly owned subsidiary of Deutsche Borse AG, with 50% of
the shares held indirectly through Eurex Global Derivatives AG, Zurich.

CO 663b para. 12 Risk Assessment

Eurex Ziirich AG is an integral part of the Eurex Group. The risk assessment was conducted within the
framework of the Group-wide risk management processes established by Eurex Clearing AG. Eurex Ziirich
AG also relies on the risk management processes of Deutsche Borse AG. For that reason, a separate risk
assessment on the part of the Board of Directors of Eurex Ziirich AG was waived.

Accounting and valuation principles

As a general rule, the historical cost principle has been adopted for the financial statements. This is based
on the principle of individual valuation of assets and liabilities. Notes on any deviations from this principle
are provided on the relevant balance sheet items.
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Notes to the financial statements

Cash

Cash includes cash in hand, balances with banks and in postal accounts as well as demand and time
deposits payable within no more than 90 days. These are valued at their nominal values.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment valued at or above CHF 1,000.00 is depreciated over its standard useful life.
Property, plant and equipment valued at up to CHF 1,000.00 is depreciated in full in the year of acquisition.

Participations

Participations are stated at their acquisition price less accumulated amortisation.
Receivables

Receivables are stated at their nominal value.

Provisions

Provisions are formed as required for operational reasons.

Taxes

Tax provisions are reserved on a full accrual method basis.
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Enclosure 3/3
Notes to the financial statements 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
CHF thousand CHF thousand
4 Notes to the individual balance sheet and income statement items
1 Cash
Bank accounts 9,336 13,924
Total 9,336 13,924
2 Receivables
Eurex charges 10,761 12,431
Eurex Frankfurt AG current account 771 -
Trade receivables for affiliated companies 3.276 136
Trade receivables from third parties 566 219
Other receivables 317 107
Tax receivables 2,381 -
Total 18,072 12,893
3 Accrued income and prepaid expenses
Advance payments for 2013 1,163 22
1,163 22
4 Participations
Eurex Frankfurt AG, Frankfurt 149,918 149,918
European Energy Exchange AG, Frankfurt 148,375 148,375
Total 298,293 298,293

Eurex Frankfurt AG. Frankfurt is a wholly owned subsidiary of Eurex Zirich AG. Its share capital is EUR
6 million and is fully paid in.

As of 30 September 2002, European Energy Exchange AG merged with the European Energy Exchange in
Leipzig. Its share capital is EUR 50.05 million.

On 18 May 2009, Eurex Ziirich AG acquired 199.162 shares in European Energy Exchange AG
for the price of EUR 1,314,469.20.

On 23 December 2010, Eurex Ziirich AG signed an agreement to take over the EEX shares held by
Landesbank Baden-Wiirttemberg (LBBW). The agreement provides for the acquisition of an EEX
shareholding of up to 22.96% since LBBW is required to offer its shares to other EEX shareholders as well

on a pro-rata basis.

On 31 March 2011, a transaction was completed whereby Eurex Ziirich AG purchased an additional
20.91% of the shares for EUR 64,928,430.50, thereby increasing its participation in EEX accordingly.
Eurex Ziirich AG acquired 30,402 EEX shares as of 31 December 2012 at a price of CHF 284,462.77.

Eurex Zirich AG holds 56.14% of the share capital as at 31 December 2012.
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Enclosure 3/4
Notes to the financial statements 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
CHF thousand CHF thousand

5 Other liabilities
Eurex charges — Eurex Global 13,900 -
Eurex Clearing AG current account 2.193 5.076
Eurex Global current account 1.709 -
Eurex Global — Deutsche Borse AG 696
Miscellaneous 314 -
SIX Swiss Exchange current account 224 14,006
Deutsche Borse AG current account 81 -
Creditors 63 444
Eurex Frankfurt AG current account - 539
Affiliated companies current account - 1,278
VAT - 559
Total 19,180 21,902
6 Accrued expenses and deferred income
Salary accruals 163 807
Directors fees accruals 320 353
Other accrued expenses and deferred income 654 151
Total 1,137 1,311
7 Provisions
Taxes 543 17
Provisions for bonuses 899 1,230
Provisions for outstanding leave 92 220
Provision for stock program 23 -
Total 1,557 1,467
8 Shareholders contribution reserve (premium)
Shareholders contribution reserve 217,402 228,983
Total 217,402 228,983

Shareholders contributions at no par value (premiums, subsequent contributions) in 1998 (CHF 14,500
thousand), 2003 (CHF 19,915 thousand), 2004 (CHF 13,983 thousand), 2005 (CHF 50,612 thousand), 2006

(CHF 45,966 thousand) and 2011 (CHF 84,007 thousand).

The classification of the "grandparent” contribution paid in by SIX in 2011 in the amount of CHF 11,580
thousand was reclassified from the capital reserves to the general reserve.
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Notes to the financial statements 2012 2011

CHF thousand CHF thousand
9 Net revenues
Income from agency agreements 41,400 46.948
Total 41,400 46,948
10 Staff costs
Wages and salaries -4.902 -5.389
Social security expenses -1,029 -746
Other staff costs 53 -169
Total -5,878 -6,304
11 Other operating expenses
Cost of agency agreements -7,033 -9,611
Rent and premises costs -40 -31
Communication -327 -297
Non-deductible input tax -1,620 -2,570
Advisory costs =752 -633
Board of Directors remuneration -334 -334
Other operating expenses -2,268 -2,332
Expenses for services received -22.424 -27.475
Total -34,798 -43,283

Expenses for services received include various types of expenses which are first booked to all Group
companies before being allocated to specific entities according to the distribution ratios set out in the
agency agreements.
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Notes to the financial statements 2012 2011
CHF thousand CHF thousand
12 Dividend income
Dividend income EEX 4.863 4,890
Total 4,863 4,890
13 Income related to previous years
Refunds related to previous years - 13.189
Total - 13,189
14 Expenses related to previous years
Services received related to previous years - -12,560
Total - -12,560
15 Taxes
Direct federal tax and state and municipal taxes -443 <711
Total -443 -711

5§ Fire insurance value of property, plant and equipment

The fire insurance value of Eurex Ziirich is CHF 602,408.00.

There are no other matters that are required to be reported under Article 663b of the Code of Obligations.
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Proposal on the appropriation of the unappropriated surplus

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
The unappropriated surplus amounts to:
Carried forward from the previous year 60,952 57,604
Net profit/loss for the year 4,565 3.348
Profit to be carried forward 65.517 60,952

Appropriation of profit
The Board of Directors proposes to the General Meeting of Sharcholders that the unappropriated surplus

be carried forward.
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International Securities Exchange Holdings Inc.
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2012
Revenues:
Income from investment in subsidiaries $ 44013
Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization 17,785
Other 42
Total expenses 17,827
Earnings/(loss) before interest and taxes 26,186
Investment income (11,856)
Interest expense .
Pretax Income/(Loss) 14,329
Provision for income tax (8,992)
Net Income/(Loss) $ 23,321
December 31,
2012
ASSETS
Intangible assets, net 571,034
Goodwill 1,268,493
Receivable from affiliates 1,107
Investment in subsidiaries 57,765
Investment in associates 75,235
Total assets 1,973,634
LIABILITIES, AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Income tax payable 24,731
Deferred tax liabilities 231,196
Payable to affiliates 147
Total liabilities 256,075
MEMBER'S EQUITY
Total member's equity 1,717,559

Total liabilities and member's equity $ 1,973,634
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INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)



345 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10154

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Member
International Securities Exchange, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of International Securities Exchange, LLC
(the Company), which comprise the statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2012, and the
related statements of income, changes in member’s equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership,
the U.S. member finn of KPMG Intemational Cooperative
("KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of International Securities Exchange, LLC as of December 31, 2012, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

KPMe P

April 29, 2013



INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Statement of Financial Condition
December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,424

Accounts receivable, net 23,261
Related party receivable 4,264
Income tax receivable 13,213
Deferred tax asset, net 4,740
Other current assets 4,354
Total current assets 89,256
Fixed assets, net 22,366
Intangible assets, net 14,741
Securities owned 11,662
Deferred tax asset, net 7,751
Other assets 1,000
Total assets $ 146,776
Liabilities and Member’s Equity
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 14,246
Related party payable 9,953
Income taxes payable 9,044
Compensation and benefits payable 12,077
Deferred revenue 5,135
Payment for order flow payable 1,342
Other current liabilities 460
Total current liabilities 52,257
Deferred revenue 20,266
Compensation and benefits payable 11,178
Other liabilities 5,037
Total liabilities 88,738
Member’s equity:
Total member’s equity 58,038
Total liabilities and member’s equity $ 146,776

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Statement of Income

Year ended December 31, 2012

(In thousands)

Revenues:
Transaction fees $ 203,373
Member fees and other 43,536
Market data 12,075
Management and service fees 3,244
Total revenues 262,228
Cost of revenues:
Transaction rebates 70,571
Activity remittance fees 10,586
License and data fees 4,170
Total cost of revenues 85,327
Gross margin 176,901
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 46,688
Technology and communications 22,524
Occupancy 12,183
Professional fees 11,094
Marketing and business development 1,441
Depreciation and amortization 10,822
Other 3,169
Total expenses 107,921
Operating income 68,980
Interest and investment income, net 917
Income before provision for income taxes 69,897
Provision for income taxes 29,110
Net income $ 40,787

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LL.C
Statement of Changes in Member’s Equity
Year ended December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Member’s equity as of December 31, 2011 $ 85,328
Net income 40,787
Stock-based compensation on parent company stock (3,618)
Capital distributions (105,332)
Capital contributions 40,873

Member’s equity as of December 31, 2012 $ 58,038

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2012

(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 40,787
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 10,822
Loss on sale of equipment 2,077
Stock-based compensation 160
Unrealized (gain)/loss on securities owned, net (439)
Deferred taxes (1,939)
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable, net (2,010)
Related party receivable (3,383)
Income tax receivable 6,523
Securities owned 1,634
Other assets 1,372
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (945)
Related party payable 3,579
Income tax payable 1,740
Compensation and benefits payable (5,211)
Deferred revenue (5,116)
Payment for order flow payable (87)
Other liabilities 3,252
Net cash provided by operating activities 52,816
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets and intangible assets (7,253)
Proceeds from sale of equipment 25
Net cash used in investing activities (7,228)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Capital distributions (105,332)
Capital contribution 40,873
Capital distribution for share arrangements (3,834)
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements 56
Net cash used in financing activities (68,237)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (22,649)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 62,073
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 39,424
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest b 129
Cash paid for taxes, net 10,463

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

Organization and Description of Business

International Securities Exchange, LLC (ISE or the Company) is a wholly owned subsidiary of
International Securities Exchange Holdings, Inc. (ISE Holdings or the Parent). ISE Holdings is the sole
member of the Company and its liability is limited to the balance of its capital account.

The Company is a fully electronic exchange for equity and index options and related services utilizing a
market structure which combines the efficiencies of electronic trading with auction market principles. ISE
was founded in September 1997. In February 2000, it received regulatory approval to become a national
securities exchange and, in May 2000, formally commenced trading. ISE is regulated by the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Effective December 20, 2007, Eurex Frankfurt AG (Eurex) completed a merger whereby it purchased all
the outstanding common stock of ISE Holdings, Inc. (the Parent). Eurex is a wholly by Deutsche Borse AG
(Deutsche Bérse). The Company continues to be regulated by the SEC as a registered national securities
exchange and operates as a subsidiary of Eurex.

Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies

(a)  Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and in the opinion of management reflect all adjustments,
consisting of only normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of financial condition,
income, and cash flows for the period presented.

(b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(¢) Revenue Recognition

Transaction fees are earned based on contracts executed on the Company’s exchange and are
recorded as transactions occur on a trade-date basis. Revenues from transactions are recorded on a
gross basis in transaction revenues with related rebates recorded as cost of revenues.

Market data revenues are earned from the sale of the Company’s trade and quote information
through the Options Price Reporting Authority, LLC (OPRA) as well as from real time and historical
data feeds sold directly to members. The Company earns a portion of OPRA’s net income based on
its pro rata share of industry trade volume. OPRA revenue is recorded as transactions occur on a
trade-date basis and other market data revenues are charged and recognized as eamned.

Member fees are comprised of revenues eamned for connectivity and access to the Company’s
exchange; revenue from the sale of Competitive Market Maker (CMM) trading rights; fees for use of
the Company’s communication network, equipment, and trading software; and regulatory and

7 (Continued)
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INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

administrative fees. Connectivity, access and communications fees, and equipment and trading
software fees are charged and recognized on a monthly basis based upon a specific fixed fee for each
service. Revenue from the sale of CMM trading rights is deferred and recognized on a straight-line
basis over 14 years. Administrative fees are charged and recognized as earned. Regulatory fees are
predominately charged on a trade-date basis.

Management and service fees represent fees for services provided to affiliates of ISE and Eurex.
Among the services provided to these affiliates are those relating to technology, regulatory
supervision, and general administration. These fees are accrued monthly.

Transaction rebates are paid on certain option trades to incentivize market participants to send
options order flow to the exchange. These transaction rebates are recorded on a trade-date basis.

Activity remittance fees are paid to the SEC pursuant to Section 31 of the Exchange Act. These fees
are designed to recover costs to the government for the supervision and regulation of securities
markets and securities professionals. This expense is wholly offset by activity assessment fees
charged by the Company to exchange members which is included in transaction fees. These fees are

recorded on a settlement-date basis.

License fees are paid to providers of index options products based upon the number of contracts
executed on our exchange. This expense is offset by surcharges charged by the Company to
exchange members for trading these products, which is included in transaction fees. These fees are
recorded on a trade-date basis.

Noncurrent Deferred Revenue

The Company sold CMM trading rights pursuant to purchase agreements which grant perpetual
trading rights on the Company’s exchange. The estimated useful life was determined based upon an
analysis of certain factors driving the securities industry that could have an effect on the Company’s
operations in providing services to its exchange members. Such factors included significant historical
operating, regulatory and technology changes which have affected market participants and trading
venues. Based upon the analysis, the Company currently recognizes revenue from the sale on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 14 years; however, this period may be subject to
change in the future.

On a periodic basis, or if certain circumstances come to its attention, the Company reviews the
original factors or assumptions used in determining the estimated service period to ascertain the
effect, if any, current events may have on those factors and assumptions. If the current facts warrant
a change in the estimated service period, the Company will adjust the remaining revenue to be
recognized in accordance with the new estimated service life using the prospective method. The
service period may increase or decrease from the current estimate of 14 years based upon the facts
and circumstances.

8 (Continued)
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INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers investments in money market funds and all highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of 90 days or less at the time of purchase as cash equivalents. Cash equivalents

are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable are stated at face value, net of allowance for any doubtful account. An estimate
for doubtful accounts, based on the Company’s bad debt experience and specific circumstances of
the debtor, is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.

Income Taxes

The Company is a single-member limited liability company. It has not elected to be treated as a
corporation for tax purposes. Its tax status is therefore considered to be that of a disregarded entity,
and as such, the results of the Company’s operations are included in ISE Holdings’ U.S. federal,

state, and local income tax returns.

The Company records income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes, on a
separate-company basis, pursuant to which it is required to recognize deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts and tax bases of its assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is
established for any portion of its deferred tax asset for which a tax benefit is not expected to be
realized. The income tax receivable balance represents amounts due from ISE Holdings.

The Company applies the provisions of ASC 740 which requires management to determine whether
a tax position is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any
related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. Once it is
determined that a position meets this recognition threshold, the position is measured to determine the
amount of benefit to be recognized in the financial statements. The Company recognizes interest and
penalties, if applicable, related to uncertain tax positions as a component of provision for income
taxes in the accompanying statement of income.

Payment for Order Flow

The Company imposes fees upon market makers to fund payments to order flow providers under a
program administered by the Company. These fees are distributed to certain order flow providers as
an economic inducement to route their customer orders to the Company’s exchange. The market
makers have full discretion regarding the payment. Pursuant to ASC 605, Revenue Recognition, the
Company reflects the assessments and payments on a net basis, with no impact on revenues or
expenses. When fees are assessed, the Company records an asset (accounts receivable) with a
corresponding liability (payment for order flow payable).

Payment for order flow cash is reflected in cash and cash equivalents on the Company’s statement of
financial condition. These funds are not legally restricted and can be used for general corporate
purposes.

9 (Continued)
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INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718,
Compensation — Stock Compensation. The Company has both liability and equity-classified plans:
the Stock Bonus Plan (SBP) and the ISE Group Share Plan (GSP).

SBP is a liability-classified plan for Company’s senior executives. Compensation expense is
recognized over the relevant vesting period based on the fair value of restricted stock awards with a
corresponding increase in liabilities. Compensation expense and liabilities are remeasured based on
the fair value of Deutsche Bérse shares on each balance sheet date until the award is settled. Upon
vesting, Deutsche Borse has an option whether to settle the award in shares or in cash with a
corresponding decrease in liability. Historically, these awards have been settled in cash.

GSP is an equity-classified plan for Company’s nonexecutive employees. Compensation expense is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the relevant vesting period based on the grant-date fair value
of Deutsche Bérse shares with a corresponding increase in member’s equity. Upon vesting, the
Company settles the award in shares.

Long-Term Deferred Compensation Plan

Under terms of the Long-Term Deferred Compensation Plan, eligible employees are awarded a
deferred incentive bonus in which the Company will invest its own funds, on behalf of the employee,
in amounts equal to the investment choices as designated by the plan participant. The investments
held through an irrevocable grantor trust were in several mutual funds. Investments, which are
classified as Securities Owned on the statement of financial condition, are carried at fair value with
realized and unrealized gains or losses reported in other interest and investment income on the
statement of income. The deferred compensation obligations are classified as liabilities and adjusted
with a corresponding charge or credit to compensation and benefits expense to reflect the fair value
of the amount owed to the employees.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of computer hardware, fumiture and fixtures, equipment, and leaschold
improvements. Capitalized fixed assets are depreciated utilizing the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives as follows:

Hardware and equipment 3 to 7 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the lease term or its
estimated useful life.

10 (Continued)
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INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of customized and standard software, related licenses, and capitalized
software development costs. Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives as follows:

Trading related software licenses 5 to 7 years
Other software licenses 3 to 5 years

Costs for internal software are assessed to determine whether they should be capitalized or expensed
in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other. Software development costs
incurred during the preliminary project stage are expensed as incurred, while costs incurred during
the application development stage are capitalized. Amortization is computed using the straight-line
method over the software’s estimated useful life, generally three to seven years, depending on the
type of software. Amortization of these capitalized costs begins only when the software becomes
ready for its intended use. Capitalization of costs ceases when the post implementation/operation
stage of the software development process is reached.

Marketing and Business Development

Advertising costs, including media advertising and production costs, are expensed when incurred.

Impairment of Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets

On a periodic basis, the Company performs a review for the impairment of fixed and intangible
assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the estimated undiscounted future cash
flows expected to be generated by the assets are less than their carrying amounts or when other
events occur which may indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

Credit Risk

Pursuant to agreements with its members, the Company has the authority to deduct outstanding
noncontested receivables from members clearing deposit accounts at the Options Clearing
Corporation. Based upon these facts, the Company believes its credit risk is not material to its

financial condition.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:

Cash at banks 3 379
Money market accounts 39,043

Money market funds reserved for
payment for order flow program 2
Total $ 39,424

11 (Continued)
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INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of the following:

Trading related fees $ 21,955

Payment for order flow program 1,340

Allowance for doubtful accounts (34
Total $ 23,261

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the write-off for doubtful accounts was $4. The recorded
investment in trade receivables past due 90 days or more is $302 as of December 31, 2012.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company applies ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, which provides guidance in using fair value to
measure assets and liabilities and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements.

ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurements). The three levels of fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Quoted prices for instruments that are identical or similar in markets that are not active and
model-derived valuations for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly in
active markets

Level 3 — Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and
are unobservable

The hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. As required by ASC 820, assets
and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement. As of December 31, 2012, all of the Company’s securities owned consist of exchange
traded funds and money market mutual funds and are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy.

Noncurrent Deferred Revenue

The Company has sold 50 CMM trading rights as of December 31, 2012. No trading rights were sold
during the year ended December 31, 2012, The CMM trading rights were each sold pursuant to purchase
agreements for $1.5 million each.

12 (Continued)



INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Changes in deferred revenue are as follows:

Beginning balance $
Additions during the period
Revenue recognized during the period

Ending balance $

(7) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following:

Leasehold improvements $
Furniture and fixtures

Hardware and equipment

Assets under construction

Accumulated depreciation

Total $

The Company recorded $7,333 in depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2012.

(8) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of the following:

Trading related software $

Other intangible assets

In-process intangible assets

Trading related software — accumulated
amortization

Total $

The Company recorded amortization of $3,489 for the year ended December 31, 2012,

13

25,380

(5,114)

20,266

24,859
2,132
19,612

(24,237)

22,366

25,603
519
683

(12,064)

14,741
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INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

The following table presents the estimated amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal

years:
Amortization
expense
Year ending December 31:

2013 $ 4,480

2014 4,409

2015 4,364

2016 1,212

2017 106

In-process intangible assets begin amortization when ready for the asset’s intended use. The Company
capitalized $5,515 for software licenses and software developed for internal use during the year ended

December 31, 2012,

(99 Member Fees and Other

Member fees and other are comprised of the following:

Connectivity, access fees and other fees $ 18,507
Communication, equipment and software

fees 4,084
Regulatory and administrative fees 15,021
Other 810
Revenue from sale of CMM trading rights 5,114

Total $ 43,536

(10) Stock-Based Plans

During the year, the Company participated in two stock-based plans offered by Deutsche Borse: the Stock
Bonus Plan (SBP) for senior executives and the ISE Group Share Plan (GSP) for other employees.

(a) Stock Bonus Plan

In order to participate in the SBP, a participant must have eamed a SBP award. The number of SBP
shares granted is determined by the amount of the individual performance-based SBP award, divided
by the grant price (SBP shares awarded). The SBP awards are not delivered at the time the award is
determined. Rather, the SBP awards are subject to a two-year vesting period. Within this period,
participants cannot assert shareholder rights (in particular, the right to receive dividends and attend
the Annual General Meeting). The participants’ claims resulting from the SBP awards are calculated
on the first trading day following the last day of the vesting period. The current market price on that
day (closing auction price of Deutsche Borse shares in electronic trading on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange) is multiplied by the number of SBP shares awarded. Deutsche Bérse has the option to
settle a participant’s claim in cash or shares. As a result of the decision by Deutsche Bérse to settle

14 (Continued)
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prior claims in cash, the compensation cost accrual for all SBP awards are classified as liabilities.
The liability is measured as the number of SBP shares awarded multiplied by the market share price
at the balance sheet date and is recognized proportionately over the vesting period. No shares were
awarded during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Information related to SBP grants is set forth below (dollars and shares in whole amounts):

Unvested Unvested Unvested
Price at Adjusted/  December 31, Adjusted/  December 31, Adjusted/  December 31
Date of grant grant date Granted forfeited 2010 Granted forfeited 2011 Granted Vested forfeited 2012

February 11,2010 § nni 70,558 (1,286) 69,072 — (11,424) 57,648 - (57,648) — —
February 11, 2011 63.03 — — - 38,995 (9,086) 29,909 — — (3.547) 26.362

Compensation expense related to the SBP plan was $1,091 for the year ended December 31, 2012.
As of December 31, 2012, $67 of unrecognized compensation costs related to nonvested SBP grants

remain to be amortized in 2013.

(b) ISE Group Share Plan

Under the GSP, eligible employees have the opportunity to acquire a number of shares in Deutsche
Borse based on their earned award plus an additional personal contribution. The purchase price for
the shares, which is reduced by 90%, is paid from the granted GSP award and an additional
contribution by the employee. Neither the GSP award nor the number of GSP shares is delivered at
the time the award is determined, but instead are subject to a two-year vesting period beginning at
their grant date. Within this period, beneficiaries cannot assert shareholder rights (in particular, the
right to receive dividends and attend the Annual General Meeting).

The GSP shares are measured at the fair value on the grant date and recognized in the income
statement over the one or two-year vesting period with a corresponding increase in member’s equity.

Information related to GSP grants is set forth below (dollars and shares in whole amounts):

Unvested Unvested Unvested
Price at Adjusted/ December 31, Adjusted/ December 31, December 31,
Date of grant grant date Granted forfeited 2010 forfeited 2011 Vested 2012
February 11,2010  § 63.52 81,765 (7,664) 74,101 (7.042) 67,059 (67,059) —

Compensation expense related to the GSP plan was $160 for the year ended December 31, 2012, As
of December 31, 2012, $0 of unrecognized compensation costs related to nonvested GSP grants
remain to be amortized in 2013. There were no shares granted during the year ended December 31,
2011 or December 31, 2012.

(11) Employee Benefit Plans

Employees are eligible to participate in the Company’s defined contribution 401(k) plan upon meeting
certain eligibility requirements. Funding is provided by voluntary contributions from the employees who
can contribute up to 20% of their annual compensation to the 401(k) plan. The Company makes
discretionary contributions based upon its results of operations and each participant’s contributions up to

15 (Continued)
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prescribed limits. The plan is administered by a third party. The Company’s expense relating to this plan
was $1,475 for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Employees are also eligible to participate in a deferred compensation plan established to provide
employees with a long-term incentive. Under the terms of the plan, eligible employees are awarded a
deferred incentive bonus in which ISE will invest its own funds, on behalf of the employee, in amounts
equal to the investment choices by the plan participants into the designated investments options, consisting
of several mutual funds. The investment allocations constitute a deemed, not actual, investment for the
participating employees. At no time does the participant have beneficial ownership in any investment;
rather the allocation is used solely for purposes of adjusting the value of a participant’s account based on
earnings and losses resulting from the performance of the investment allocation. The investments are held
in a trust structured to conform to the model approved by the IRS (an irrevocable grantor’s trust) and the
assets of the trust are subject to the claims of ISE’s general creditors. Investment gains and losses are
recorded in other revenue with an offsetting entry to compensation expense. Upon vesting, amounts
payable to employee are settled in cash and ISE has no further obligation. Compensation expense related to
the deferred compensation plan was $5,006 for the year ended December 31, 2012. As of December 31,
2012, $6,351 of unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested deferred compensation plan remains
to be amortized in 2013 and 2014,

Income Taxes

In accordance with a tax arrangement, the Company receives an allocation of ISE Holdings current and
deferred income tax. The Company’s share is calculated as if it were required to file federal, state, and
local tax returns. This allocation from ISE Holdings is presented as provision for income taxes in the
statement of income and deferred tax assets in the statement of financial condition.

The proviston for income taxes consists of the following:

Current;
Federal $ 20,367
State 10,717
Total current 31,084
Deferred:
Federal (201)
State (1,773)
Total deferred (1,974)

Total provision for income
taxes $ 29,110

16 {Continued)
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The temporary differences which have created deferred tax assets and liabilities are detailed below.
Management believes that it is more likely than not the tax assets will be realized and therefore has not

recognized any valuation allowance.

Deferred tax assets:

CMM trading rights $ 10,772

Compensation-related 7,104

Other 1,028
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation and amortization (1,865)

Software development (4,446)

Other (102)

Total deferred tax assets, net $ 12,491

The following is a reconciliation of the provision for income taxes and the amount computed by applying
the U.S. federal statutory rate to income before income taxes.

U.S. federal income tax rate 35.0%
State and local income tax, net of federal
income tax benefit 7.2
Other permanent differences 0.3
Other 0.9
Effective tax rate 41.6%

The Company assesses its risk associated with uncertain tax positions and records tax benefits for all years
subject to examination based on the best information available at the reporting date. For those positions
where it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will be sustained, the Company records the largest
amount of the tax benefit with a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement
with the tax authority. For those positions where it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be
sustained, no tax benefit is recognized in the financial statements. During the period, the Company
decreased the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits by $630. The unrecognized tax benefits relate to
fixed assets. At this time, the Company does not expect any material change in the unrecognized tax
positions over the next twelve months.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of the unrecognized tax benefit is as follows:

Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 630
Release of reserve due to expiration

of statute (630)
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ —

17 (Continued)
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The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax positions separate from income
tax expense in its statement of income. At December 31, 2012, $79 of accrued interest expense related to

the unrecognized tax positions was reversed.
Capital Distributions and Contributions

Capital distributions from the Company to ISE Holdings during the year ended December 31, 2012 were as
follows:

Funding provided to parent for its dividend payment to shareholders $ (102,000)
Funding provided to parent for its investment in associates (3,332)
Total capital distributions $ (105,332)

Capital contributions from ISE Holdings to the Company during the year ended December 31, 2012 are as
follows:

Return of funding provided to parent for its dividend payment to shareholders 3 40,873

Total capital contributions $ 40,873

Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Litigation

From time to time, the Company is involved in various routine reviews, regulatory audits, and
inspections by the SEC as well as legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. While
any litigation contains an element of uncertainty, it is the opinion of management, after consultation
with counsel, that the outcome of any such proceedings or claims is unlikely to have a material
adverse effect on the business, financial condition, or operating results of the Company.

(b) Contractual Obligations

The Company has entered into obligations under operating leases with initial noncancelable terms in
excess of one year for data center space, office space and computer equipment. Expenses recorded
under these agreements for the year ended December 31, 2012 were $10,655.

18 (Continued)
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Total
Year ending December 31:
2013 $ 12,754
2014 10,208
2015 3,127
2016 2,783
2017 2,383
Thereafter 8,929

Letter of Credit

The Company has collateralized office space leases through a standby letter of credit. As of
December 31, 2012, the Company provided a letter of credit totaling $1,865 collateralized by a
certificate of deposit at a financial institution which is included in other assets.

19

Commitments for operating leases are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. At December 31, 2012, future minimum payments for commitments are as follows:

The Company applies the provisions of ASC 460, Guarantees, which provides accounting and
disclosure requirements for certain guarantees. The Company’s trading rules, which its exchange
members are bound by, limit the Company’s liability for losses suffered while conducting business
on the Company’s exchange. The Company’s exchange trading rules do not extend to the customers
of its exchange members. However, the Company may, at its sole discretion, indemnify its exchange
members for losses they suffer in very limited circumstances.

(Continued)
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(15) Related Party Transactions

The Company provides and receives technology and administrative services to/from affiliates of ISE and
Eurex. Listed below are transactions with related parties for the year ended December 31, 2012, as well as
payable and receivable balances as of December 31, 2012:

Management
and service Accounts Accounts Income tax
Related party fees Expense payable receivable receivable

ISE Holdings, Inc. $ — — 1,108 — 13,213
Longitude LLC — — — 1,817 —
ETC Acquisition Corp — — 3,638 — —
Deutche Borse Group AG 118 225 346 103 —
Eurex Frankfurt AG — — 246 — —
Eurex Clearing AG 427 — — 17 —
Finnovation S.A. 1,553 13,714 4,446 1,553 —
Clearstream Banking S.A. — — — 38 —
U.S. Exchange Holdings, Inc. — 173 130 —
Direct Edge Holdings, LLC 1,146 — — 736 —
Hanweck Associates, LLC — 469 39 — —

Total $ 3,244 14,581 9,953 4,264 13,213

(16) Business Concentrations

Revenues are derived in the United States and all of the Company’s assets are located in the United States.
The Company considers significant customers to be those who account for more than 10% of the
Company’s gross margin. For the year ended December 31, 2012, no exchange member accounted for

more than 10% of the Company’s gross margin.

(17) Subsequent Events

The Company has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through April 29, 2013. There have been
no material subsequent events that occurred during such period that would be required to be recognized in

the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012.
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Longitude LLC

Revenues:
Intercompany Revenue
Expenses:
Legal fees
Consulting fees
Other
Total expenses

Earnings before interest and taxes

Interest income

Income/(Loss)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivable from affiliates
Other current assets
Current assets

Non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES, AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payable to affiliates

Total liabilities
MEMBER'S EQUITY
Total member's equity

Total liabilities and member's equity

Year Ended December 31,

2012

$5,719,676

162,121
1,265,555
368,736

1,796,412
3,923,264

4

$3,923,268

December 31,

2012

$5,020,420
866,760
3,651

5,890,831
19,372

5,910,202

148,938
1,816,519

1,965,456

3,944,746

$5,910,202



Longitude S.A

Revenues:
Intercompany Revenue
Expenses:
Intercompany Expenses
Other expenses

Total expenses
Earnings before interest and taxes

Interest income
Income/(Loss)

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other assets
Receivable from affiliates
Current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES, AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Other liabilites
Payable to affiliates
Total liabilities

MEMBER'S EQUITY
Total member's equity

Total liabilities and member's equity

Year Ended December 31,

2012

$44.332

717,264
149,979

867,243
(822,912)

($822,912)

December 31,

2012

$1,315,657
5,377
52,622

1,373,657
1,373,657

33,369
741,318

774,687

598,970

$1,373,657
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% JANOVER Lic

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditoﬁs' Report

To the Members of Hanweck Associates, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hanweck Associates, LLC, which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the related statements of
operations and members’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to

the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits, We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

NEW YORK CITY 805 Third Avenue, 10th Floor, New York, New York 10022 ¢ Tel: 212.792.6300 Fax: 212.792.6350

JANOVER LLc o A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Hanweck Associates, LLC as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Ll




HANWECK ASSOCIATES, LLC

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2012 2011
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 200,872 41,289
Accounts receivable 184,368 266,417
Accounts receivable - related party 51,919 45,128
Prepaid expenses 35,993 45,791
Due from related party 33,315 -
Total current assets 506,467 398,625
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization of $457,256 and $286,554, respectively 318,494 317,331
Other assets 5,000 5,000
829,961 720,956
Liabilities and Members' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 447,281 462,929
Note payable, current maturities 26,250 -
Loans payable - member (including accrued interest
of $2,985 and $3,088, respectively) 202,985 98,088
Deferred revenue 12,607 12,607
Total current liabilities 689,123 573,624
Note payable, less current maturities - 25,000
Commitments and contingencies
Members' equity 140,838 122,332
829,961 720,956

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




HANWECK ASSOCIATES, LLC

Statements of Operations and Members' Equity

For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 2011
Revenue $ 2,668,229 $ 1,651,602
Operating expenses:
Bad debt expense 413 -
Computer and related expenses 248,345 190,531
Contracted services 179,633 28,816
General and administrative expenses 289,083 250,178
Guaranteed payments to members 450,000 480,000
Insurance 276,740 208,859
Payroll and related taxes 1,378,082 1,071,181
Professional fees 58,530 71,583
Rent and related utilities 220,215 223,304
Repairs and maintenance 3,387 -
Telecommunications 337,655 263,310
Trade shows and conferences 2,634 1,900
Travel and entertainment 28,257 16,208
3,472,974 2,805,870
Operating loss (804,745) (1,154,268)
Other income (expense):
Interest income 1,389 4,189
Depreciation and amortization (170,702) (138,184)
Interest expense (7,436) (4,414)
(176,749) (138,409)
Net loss (981,494) (1,292,677)
Members' equity - beginning of year 122,332 430,009
Members' contributions 1,000,000 985,000
Members' equity - end of year $ 140,838 $ 122,332

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




HANWECK ASSOCIATES, LLC

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (981,4949) $  (1,292,677)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 170,702 138,184
Accrued interest on loans payable - member 2,985 3,088
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 82,049 (151,704)
Accounts receivable - related party (6,791) 12,372
Prepaid expenses 9,798 (27,828)
Other assets - 21,130
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (15,648) 185,515
Net cash used in operating activities (738,399) (1,111,920)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Due from related party (33,315) -
Purchases of property and equipment (171,865) (274,615)
Net cash used in investing activities (205,180) (274,615)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from note payable 1,250 25,000
Proceeds from loans payable - member 450,000 250,000
Payments on loans payable - member (345,000) (250,000)
Payment of accrued interest on loans payable - member (3,088) (3,541)
Capital contributions 1,000,000 985,000
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,103,162 1,006,459
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 159,583 (380,076)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 41,289 421,365
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 200,872 $ 41,289
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 6,289 $ 4,752

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




HANWECK ASSOCIATES, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements
" -
December 31, 2012 and 2011

1. Business Organization

Hanweck Associates, LLC (“Hanweck” or the “Company”) is a Limited Liability Company,
formed on November 25, 2003. The Company’s Limited Liability Company Operating
Agreement (“LLC Agreement”) was amended and restated on February 2, 2010. The
Company has a perpetual existence unless a dissolution event occurs pursuant to its LLC
Agreement. Hanweck is an established leader in high-performance financial computing and
a premier financial services provider, specializing in risk management solutions for top-tier
hedge funds, banks, broker/dealers and other financial institutions.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation — The Company’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting, whereas the tax retumns are prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

Revenue recognition — The Company has various consulting, data subscription, and license
agreements and recognizes income as earned in accordance with the agreements.

Allowance for doubtful accounts — Bad debts are provided for under the allowance method
based upon analyses of open accounts and their expected collectability. As of December 31,
2012 and 2011, an allowance for doubtful accounts was not deemed necessary.

Property and equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Repairs and maintenance are charged to
expense as incurred. Property and equipment consists of computer equipment which is
depreciated over an estimated life of 3 years and furniture and equipment which is
depreciated over an estimated life of 7 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over 7

years.

Use of estimates in the financial statements — The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Sales tax — Sales tax is assessed by a governmental authority on the purchase of goods and
services. The Company collects sales tax for New York. Current practice is that sales tax is
reported on a net basis in the statement of operations and changes in members’ equity.




HANWECK ASSOCIATES, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents — The Company considers all highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Fair value disclosures — The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and loans payable approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of these

accounts.

Income taxes — The Company is a limited liability company treated as a partnership under
the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and local jurisdictions. Therefore,
the Company is not subject to income taxes, and any net income or loss as determined for
income tax purposes is allocated to the members based on the provisions of the LLC
Agreement. The Company is subject to New York City Unincorporated Business Tax
(“NYCUBT”). The Company accounts for NYCUBT utilizing the asset and liability
approach. Deferred taxes represent the future tax consequences expected to occur when the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities are recovered or paid. The provision for income
taxes generally represents income taxes paid or payable for the current year plus the change
in deferred taxes during the year. Deferred taxes result from the differences between the
financial and tax bases of the Firm’s assets and liabilities and are adjusted for changes in tax
rates and tax laws when changes are enacted. However, the Company estimates a loss for
income tax purposes; therefore, no provision has been recorded for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, in the accompanying statements of operations and members’

equity.

Uncertain tax positions — The Company adopted the provisions of accounting for uncertain
income taxes positions. As a result of the implementation, the Company was not required to
recognize any amounts from uncertain tax positions. The Company’s conclusions regarding
uncertain tax positions may be subject to review and adjustment at a later date based upon
ongoing analyses of tax laws, regulations and interpretations thereof, as well as other factors.
Generally, federal, state and local authorities may examine the Company’s tax returns for
three years from the date of filing; consequently, the respective tax returns for years prior to
2009 are no longer subject to examination by tax authorities.

Reclassifications — Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year
financial statements.

See independent auditors' report. 5
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

3. Property and Equipment

Major classifications of property and equipment and their respective depreciable lives are
summarized as follows as of December 31,

2012 2011 Useful Life
Computer equipment $ 725,657 $ 553,792 3 years
Furniture and equipment 26,950 26,950 7 years
Leasehold improvements 23,143 23,143 7 years
775,750 603,885 '

Less: accumulated depreciation
and amortization 457,256 286,554

$ 318,494 $ 317331

Depreciation and amortization was $170,702 and $138,184, respectively, for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

4. Note Payable

On Apnl 29, 2011, pursuant to a Convertible Note Purchase Agreement, the Company issued
a $25,000 convertible promissory note to Fintech Innovation Lab, Inc. (“Fintech”). The note
matures on April 29, 2013, at which time the outstanding principal balance and any unpaid
interest, at the stated rate of 5% per annum, become due and payable. As outlined in the
original underlying agreement, the note can be converted to an amount of up to 15% of any

new equity of the Company.

On April 29, 2013, this note was extended through April 29, 2015; at which time the
outstanding principal balance and any accrued and unpaid interest shall become due and
payable. However, Fintech no longer has the right to participate in future financing.

5. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating lease — The Company leases office space in New York City to conduct its
business. The lease commenced in February 2011, expires on July 31, 2021, and contains
rent escalations. Currently, monthly rent is $14,582. As required by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board's ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification No. 840 ("ASC
840") “Accounting for Leases”, the Company amortizes its rent expense on a straight-line
basis over the life of the related lease. The rent expense charged to operations for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $198,410 and $206,332, respectively.




HANWECK ASSOCIATES, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements
R
December 31, 2012 and 2011

5. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

As of December 31, 2012, future minimum rental payments on this lease are as follows for
the years ending December 31,:

2013 $ 174,111
2014 183,473
2015 188,060
2016 207,433
2017 213,952
Thereafter 812,049

$ 1,779,078

In conjunction with the security deposit for the lease agreement, the Company entered into a
Standby Letter of Credit Pledge Agreement in the amount of $56,907 on January 11, 2011.

Litigation — In November 2011, the Company signed a Settlement Agreement and General
Release in connection with a dispute between the Company and a former independent
contractor for the Company. The independent contractor was engaged to perform services,
as outlined in the underlying agreement with the Company, and alleged that commissions
were due under this agreement. The settlement was in the amount of $20,000 and has been
paid and is included in contracted services on the accompanying statements of operations and
members’ equity for the year ended December 31, 2011,

6. Related Party Transactions

Loans payable — The Company had loans in the amount of $95,000 payable to one of its
members. The loans bore interest at a rate of 3.25% per annum, calculated annually not in
advance, and there were no set repayment terms. The balance of the loans as of December
31, 2011 was $98,088, which included accrued unpaid interest of $3,088. On April 26, 2012,
the entire principal balance and accrued interest was paid. Interest expense related to these
loans amounted to $929 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and is included in the

accompanying statement of operations and members’ equity.

During March 2011, the Company borrowed an additional $250,000 from this member. Such
amount was paid back on April 21, 2011.
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6. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Line of credit — In January 2012, the Company obtained a line of credit in the amount of
$250,000 from a member of the Company. The line of credit bore interest at a rate of 5% per
annum. During 2012, the Company borrowed $250,000 under this line of credit, and the
entire balance and accrued interest in the amount of $2,272 were paid on April 20, 2012.

The line of credit was amended on September 26, 2012, increasing the line to $400,000. The
amended line of credit bears interest at a rate of 7% per annum. Interest on the unpaid
balance will accrue and is payable when the principal balance is due, which is on June 30,
2013. As of December 31, 2012, the outstanding balance on this line of credit is $202,985,

which includes accrued interest of $2,985.

ISE - On February 2, 2010, pursuant to a Membership Interest Purchase Agreement
(“MIPA”), one of the Company’s indirect customers, International Securities Exchange
Holdings, Inc. (“ISE”) purchased a 12.2% ownership interest in Hanweck for $1,250,000.
The underlying agreement outlines specific criteria in which ISE is eligible to purchase
additional membership interest in Hanweck. In connection with this transaction, the
Company’s operating agreement was amended and restated. On April 8, 2011, ISE
purchased an additional 7.7% ownership interest in Hanweck for $985,000.

In accordance with the terms of the underlying MIPA, on March 29, 2012, ISE purchased an
additional 7.7% ownership interest in Hanweck for $1,000,000, completing its last additional

membership interest purchase.

Revenues from ISE for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were $661,643 and
$415,217, respectively. In addition, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had
accounts receivable due from ISE of $51,919 and $45,128, respectively. Furthermore, ISE

represents one of the customers for both the revenue and accounts receivable concentrations
(see Note 7).

During 2012, the Company and ISE entered into a joint product agreement, whereby, the
Company and ISE intend to develop certain products. In connection with this agreement,
certain revenue and expenses are shared between the Company and ISE, as described in the
underlying agreement. At December 31, 2012, $33,315 is due from ISE in connection with
the agreement, and is included in due from related party on the accompanying balance sheets.
This amount was repaid on March 8, 2013.

Professional services — An affiliate of a member of the Company provides professional
services for the Company. The total amount of such expenses for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2011 was $5,589 and $5,425, respectively, and is included in professional fess
on the statements of operations and members’ equity.

See independent auditors’ report. 8




HANWECK ASSOCIATES, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

7. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash balances with a financial institution in interest bearing and
non-interest bearing accounts. In 2012, non-interest bearing accounts held in the United
States were fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), while
interest bearing accounts were insured up to $250,000. Beginning January 1, 2013, interest
bearing and non-interest bearing accounts are insured by the FDIC up to $250,000 per
financial institution. The Company believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk for
cash and has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Four and two customers, respectively, accounted for approximately 53% and 36%,
respectively, of the Company’s revenue for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,

Two and three customers, respectively, accounted for approximately 40% and 77%,
respectively, of the Company’s accounts receivable balances as of December 31, 2012 and

2011.

Consulting and licensing agreements — The Company has various consulting and licensing
agreements with different customers. These agreements provide for monthly, annual or one-
time fees. The Company strictly adheres to these agreements and provides the services as

agreed to.

8. Defined Contribution Plan

The Company offers a non-contributory deferred compensation plan under section 401(k) of
the Internal Revenue Code through which employee salary deferral contributions can be
made and is open to all full time employees. Presently, the Company does not provide any
matching contributions to participants. The Company has not incurred any expenses
associated with this plan for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

See independent auditors’ report. 9



HANWECK ASSOCIATES, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

9. Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from New York City unincorporated business taxes
are as follows at December 31,:

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Accounts receivable $ (10,000) $  (12,000)
Net operating loss carryforwards 80,000 61,000
Accounts payable 18,000 20,000
Property, plant and equipment (8,000) (11,000)
Valuation allowance (80,000) (58,000)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ - $ -

The deferred tax assets and liabilities result from: (1) accounts receivable that are not
recognized for tax purposes until the cash is received, (2) available net operating loss
carryforwards for unincorporated business tax, (3) accounts payable that is not deducted for
tax purposes until the amounts are paid, and (4) the use of accelerated methods of

depreciation of property and equipment.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had approximately $1,995,000 and
$1,561,000, respectively of net operating loss carryforwards available to offset future taxable
income, expiring through 2032 and 2031. In assessing the reliability of deferred tax assets,
the Company considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future
taxable income. Based on the Company’s projected operating income, management believes
it is not likely that the Company will realize some of the benefits of this deferred tax asset
and, accordingly, valuation allowances of approximately $80,000 and $58,000 have been
recorded against the net deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2012 and 201 1, respectively.

10. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated events and transactions occurring after the date of the balance
sheet and through the date of the independent auditors’ report to determine whether any of
these events or transactions was required to be recognized or disclosed in the financial
statements. The date of the independent auditors’ report is the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued.

independent auditors’ report, o 10
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US Exchange Holdings, Inc

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2012
Revenues:
Revenue $ 107,513
Expenses:
Expenses: 6,502
Earnings/(loss) before interest and taxes 101,011
Interest expense 102,000
Interest income 7
Pretax Income/(Loss) (982)
Provison for income tax 740
Net Income/(Loss) $ (1,722)
December 31,
2012
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,082
Other current assets 29,984
Current assets 62,066
Investment in subsidiaries 2,715,188
Investment in associates 2,675
Non-current assets 2,717,863
Total assets 2,779,929
LIABILITIES, AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
Liabilities
Loan from affiliated companies 1,700,000
Other laibiliets 62,365
Total liabilities 1,762,365
MEMBER'S EQUITY
Total member's equity 1,017,563

Total liabilities and member's equity $ 2,779,929



Exhibit I

Exhibit Request:

For the latest fiscal year of the applicant, audited financial statements which are prepared in
accordance with, or in the case of a foreign applicant, reconciled with, United States generally
accepted accounting principles, and are covered by a report prepared by an independent public
accountant. If an applicant has no consolidated subsidiaries, it shall file audited financial
statements under Exhibit I alone and need not file a separate unaudited financial statement for
the applicant under Exhibit D.

Response:

Audited financial statements are submitted in response to Exhibit I. The Exchange does not
maintain audited financials except for those of its holding company, Direct Edge Holdings LLC,
and Direct Edge ECN LLC d/b/a DE Route, the Exchange’s routing broker/dealer. Therefore, in
response to Exhibit I, the Exchange attaches the consolidated audited financial statements of
Direct Edge Holdings LLC (consolidated) and DE Route. In addition, the Exchange has included
the unaudited financial statements of the Direct Edge Holdings LLC subsidiaries, Direct Edge,
Inc., EDGA Exchange, Inc. and EDGX Exchange, Inc..



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
2012 Statement of income

Direct Edge  Direct Edge,
Holdings Inc. DE Route
(DEH) (DEN) EDGA EDGX (DER)
Revenue
Commission Revenue 514,914,355 527,422,068 113,255,902 414,336,166 62,712,720
Market Data 47,023,574 46,761,949 10,769,096 35,992,853
Other Income 20,008,174 19,939,979 25,747
Total Revenue 581,946,103 594,123,996 124,024,998 450,329,019 62,738,467
Expense
Trade related Expense
Execution and clearance fees 148,500,846 167,856,428 73,029,826 94,826,603 55,864,851
Rebates 330,044,278 330,044,278 13,866,508 316,177,770
Total Trade Related Expense 478,545,124 497,900,706 86,896,334 411,004,373 55,864,851
Gross Profit 103,400,979 96,223,290 37,128,664 39,324,646 6,873,616
17.8% 16.2% 29.9% 8.7% 11.0%
Fixed Expense
Compensation and Benefits 29,293,740 29,101,240 14,400,620 14,400,620 192,500
Communications and Data Processing 24,569,022 21,199,696 7,399,474 12,600,222 3,369,326
Depreciation and Amortization 6,009,268 5,294,338 2,089,327 3,205,012 714,929
Professional Fees 11,088,255 10,728,771 5,489,386 5,489,386 359,484
Other Expense 4,615,258 4,607,713 2,178,857 2,178,858 7,494
Total Fixed Expense 75,575,543 70,931,758 31,557,664 37,874,098 4,643,733
Net Income (Loss) Before Tax 27,825,436 25,291,532 5,571,000 1,450,548 2,229,883
Income Taxes 9,359,520 9,359,520 1,007,750 570,203
Net Income 18,465,916 15,932,012 4,563,250 880,345 2,229,883
Notes:

-DEH and DEI represent consolidated financial

statements

-DEH and DER represent audited financials



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Statement of Financial Condition
December 31, 2012

Direct Edge
Holdings  Direct Edge, DE Route

Assets (DEH) Inc. (DEI) EDGA EDGX (DER)
Cash and cash equivalents 72,018,280 57,693,676 17,590,184 27,760,548 10,864,841
Receivables from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations 46,724,699 46,724,699 11,146,084 33,259,936
Fixed assets, at cost, less accum depreciation 11,795,968 11,795,968
Goodwill 34,783,202 10,953,202
Deferred tax asset 41,701,746 41,701,746
Intercompany Receivable 8,862,782 4,810,721
Intangible assets, less accumulated amortization 1,236,983 1,236,983
Other assets 6,709,920 6,092,082

Total Assets 214,970,798 185,061,138 28,736,268 61,020,484 15,675,562
Liabilities and Members' Equity
Liabilities
Payable to brokers, dealers and clearing organizations 2,484,154 2,484,154
Rebates payable 13,587,715 13,587,715 199,130 13,388,585
Activity remittance fees payable 35,874,667 35,874,667 7,912,163 27,962,504
Loans payable 25,000,000 25,000,000
Intercompany Payable 13,427,121 7,719,590 5,707,531 279,822
Accrued compensation and other accrued expenses 10,402,967 10,383,714 1,298

Total Liabilities 87,349,503 98,273,216 15,830,882 47,059,918 2,763,976
Members' Equity 127,621,295 86,787,922 12,905,386 13,960,566 12,911,585

Total Liabilities and Members' Equity 214,970,798 185,061,138 28,736,268 61,020,484 15,675,561
Notes:

-DEH and DEI represent consolidated financial

statements

-DEH and DER represent audited financials
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Direct Edge Holdings LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Direct Edge Holdings
LLC, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2012,
and the related consolidated statement of operations, consolidated changes in members’ equity
and cash flows for the year then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Direct Edge Holdings LLC at December 31, 2012, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

W&"T"“ Lep

New York, NY
April 16, 2013

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, PricewaterhouseCoopers Center, 300 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10017
T: (646) 471 3000, F: (813) 286 6000, www.pwc.com/us



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition

December 31, 2012
{Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72,018
Receivables from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations 46,725
Fixed assets, at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization of $24,462 11,796
Goodwill 34,783
Deferred tax asset 41,702
Intangible assets 1,237
Other assets 6,710
Total assets $ 214,971
Liabilities and Member's Equity
Liabilities
Payable to brokers and dealers $ 2,484
Rebates payable 13,588
Activity remittance fees payable 35,875
Loans payable 25,000
Accrued compensation 6,835
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,568
Total liabilities 87,350
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 6)
Member's equity
Total member's equity 127,621
Total liabilities and member's equity $ 214,971

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2012

{Dollars in thousands)

Revenues
Commissions and fees $ 514,914
Market data 47,024
Connectivity and member fees 19,903
Other revenues 105
Total revenues 581,946
Expenses
Rebates 330,044
Execution, routing and clearance fees 148,501
Communications and data processing 24,569
Employee compensation and benefits 29,294
Depreciation and amortization 6,009
Professional fees 11,088
Other 4,615
Total expenses 554,121
Net income before taxes 27,825
Income taxes 9,360
Net income $ 18,466

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members' Equity
Year Ended December 31, 2012

Member's
Equity

(Dollars in thousands)
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 197,600
Distribution to Members (90,000)
Additional paid in capital - stock options 1,556
Net income 18,466
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 127,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2012

(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 18,466
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 6,009
Deferred tax asset 1,176
Stock Option amortization 1,556
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations (1,551)
Other assets 4,266
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Rebates payable 957
Accrued compensation (239)
Payable to brokers and dealers (1,227)
Activity remittance fees payable (2,300)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 842
Net cash provided by operating activities 26,272
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of fixed assets (6,419)
Net cash used in investing activities (6,419)
Cash flows from financing activities
Distribution to Members {(90,000)
Credit Rewolver 25,000
Net cash provided by financing activities (65,000)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (45,147)
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 117,165
End of year $ 72,018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds were $3.6 million and for interest expense was $59
thousand for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

1. Organization and Description of the Business

Direct Edge Holdings LLC, (the “Company”), a Delaware limited liability company, is the parent
company of two wholly owned operating subsidiaries, Direct Edge ECN, LLC, d/b/a DE Route
("DER") and Direct Edge Inc ("DEI"). The Company has no business operations beyond its status
as a hoiding company.

DEl is the parent company of two wholly owned subsidiaries, EDGA Exchange Inc (“EDGA") and
EDGX Exchange Inc ("EDGX"), collectively the “Exchanges”. EDGA and EDGX independently
operate as national securities exchanges. DEI's operations are limited to facilitating connectivity
and member services to both EDGA and EDGX.

DER operates as a routing broker-dealer for the Exchanges, by sending orders to other market
centers for execution in accordance with the Exchanges’ member order instructions and
requirements. DER is registered as a broker-dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(*SEC”) and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (‘FINRA”), National Stock
Exchange, Chicago Stock Exchange, CBOE Stock Exchange, Nasdaq Stock Market, New York
Stock Exchange, EDGA and EDGX.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents represent short-term investments with an original maturity of less than

90 days and cash. The carrying amount of such cash equivalents approximates their fair value due
to the short-term nature of these instruments. As of December 31, 2012 the balance principally
consist of short term investments and cash held of $70.7 million.

Broker Dealer and Exchange Activities

Commissions and fees earned and related expenses, including execution and clearance fees and
rebates are recorded on a trade date basis. Fees include commissions and fees earned and trade
expenses incurred by DER and the Exchanges. The Company pays Section 31 fees to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for supervision and regulation of securities markets. This
regulatory sales fee is in turn charged to the members of the Exchanges. Any amount receivable
at December 31, 2012 is recorded as activity remittance fee receivable.

Market Data Revenue

As members of the Consolidated Tape Association and the Unlisted Trading Privileges plan, the
Company earns market data revenue for displaying its quotes and reporting its trades. Revenue is
based on the Company's quote and trade reporting activity. Revenue is recorded for the period
transaction data is provided on an accrual basis.

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Management estimates that the fair value of financial instruments recognized on the consolidated
Statement of Financial Condition (including receivables, payables and accrued expenses)



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

approximates their carrying value; as such financial instruments are short-term in nature, bear
interest at current market rates or are subject to frequent repricing.

Depreciation and Amortization

Furniture and fixtures, computer hardware, software, equipment and intangible assets are being
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are
amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease or the estimated useful lives of
the improvements. In accordance with the provisions of subtopic 350 of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification for Intangibles-Goodwill and other ("ASC 350"), the Company capitalizes
certain costs associated with the development of internal use software at the point at which the
conceptual formulation, design and testing of possible software project alternatives have been
compieted. The Company capitalizes employee compensation and related benefits incurred from
the commencement of the preliminary software project stage. Once the product is ready for its
intended use, such costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over three years. The Company
reviews the amounts capitalized for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company applies the provisions of ASC 350, which requires that goodwill and intangible
assets with an indefinite useful life no longer be amortized, but instead, be tested for impairment
annually or when an event occurs or circumstances change that signify the existence of

impairment.

Income Taxes
The Company is a Limited Liability Company, and as such, does not file consolidated federal
income tax returns. The Company pays state income taxes in select states where business

activities require such payments.

DEl is established as a corporation and files a consolidated federal income tax return. For state
and local income tax returns, DEI follows state guidelines, filing either a consolidated return, or
filing separate returns for DE! and each of its subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the DEI consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Valuation aflowances are established when
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that, in the opinion of management, is more
likely than not realizable.

The Company has adopted guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. This guidance
describes how uncertain tax positions should be recognized, measured, presented and disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements to determine whether the tax positions meet the “more-likely-
than-not” criteria to be sustained by the applicable tax authority. Tax benefits related to positions
that do not meet the “more-likely-than-not” threshold would not be recognized in the current year.
The Company policy is to accrue interest and penalties associated with unrecognizable tax benefits
in income tax expense in the Statement of Operations, and the corresponding liability in income
taxes payable or income taxes receivable, net in the Statement of Financial Condition.



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Stock-Based Compensation
Employees of the Company participate in a stock option plan (the “Stock Plan”). The purpose of
the Stock Plan is to provide long-term incentive compensation, in the form of the Company’s stock-

related awards, to employees.

Stock-based compensation is measured based on the grant date fair value of the awards. These
costs are amortized over a period of 5 years.

Certain employees of the Company also participate in a phantom stock unit plan (“PSUP"). The
PSUP was created to provide a long term incentive to employees who started at an early stage of
the Company. No grants have been made under this plan since June, 2010. Terms of the PSUP
are such that payment for units granted occurs only upon a change in control, as defined by the
plan. Given the contingent nature of the PSUP, expense related to the settlement of units will be
recorded only upon a change in control.

in 2011 and 2012, subsequent and related to two extraordinary distribution to members, the
Company established Restricted Cash Awards for PSUP unit holders under the terms and
conditions of the Restricted Cash Award Agreements. Such awards established deferred cash
payment to be paid to each PSUP unit holder pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Restricted Cash Award Agreements.

3. Receivables from Brokers, Dealers and Clearing Organizations

Receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations primarily represents net commissions
of $20.7 million, market data receivables of $11.4 million, regulatory sales fee receivable of $12.3
million, and connectivity and member fees receivable of $2.3 million.

4, Goodwill and Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2012, the Company had goodwill of $34.8 million. Goodwill of $11.0 million
resulted from the purchase of DER by its initial investor and $23.8 million resulted from the
purchase of the ISE on December 23, 2008.

At December 31, 2012, the Company had intangible assets with definitive lives of $1.2 million, net
of $238 thousand of amortization. The net intangible assets resulted from the purchase of
memberships to the Consolidated Tape Association and Unlisted Trading Privileges plan.

Under ASC 350, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment, at a
minimum, on an annual basis, or when an event occurs or circumstances change that signify the
existence of impairment. During 2012, the Company tested the goodwill and intangible assets for
impairment based on its assessment of fair value of the reporting unit in comparison to its book
value and concluded that there was no impairment.



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
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December 31, 2012

5. Fixed Assets

(Dollars in thousands)
Fixed assets comprise the following:

Computer software $ 19,480
Computer hardware 9,335
Equipment 1,085
Leasehold improvements 5112
Furniture and fixtures 1,246

36,258
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (24,462)
Total Fixed Assets, Net $ 11,796

6. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Company and its subsidiaries, from time to time, may be subject to examinations and inquiries
by various regulatory and self-regulatory bodies. In the opinion of management, based on
consultation with legal counsel, any adverse outcome with regard to these potential matters would
not likely have a material adverse effect on the resuits of operations or the financial position of the

Company.

DEIl has an obligation under a sublease agreement for office space with Knight Capital Group
("KCG") extended to 2021 with certain rental increases included within the agreement. Aggregate

annual rent for office space at December 31, 2012 is listed below:

(Dollars in thousands)

2013 $ 1,078
2014 1,078
2015 1,078
2016 1,097
2017 1,191
2018 and later years 3,772

$ 9,296

Occupancy expense for 2012 was $1.2 million and is included in other expenses on the Statement
of Operations.

The Company has an obligation under a lease agreement for certain hardware extended to 2013.
Aggregate annual lease expense for the hardware at December 31, 2012 is listed below:

(Dollars in thousands)

2013 $ 4,586
2014 3,049
2015 1,366
2016 80

$ 9,081



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Expenses relating to lease agreements for hardware for 2012 were $7.3 million and included within
communication and data processing on the Statement of Operations.

7. Loans and Credit

In December 2012, DEI entered into a credit agreement with the Bank of Montreal. The agreement
provides DEI a revolving credit line of up to $50.0 million until December 7, 2015, the date of
termination. The Company is a guarantor of this agreement. Terms include the ability for DEI to
choose amongst interest rate options, which each have varying repayment and other terms. In
addition to the interest assessed on the borrowed amount, an additional fee will be assessed on
the unused portion of the $50.0 million available as well as a non-refundable upfront fee of 0.5% on
the amount of Commitment at the closing date, regardless of whether any credit is use. Under the
conditions of the agreement, the Company must maintain a leverage ratio of under 2:1 and a fixed
charge covered ratio of at least 1.3:1. During 2012, interest expense related to the revolver,
included in the other expense line on the Statement of Operations, was $59 thousand and the
upfront fee of $250 thousand is contained in other expense line on the Statement of Operations. At
December 31, 2012, the Company had $25.0 million in loans outstanding, the leverage ratio was
.7:1 and the fixed charge ratio was 3.5:1.

8. Employee Benefit Plans

Employees of DEI are eligible to participate in a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the “Plan”). In July of
2009, the Company became its sole administrator. Under the terms of the Plan, the Company is
required to make contributions to the Plan equal to 100% of the contributions made by each
participant, up to certain limits. For 2012, the total expense recognized by the Company and
included in Employee compensation and benefits on the Statement of Operations with respect to

the Plan was approximately $582 thousand.

In August 2010, the Company created a Stock Option Plan, in which employees receive stock units
as a portion of their total compensation. Awards vest, with certain restrictions on exercisability,
over the earlier of three years or upon a change in control. Subject to vesting, awards are
exercisable on the earliest of a change in control, an IPO or five years from the grant date. Awards
are no longer exercisable ten years from the grant date, and are canceled if employment is

terminated before the end of the relevant vesting period.

The Company measures compensation cost related to the option awards based on the estimated
fair value of the Company at the date of grant and utilizing assumptions such as the risk free rate
and expected life of the option of 6.75 years to determine the grant price per option. For 2012, the
total expense recognized by the Company and included in Employee compensation and benefits
on the Statement of Operations with respect to the Stock Option Plan was $1.6 million. The
following table summarizes share activity during 2012:
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December 31, 2012

Weighted
No. of Options Average
(in thousand) Grant Date

Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 470 $ 16.90
Granted 39 14.15
Vested
Surrendered (24) 15.82
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 485 16.73

There is $4.5 million of unamortized compensation related to the unvested awards outstanding at
December 31, 2012. The cost of these unvested awards is expected to be recognized over the
weighted average remaining life of 2.8 years.

In connection with extraordinary distribution to members in 2011 and 2012, the Company
established Restricted Cash Awards and related Restricted Cash Award Agreements for
employees who participated in the Phantom Stock Unit Plan (“PSUP"). In December of 2012, the
Board of Managers of the Company determined that the payment terms of the 2011 Restricted
Cash Awards would be accelerated and paid in December 2012. The Company recorded expense
of approximately $3.4 million in December 2012 related to such payment.

9. Income Taxes

The Company is a multiple-member limited liability company that is treated as a partnership for
federal income tax purposes and, accordingly, is not subject to federal and state corporate income
taxes. The domestic corporate subsidiaries of the Company, DEI and the Exchanges, are subject
to federal, state and local income taxes and will be included in the filing of a consolidated federal
income tax return with combined and separate state and local income tax returns being filed.

The Company'’s provision for income taxes consists of the following:

(Dollars in thousands)

Current

Federal $ 5,848
State 2,335
Total Current Tax $ 8,184
Deferred

Federal $ 2,153
State 977
Total Deferred Tax $ 1,176
Provision for Income Tax $ 9,360
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

The difference between the Company's consolidated effective tax rate of 33.6% and the U.S.
federal statutory tax rate of 35% is primarily due to an increase for state and local income taxes
netted by a decrease for a change in the state rate applicable to deferred taxes and a decrease for
income earned at the partnership level, which is not subject to income tax.

DEI has an effective tax rate of 37% and DEH, including DER, has an effective tax rate of 0%.

The Company's deferred tax assets/(liabilities) included in Deferred tax assets on the Statement of
Financial Condition are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Deferred Tax Assets
Goodwill 40,833
Stock Compensation 1,662
Other 1,400
Total Deferred Tax Assets 43,794

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Goodwill (558)

Intemally developed software (1,449)

Other (85)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (2,093)
Net Deferred Tax Asset 41,702

Based on its recent history of cumulative earnings, the Company believes that its net deferred tax
assets are more likely than not realizable and accordingly has not recorded a valuation allowance.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

10.

1.

As for liabilities for uncertain tax positions, the Company had no liabilities at the beginning of 2012
and no liabilities for uncertain tax liabilities at year-end. The Company and its subsidiaries file
income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. The Company has
open tax years for U.S. federal income tax and various state filings for calendar tax years ending
2008 and forward. The Company is currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service
for its partnership tax return for the tax year ended December 31, 2010. Under this examination,
the Internal Revenue Service has issued a Notice of Waiver of Closing, proposing no change to the
2010 return. The Company and its subsidiaries are currently not under examination by any
additional taxing jurisdictions

Related Party Transactions

On July 23, 2007, the Company entered into a Transition Services Agreement (“TSA") with KCG.
Under the terms of the agreement, KCG would provide certain technological and administrative
services, in addition to facility overhead, to the Company as it transitioned from a wholly-owned
subsidiary to a majority-owned subsidiary. The contract remained in effect as the Company
transitioned from a majority-owned subsidiary to an independent company. In 2012, expense
related to the TSA amounted to $193 thousand which is included in the relevant line items on the
consolidated Statement of Operations. In addition to the TSA, the Company holds a sublease
agreement for office space with Knight Equity Markets, an affiliate of KCG, which amounted to $1.1
million during 2012 and is included within other expenses on the consolidated Statement of

Operations.

Prior to the merger, the Company entered into a “Regulatory Services Agreement” with ISE LLC.
The agreement commenced with the close of the acquisition of the ISE by the Company. Under
the terms of the agreement, the ISE LLC would provide certain regulatory oversight services to the
ISE Stock Exchange. In November 2010, the Company entered into a “Mutual Services
Agreement, under which the ISE and the Company charge each other for mutually provided
technological services. During 2012, expense related to the Regulatory Services agreement and
Mutual Services Agreement was $894 thousand, and $2.1 million respectively. The Company
charged the ISE $813 thousand in relation to the Mutual Services Agreement.

During 2012, three members of the Company were also members of the Exchanges. During 2012,
commissions earned, net of rebates paid or accrued to those members, amounted to $20.3 million
and membership and connectivity fees amounted to $3.8 million.

The Company routes transactions to three member affiliates. These affiliates either rebate or
charge fees to the Company for these transactions. During 2012 rebates received or accrued, net
of transaction fees paid or accrued amounted to $934 thousand.

Financial instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations of Credit Risk

DER clears all of its securities transactions through a clearing broker on a fully disclosed basis.
Accordingly, substantially all of DER's credit exposures are concentrated with the clearing broker
and the Exchanges. Additionally, pursuant to the terms and conditions between DER and the
clearing broker, the clearing broker has the right to charge DER for losses that result from a
counterparty’s failure to fulfill its obligations. DER has the ability to pursue collection from or
performance of the counterparty. DER's policy is to monitor the credit standing of the clearing
broker and all counterparties with which it conducts business.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

12.

As the right to charge DER has no maximum amount and applies to all trades executed through the
clearing broker, the Company believes there is no maximum amount assignable to this right. At
December 31, 2012, the Company has recorded no liabilities with regard to the right.

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in financial institutions, which at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Fair Value Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value Measurement—Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The authoritative guidance around fair value establishes a framework for
measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy used to classify the inputs used in measuring fair
value. The hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques into three levels. The level in the
fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement falls is determined based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The levels of the fair value

hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1—Fair value is based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible to
the Company for identical assets or liabilities. These generally provide the most reliable evidence
and are used to measure fair value whenever available. Active markets are defined as having the
following characteristics for the measured asset/liability: (i) many transactions, (ii) current prices,
(iii) price quotes not varying substantially among market makers, (iv) narrow bid/ask spreads and
(v) most information publicly availabie.

Level 2—Fair value is based on significant inputs, other than Level 1 inputs, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability
through corroboration with observable market data. Level 2 inputs include quoted market prices in
active markets for similar assets and liabilities, quoted market prices in markets that are not active
for identical or similar assets or liabilities, and other market observable inputs.

Level 3—Fair value is based on at least one or more significant unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability. The inputs reflect the Company's assumptions about the inputs market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Company did not have any assets or liabilities carried at fair value; however, it is required by
US GAAP to disclose the fair value of certain financial instruments that are not carried at fair value.
For the following financial instruments the carrying amount equals or approximates fair value: cash
and cash equivalents, receivable and payable to brokers and dealers, rebates payable, activity
remittance fees payable, accrued compensation expenses and other liabilities and long-term debt.

The Company’s Level 1 financial instruments represent cash and cash equivalents.

The Company'’s remaining financial instruments would be characterized as Level 2.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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13.

14.

Net Capital Requirements

DER is a member of FINRA and is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule ("Rule 15¢3-1") of the
SEC, which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital, as defined, equal to the greater of
$100,000 or 6 2/3% of aggregate indebtedness, as defined. At December 31, 2012, Direct Edge
had net capital of $8.1 million which was $7.9 million in excess of the amount required of $184
thousand. The percentage of aggregate indebtedness to net capital was 34.23%.

DER is exempt from the SEC Rule 15c3-3 under Paragraph (k)(2)(ii) because all transactions are
cleared through another broker-dealer on a fully disclosed basis.

Subsequent Events

The Company has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through April 19, 2013, which is
the date the consolidated Financial Statements were issued. There have been no material
subsequent events that occurred during such period that would be required to be recognized in the
consolidated Financial Statements as of or for the year ended December 31, 2012.
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Exhibit K
Exhibit Request:

This Exhibit is applicable only to exchanges that have one or more owners, shareholders, or
partners that are not also members of the exchange. If the exchange is a corporation, please
provide a list of each shareholder that directly owns 5% of more of a class of a voting security of
the applicant. If the exchange is a partnership, please provide a list of all general partners and
those limited and special partners that have the right to receive upon dissolution, or have
contributed, 5% or more of the partnership’s capital. For each of the persons listed in Exhibit K,
please provide the following:

1. Full legal name;

2. Title or Status;

3. Date title or status was acquired;

4. Approximate ownership interest; and

5. Whether the person has control, a term that is defined in the instructions to this Form.
Response:

1. Full Legal Name: Direct Edge, Inc.

2. Title or Status: Corporation

3. Date title or status was acquired: July 22, 2010

4. Approximate ownership interest: 100%

5. Control: Yes. Direct Edge, Inc. has the power, directly or

indirectly, to direct the management or policies of
EDGA Exchange, Inc., whether through ownership
of securities, by contract, or otherwise.



Exhibit M

Exhibit Request:

Provide an alphabetical list of all members, participants, subscribers or other users, including the
following information:

1.

2.

6.

Name,

Date of election to membership or acceptance as a participant, subscriber or other user,
Principal business address and telephone number,

If member, participant, subscriber or other user is an individual, the name of the entity
with which such individual is associated and the relationship of such individual to the
entity (e.g., partner, officer, director, employee, etc.),

Describe the type of activities primarily engaged in by the member, participant,
subscriber, or other user (e.g., floor broker, specialist, odd lot dealer, other market maker,
proprietary trader, non-broker dealer, inactive or other functions). A person shall be
“primarily engaged” in an activity or function for purposes of this item when that activity
or function is the one in which that person is engaged for the majority of their time. When
more than one type of person at an entity engages in any of the six types of activities or
functions enumerated in this item, identify each type (e.g., proprietary trader, Registered
Competitive Trader and Registered Competitive Market Maker) and state the number of
members, participants, subscribers, or other users in each, and

The class of membership, participation or subscription or other access.

Response:

A list of Exchange members is attached in response to Exhibit M. Items 5 and 6 are not

applicable since the Exchange maintains only one class of membership.




Company Name:
Abel/Noser Corp.

ABN AMRO Clearing Chicago, LLC

Albert Fried & Company, LLC

Algo Engineering Execution Services, LLC a

Allston Trading, LLC
Alternet Securities, Inc.
Apex Clearing Corporation
Archipelago Securities, LLC

Automated Trading Desk Financial Services, LLC

Barclays Capital, Inc.

BATS Trading, Inc.

Bay Crest Partners, LLC
Belvedere Trading, LLC
Bloomberg Tradebook, LLC
Blue Fire Capital, LLC )
BNP Paribas Securities, Corp.
BTIG, LLC

C & CTrading, LLC
Canaccord Genuity, Inc.
Cantor Fitzgerald & Co.

Capital Institutional Services, Inc.

CastleOak Securities, LP
Chopper Securities, LLC
Citadel Securities, LLC
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.

Convergex Execution Solutions, LLC

Convergex Prime Services, LLC
Cowen & Company
Cowen Capital, LLC

Credit Agricole Cheuvreux North America, Inc.
Credit Suisse Securities (USA), LLC

Cuttone & Co., Inc.

Dart Executions, LLC

DE Route

Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc.
DRW Securities, LLC

Electronic Brokerage Systems, LLC
Electronic Transaction Clearing, Inc.

Essex Radez, LLC

First New York Securities, LLC
G1 Execution Services, LLC
GETCO Execution Services, LLC

Gleacher & Company Securities, Inc.
Global American Investments, Inc.

| Approval Date:

6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010

7/13/2011

6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/5/2012
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
11/29/2010

6/10/2010

6/10/2010
6/10/2010

6/10/2010

6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
5/11/2011
6/10/2010
6/10/2010

 6/10/2010

6/10/2010
6/10/2010
3/21/2012
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010
6/10/2010

- 6/10/2010

6/10/2010
6/10/2010
3/5/2012

© 20277 Valley Bivd.

Address 1:
One Battery Park Plaza
175 W. Jackson Blvd
45 Broadway

3 World Trade Center
440 S. LaSalle Street
380 Madison Ave
1700 Pacific Avenue
100 S. Wacker Dr.

12 East Wall Street
745 7th Avenue

8050 Marshal Drive

40 Wall street -
10 S. Riverside Plaza

1731 Lexington Avenue

311S. Wacker Drive
787 Seventh Avenue )
450 Sansome Street 7

120 Broadway

99 High Street

110 East 59th Street

1601 EIm Street

110 E. 59th Street

141 W. Jackson )

131 South Dearborn Street
390-388 Greenwich Street
1633 Broadway

11175 Cicero Drive

1221 Avenue of the Americas
599 Lexington Avenue

1301 Avenue of the Americas
11 Madison Avenue

111 Broadway

230 S. Lasalle Street )

545 Washington Blvd.

60 Wall Street )

540 West Madison Street
141. W. Jackson Street )

660 S. Figueroa Street

440 S. Lasalle Street

90 Park Avenue -
440 S. Lasalle Street N

_ 55 Broad Street

10 Glenville Street

EDGA Exchange
{Address 2:
6th Floor
4th Floor
| 24th Floor
Suite 34F
Suite 1200
4th Floor

Suite 1800

Suite 120
40th Floor
Suite 2100

Suite 2000

_20th Floor

15th Floor
Suite 3900
~2nd Floor
Suite 2201A
32nd Floor

48th Floor
200 Milton Park, Suite 575

21st Floor
16th Floor
3rd Floor
10th Floor
Suite 400
6th Floor

Suite 2500
Suite 3510
Suite 1450
_ Suite 2101
| 5th Floor
Suite 3030
27th Floor

' Suite A10

City:
New York
Chicago

New York

New York
Chicago
New York
Dallas
Chicago
Mt Pleasant
New York
Lenexa
New York
Chicago
New York
Chicago
New York
San Francisco
New York
Boston
New York
Dallas

New York
Chicago
Chicago
New York
New York
Alpharetta
New York
New York
New York
New York
New York
Chicago

Jersey City

New York
Chicago
Chicago
Los Angeles
Chicago
New York
Chicago
New York

Greenwich B

Walnut

|State:

| Postal Code:

10004
60604
10006

10007

60605
10017
75201
60606
29464
10019
66214
10005
60606
10022
60606
10019
94111

10271

02110
10022
75201
10022
60604
60603
10013
10019
30022
10020
10022
10019
10010
10006
60604
07310
10005
60661
60604
90017
60605
10016
60605
10004
06831

91789-2657

Main Contact Phone:
646-432-4000
312-604-8195
212-422-7282
212-619-0190
312-663-7260
212-444-6100
214-765-1170
312-442-7046
843-789-2166
212-526-2180
913-815-7228
646-878-0005
312-262-3420
212-617-2617
312-242-0516
212-471-7095
212-593-7510
212-433-5470
212-849-3904
212-829-5250
214-720-0504
212-294-7730
312-628-3020
312-395-3116
212-723-3065
212-468-7595
678-405-4200
646-562-1530
646-562-1554
212-492-8845
212-325-9578
212-374-9797
312-244-5400
201-942-8225
212-250-4931
312-542-3226
646-201-5022
213-402-1562

312-212-1815 Ext: 205

212--331-6858

312-294-7840

646-747-0038

212-273-7208

312-919-2831




Goldman Sachs Execution & Clearing LP 6/10/2010 (440 S. LaSalle Street Suite 1654 Chicago IL 60605 212-357-2583
Goldman, Sachs & Co. 6/10/2010 |85 Broad Street New York NY 10004 212-902-8466
Grace Financial Group, LLC 6/10/2010 |83 Jobs Lane South Hampton |NY 11968 631-287-4633
Hap Trading, LLC 6/10/2010 |33 Whitehall Street 6th Floor New York NY 10004 212-380-5189
Hardcastle Trading USA, LLC 6/10/2010  [755 Secaucus Road Suite F1110 Secacaus NJ 07094 201-305-8888
Hold 8rothers Capital, LLC 6/8/2011 1177 Avenue of the Americas 2nd Floor New York NY 10036 646-7450-2132
HRT Financial, LLC 6/10/2010 |32 Old Slip 30th Floor New York NY 10005 212-293-1927
ICAP Corporates, LLC 3/28/2013 Harborside Financial Center, 1100 Plaza 5 12th Floor Jersey City NJ 07311 212-513-9821
IMC Financial Markets 6/10/2010 (233 South Wacker Street Suite 4300 Chicago IL 60606 312-275-5436
Imperial Capital, LLC 6/10/2010  |2000 Avenue of the Stars Suite 900-S Los Angeles CA 90067 310-246-3773
Instinet, LLC 6/10/2010 |3 Times Square 7th Floor New York NY 10036 212-310-7328
Interactive Brokers, LLC 6/10/2010  |One Penwick Plaza 2nd Floor Greenwich cT 06830 312-542-6928
ITG Derivatives, LLC 6/10/2010 [601 S. LaSalle Street Suite 300 Chicago IL 60605 312-935-0101
ITG, Inc. 6/10/2010 |One Liberty Plaza, 165 Broadway New York NY 10006 212-444-6320
J.P. Morgan Securities, LLC 6/10/2010 {383 Madison Avenue New York NY 10179 212-622-5504
Jane Street Capital, LLC 6/10/2010 One New York Plaza 33rd Floor New York NY 10004 212-651-6026
Jefferies, LLC 6/10/2010  |520 Madison Avenue 11th Floor New York NY 10022 646-805-5415
lefferies Execution Services, inc. 6/10/2010 {521 Madison Avenue 11th Floor New York NY 10022 646-805-5416
Jump Trading, LLC 6/10/2010 {600 W. Chicago #825 Chicago IL 60654 312-205-8900
Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc. 6/10/2010 |787 Seventh Avenue 4th Floor New York NY 10019 212-887-8965
Knight Capital Americas, LLC 6/10/2010  |545 Washington Blvd. 2nd Floor Jersey City NJ 07310 212-479-2323
Latour Trading, LLC 6/10/2010 (377 Broadway 10th Floor New York NY 10013 646-472-1761
Lavaflow, Inc. 6/10/2010 |388 Greenwich Street 29th Floor New York NY 10013 212-519-8965
Lazard Capital Markets, LLC 6/10/2010 (30 Rockefella Plaza 60th Floor New York NY 10020 212-632-1871
Leerink Swann, LLC 6/10/2010 [One Federal Street 37th Floor Boston MA 02110 212-277-6026
Legend Securities, Inc. 6/10/2010 145 Broadway 32nd Floor New York NY 10006 212-344-5747 X: 1
LEK Securities Corporation 6/10/2010  |165 Broadway 52nd Floor New York NY 10006 212-509-2300
Lightspeed Trading, LLC 6/10/2010  |500 North Broadway Suite 142 Jericho NY 11753 646-393-4777
Lime Brokerage, LLC 6/10/2010 (625 Broadway 12th Floor New York NY 10013 212-824-5505
Macquarie Capital (USA), Inc. 6/10/2010  |125 West 55th Street Level 22 New York NY 10019 212-231-8095
Merrill Lynch Professional Clearing Corp. 6/10/2010  [222 Broadway - 6th Floor NY3-222-06--17 New York NY 10038 312-431-7203
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, inc. 6/10/2010 |One Bryant Park 6th Floor New York NY 10036 646-855-3894
Mismi, Inc. 6/10/2010 810 7th Avenue Suite 2200 New York NY 10019 646-839-6105
Mitsubishi UF) Securities (USA), Inc. 6/10/2010 1633 Broadway 29th Floor New York NY 10019 212-405-7088
MKM Partners, LLC 6/10/2010  [300 First Stamford Place 4th Floor East Stamford CT 06902 203-861-9060
Monadnock Capital Management, LP 6/10/2010  |1900 Market Street Suite 616 Philadelphia PA 19103 215-405-7280
Morgan Stanley & Co., LLC 6/10/2010 |1 New York Plaza New York NY 10004 212-761-8936
Nasdaq Execution Services, LLC 6/10/2010  [One Liberty Plaza 1650 Broadway New York NY 10006 212-401-8982
National Financial Services, LLC 6/10/2010 (200 Seaport Bivd Mail Zone ZIN Boston MA 02210 617-563-9722
Newedge USA, LLC 6/10/2010 |630 Sth Avenue Suite 500 New York NY 10111 646-557-8664
Nomura Securities International, Inc. 6/10/2010 2 World Financial Center Bldg. B, 6th Floor New York NY 10281 212-667-1632
Northern Trust Securities, Inc. 6/10/2010 |50 South LaSalle Street Chicago L 60603 312-444-4331
OBD Securities, LLC 2/9/2012 150 N. Michigan Avenue Suite 3700 Chicago IL 60601 312-768-1641
OCTEG, LLC 6/10/2010 141 W. Jackson Blvd. Suite 210 Chicago IL 60604 312-242-4644
Old Mission Capital, LLC 4/25/2012 |601 S. LaSalle Street 3rd Floor Chicago IL 60605 617-642-6120
Oppenheimer & Co., Inc. 6/10/2010 {300 Madison Ave 5th Floor New York NY 10017 212-667-7221




PDQ ATS, Inc. 6/10/2010 (2624 Patriot Bivd Glenview IL 60026 224-521-2494
Pershing, LLC 6/10/2010  |One Pershing Plaza Jersey City NJ 07399 201-413-3235
Pico Quantitative Trading, LLC 6/10/2010 _ |120 Broadway Suite 2010-01 New York NY 10271 646-701-6120
Pictet Overseas, Inc. 6/10/2010 |1000 de la Gauchetiere Ouest Bureau 3100 Montreal Quebec H3B 4W5 514-350-6258
Piper Jaffray & Co. 6/10/2010  |800 Nicollet Mall Minneapolis MN 55402 612-303-6200
Potamus Trading, LLC 4/11/2013 |2 Seaport Lane Sth Floor Boston MA 02210 617-855-8722
Quantex Clearing, LLC 5/17/2011 |30 Montgomery Street Jersey City NJ 07302 646-214-5600
Quantlab Securities, LP 6/10/2010  |4200 Montrose Blvd Suite 200 Houston X 77006 713-333-3704
R. W. Pressprich & Co., inc. 6/10/2010  |452 Fifth Ave 12th Floor New York NY 10018 212-832-6258
RBC Capital Markets, LLC 6/10/2010 |60 S. Sixth Street Minneapolis MN 55402 612-373-1958
RGM Securities, LLC 6/10/2010 (221 West 6th Street Suite 2030 Austin X 78701 512-807-5303
River Cross Securities, LLLP 6/10/2010 (401 City Avenue Suite 220 Philadelphia PA 19004 610-747-2333
Ronin Capital, LLC 6/8/2012 350 North Orleans Street Suite 2N Chicago IL 60654 312-244-5201
Rosenblatt Securities, Inc. 6/10/2010 |20 Broad Street Suite 2602 New York NY 10005 212-607-3132
Safra Securities Corporation 6/10/2010 (546 Fifth Avenue New York NY 10010 212-704-9342
Sanford C. Bernstein & Co., LLC 6/10/2010  [One North Lexington Ave 17th Floor White Plains NY 10601 212-756-4633
Scotia Capital (USA), Inc. 6/10/2010 165 Broadway 25th Floor New York NY 10006 212-225-6762
Scottrade, Inc. 6/10/2010 12800 Corporate Hill Drive St. Louis MO 63131 314-965-1555 EXT: 6402
Sea Port Group Securities LLC 4/1/2013 360 Madison Avenue New York NY 10017 646-770-8290
Seven Points Capital, LLC 6/10/2010 {825 Third Avenue 2nd Floor New York NY 10022 212-760-0760
SG Americas Securities, LLC 6/10/2010 480 Washington Blvd. 21st. Floor Jersey City NJ 07310 212-278-5231
SpeedRoute, LLC 11/10/2011 (30 Broad Street 22nd Floor New York NY 10005 855-773-3310
Spot Trading, LLC 1/25/2013 440 S. LaSalle Street Suite 2800 Chicago IL 60605 312-362-4550
State Street Global Markets, LLC 6/10/2010  [One Lincoln Street Sth Floor Boston MA 02111 617-664-4809
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated 6/10/2010  |501 North Broadway St. Louis MO 63102 443-224-1987
Stock USA Execution Services, Inc. 6/10/2010 1717 Route 6 Suite 102 Carmel NY 10512 845-225-5132
Sun Trading, LLC 6/10/2010  [100 S. Wacker Suite 300 Chicago IL 60606 312-724-4728
SunGard Brokerage & Securities Services LLC 6/10/2010 {545 Washington Bivd. 7th Floor Jersey City NJ 07310 201-356-1400
SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. 6/10/2010 {303 Peach Tree Road NE Atlanta GA 30326 404-926-5596
Susquehanna Capital Group 6/10/2010  |401 City Avenue Suite 220 Philadelphia PA 19004 610-617-2816
Susquehanna Financial Group, LLLP 6/10/2010  |401 City Avenue Suite 221 Philadelphia PA 19004 610-747-1599
The Gaussian Group, LLC 6/10/2010 2 Rector Street 3rd Fdloor New York NY 10006 212-659-3882
The Vertical Group, Inc. 6/10/2010  |417 Fifth Avenue 6th Floor New York NY 10016 212-430-3555
Tibra Trading America, LLC 9/22/2011 175 W. Jackson Blsd. Suite 497 Chicago IL 60604 312-780-0708
Tradebot Systems, Inc. 6/10/2010 1251 NW Briarcliff Parkway Suite 700 Kansas City MO 64116 816-285-6426
Tradestation Securities, Inc. 6/10/2010 8050 SW 10th Street Suite 2000 Plantation FL 33324 954-652-7715
Two Sigma Securities, LLC 6/10/2010 379 West Broadway 3rd Floor New York NY 10012 646-292-6425
UBS Securities, LLC 6/10/2010  [677 Washington Blvd Stamford cT 06901 203-719-1780
Viewtrade Securities, Inc. 6/10/2010 7280 West Palmeto Suite 105 Boca Raton FL 33432 561-620-0306
Virtu Financial BD, LLC 6/10/2010  |645 Madison Avenue 16th Floor New York NY 10022 212-418-0188
Virtu Financial Capital Markets, LLC 6/10/2010 1540 Second Street 3rd Floor Santa Monica CA 90401 310-595-0119
Vision Financial Markets, LLC 7/13/2012 |4 High Ridge Park Suite 100 Stamford CcT 06905-1325 203-614-0077
Volant Liquidity, LLC 6/10/2010 |7 World Trade Center Suite 3301 New York NY 10007 646-484-3002
Wall Street Access 6/10/2010 17 Battery Place 11th Floor New York NY 10004 212-232-5602
Walleye Trading, LLC 6/10/2010 14601 27th Avenue N. Suite 102 Plymouth MN 55447 952-345-5230
Wedbush Securities, Inc. 6/10/2010 1000 Wilshire Blvd Suite 900 Los Angeles CA 90017 213-688-8091




Wells Fargo Prime Services, LLC 6/10/2010 101 California St. Suite 3050 San Fransisco CA 94111 415-848-4067
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC 6/10/2010  |301 S. College Street TW-8 Charlotte NC 28288 212-214-6202
White Bay PT, LLC 8/17/2012 1140 Broadway 38th Floor New York NY 10005 646-374-1725
Wolverine Execution Services 6/10/2010  [175 W.Jackson Bivd. Suite 200 Chicago IL 60604 312- 884-4000
Xambala Capital, LLC 2/17/2012 |640 W. California Avenue #220 Sunnyvale CA 94086 408-990-1940
XR Securities, LLC 6/10/2010  |550 West Jackson Blvd. Suite 1000 Chicago IL 60661 312-244-4672




Exhibit N
Exhibit Request:
Provide a schedule for each of the following:

1. The securities listed in the exchange, indicating for each the name of the issuer and a

description of the security;
2. The securities admitted to unlisted trading privileges, indicating for each the name of the

issuer and a description of the security;

3. The unregistered securities admitted to trading on the exchange which are exempt from
registration under Section 12(a) of the Act. For each security listed, provide the name of
the issuer and a description of the security, and the statutory exemption claimed (e.g.

Rule 12a-6); and
4. Other securities traded on the exchange, including for each the name of the issuer and a

description of the security.
Response:

A list of securities admitted to unlisted trading privileges is attached in response to Exhibit N.
Items 1, 3, and 4 are not applicable since the Exchange is not a listing exchange.




AA/PR
AACC
AADR
AAIT
AAME

AAON
AAP
AAPL
AAT
AAU
AAV
AAWW
AAX]
AB
ABAX
ABB
ABBV
ABC
ABCB
ABCD
ABCO
ABFS
ABG
ABI
ABIO
ABM
ABMD
ABR
ABR/PRA
ABR/PRB
ABT
ABTL
ABV
ABV/C
ABW/PRB
ABX
ACAD
ACAS
ACAT
ACC
ACCL
ACCO
ACCU
ACE

AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES INC

ALCOA INC

ALCOA INC

ASSET ACCEPTANCE CPTL CORP

WCM / BNY MELLON FOC GRW ADR ETF
ISHARES MSCi ALL COUNTRY ASIA INFO TECH
ATLANTIC AMERN CORP

AARON'S INCORPORATED

AAON INC

ADVANCE AUTO PARTS INC

APPLE INC

AMERICAN ASSETS TRUST INC
ALMADEN MINERALS LTD
ADVANTAGE OIL & GAS LTD

ATLAS AIR WRLDWIDE HLDGS NEW
ISH MSCI ALL CNT ASIA EX JPN INDX FD
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HLDNG L.P
ABAXIS INC

ABB LTD

ABBVIE INC

AMERISOURCEBERGEN CORP

AMERIS BANCORP

Cambium Learning Group Inc
ADVISORY BOARD COMPANY (THE)
ARKANSAS BEST CORP DEL

ASBURY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP INC
PPN LNK TO DJIA 5/8/14

ARCA BIOPHARMA INC NEW

ABM INDS INC

ABIOMED INC

ARBOR REALTY TRUST INC

ARBOR REALTY TRUST (A) 8.250%
ARBOR REALTY TRUST 7.75% (B)
ABBOTT LABS

AUTOBYTEL INC

COMPANHIA DE BEBIDAS DAS AMER
AMBEV ON E

ASSOCIATED BANC-CORP REP 1/40 8% PFD B
BARRICK GOLD CORP

ACADIA PHARMACEUTICALS INC
AMERICAN CAPITAL LTD

ARCTIC CAT INC

AMERICAN CAMPUS CMMTYS INC
ACCELRYS INC

ACCO BRANDS CORP
ACCUVEST GLOBAL OPPORTUNITIES ETF
ACE LIMITED



ACET
ACFC
ACFN
ACG
ACGL
ACH
ACHC
ACHN
ACI
ACIM
ACIW
ACLS
ACM
ACMP
ACN
ACNB
ACO
ACOR
ACP
ACPW
ACRE
ACRX
ACST
ACT
ACTG
ACTS
ACTV
ACU
ACUR
ACW
ACW
ACWYV
ACWX
ACXM
ACY
ADAT
ADBE
ADC
ADEP
ADES
ADGE
ADHD
ADI
ADK
ADK/PRA
ADM
ADNC

ACETO CORP
ATLANTIC COAST FINL CORP

ACORN ENERGY INC
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INC FD

ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD
ALUMINUM CORP CHINA LTD
ACADIA HEALTHCARE COMPANY INC
ACHILLION PHARMACEUTICALS
ARCH COAL INC

SPDR MSCI ACWI IMI ETF

ACI WORLDWIDE INC.

AXCELIS TECHNOLOGIES INC

AECOM TECHNOLOGY CORP

ACCESS MIDSTREAM PARTNERS L P
ACCENTURE PLC (IRELAND)

ACNB CORP

AMCOL INTERNATIONAL CORP
ACORDA THERAPEUTICS INC
AVENUE INCOME CREDIT STRATEGIES FD
ACTIVE POWER INC

ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CORP
ACELRX PHARMACEUTICALS INC
ACASTI PHARMA INC.

ACTAVIS INC

ACACIA RESEARCH

ACTIONS SEMICONDUCTOR CO
ACTIVE NETWORK INC

ACME UNITED CORP

ACURA PHARMACEUTICALS INC NEW
ACCURIDE CORP NEW

iShares MSCl ACWI Index Fund
ISHARES MSCI ALL COUNTRY WLD MINIMUM VOL
iShares MSCI ACWI ex US Index Fund
ACXIOM CORP

AEROCENTURY CORP
AUTHENTIDATE HOLDING CORP
ADOBE SYSTEMS INC

AGREE REALTY CORP

ADEPT TECH INC NEW

ADA-ES INC

AMERICAN DG ENERGY INC

ALCOBRA LTD.

ANALOG DEVICES INC

ADCARE HEALTH SYSTEMS INC
ADCARE HEALTH SYSTEMS INC 10.875% (A)
ARCHER DANIELS MIDLAND CO
AUDIENCE INC



ADP AUTOMATIC DATA PROCESSING

ADRA BLDRS Asia 50 ADR Index Fund
ADRD BLDRS DEVELOPED MKT 100 ADR INDX FD
ADRE BLDRS EMERGING MKTS 50 ADR INDX FD
ADRU BLDRS EUROPE 100 ADR INDEX FD
ADS ALLIANCE DATA SYS CORP

ADSK AUTODESK INC

ADT ADT CORPORATION

ADTN ADTRAN INC

ADUS ADDUS HOMECARE CORPORATION
ADVS ADVENT SOFTWARE INC

ADX ADAMS EXPRESS CO

ADY FEIHE INTERNATIONAL INC

ADZ DB AGRICULTURE SHORT

AE ADAMS RES & ENERGY INC

AEB AEGON N.V. PERP. CAP

AEC ASSOCIATED ESTATES RLTY CORP
AED AEGON N.V.

AEE AMEREN CORPORATION

AEF AEGON N.V. 7.25%

AEG AEGON NV

AEGN AEGION CORP

AEGR AEGERION PHARMACEUTICALS INC
AEH AEGON N.V.

AEHR AEHR TEST SYST

AEIS ADVANCED ENERGY INDS INC

AEK AEGON N V 8% NOTES 2/15/42

AEL AMERICAN EQ INVT LIFE HLDG CO
AEM AGNICO EAGLE MINES LTD

AEO AMERICAN EAGLE OUTFITTERS NEW
AEP AMERICAN ELECTRIC POWER INC
AEPI AEP INDS INC

AER AERCAP HOLDINGS N.V.

AERL Asia Entertainment & Res Ltd.

AES AES CORPORATION

AES/PRC AES TRUST Il

AET AETNA INC NEW

AETI AMERICAN ELECTRIC TECHN INC.
AEV AEGON NV

AEY ADDVANTAGE TECH GROUP INC
AEZS AETERNA ZENTARIS INC

AF ASTORIA FINANCIAL CORP

AF/PRC ASTORIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION 6.50% (C)
AFA AMERICAN FINL GRP OHIO 5.75% NTS 8/25/42
AFAM ALMOST FAMLLY INC

AFB ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN NATL MUNI

AFC ALLIED CAPITAL CORPORATION



AFCB
AFCE
AFF
AFFX
AFFY
AFG
AFH
AFK
AFL
AFM
AFOP
AFQ
AFSD
AFSI
AFT
AFW
AG
AGA
AGC
AGCO
AGD
AGEM
AGEN
AGF
AGG
AGI
AGI/WI
AGIl
AGHL
AGLS
AGM
AGM/A
AGM/PRA
AGN
AGNC
AGNCP
AGO
AGO/PRB
AGO/PRE
AGO/PRF
AGOL
AGQ
AGRO
AGU
AGX
AGYS
AGZ

ATHENS BANCSHARES CORPORATION

AFC ENTERPRISES INC

AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP
AFFYMETRIX INC

AFFYMAX INC.

AMERICAN FINL GROUP INC

ATLAS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS INC

MARKET VECTORS AFRICA ETF

AFLAC INCORPORATED

AFFILIATED MANAGERS GP 5.25% NT 10/15/22
ALLIANCE FIBER OPTIC PRODUCTS INC
AMERICAN FINANCIAL GROUP INC

AFLAC INC 5.5% DEBS 9/15/52

AMTRUST FINANCIAL SVCS INC

APOLLO SR FLOATING RATE FD INC
AMERICAN FINL GROUP OHIO 6.375% NTS 6/12
FIRST MAJESTIC SILVER CORP

DB AGRICULTURE DOUBLE SHORT

ADVENT CLAYMORE CONV SECS & INCOME FD Il
AGCO CORP

ALPINE GLOBAL DYN DIV FD

EGShares GEMS Composite ETF

AGENUS INC

DB AGRICULTURE LONG

ISHARES CORE TOTAL US BOND MKT ETF
ALAMOS GOLD INC

ALAMOS GOLD INC

ARGO GROUP INTL HOLDINGS LTD

ARGO GROUP INTL HLDGS LTD 6.50% 9/15/42
ACCUVEST GLOBAL LONG SHORT ETF

FED AGRICULTURAL MTG CORP

FED AGRICULTURAL MTG CORP

FEDERAL AGRICLUTURAL MORTGAGE 5.875%
ALLERGAN INC

AMERICAN CAPITAL AGENCY CORP
AMERICAN CAPITAL AGENCY CORP

ASSURED GUARANTY LTD

ASSURED GUARANTY LTD

ASSURED GUARANTY LTD

ASSURED GUARANTY LTD

ETFS ASIAN GOLD TRUST

PROSHARES ULTRA SILVER

ADECOAGRO S A

AGRIUM INC

ARGAN INC

AGILYSYS INC

ISHRS BARCLAYS AGENCY BD



AH

AHB
AHC
AHGP
AHH

AHL
AHL/PRA
AHL/PRB
AHL/PRC
AHPI
AHS

AHT
AHT/PRA
AHT/PRD
AHT/PRE
AHY

Al

AlA

AIB

AIF

AlIG
AIG/WS
AlM
AIMC
AIN
AINV
AlQ

AIR
AIRM
AIRT

AIT

AlvV
AIV/PRZ
AW
AIXG

AlZ

AJB

AlG
AKAM
AKG
AKO/A
AKO/B
AKP

AKR
AKRX
AKS

AL

ACCRETIVE HEALTH INC

SAFETY FIRST TRUST 9/12/2013

A.H. BELO CORPORATION

ALLIANCE HOLDINGS GP L.P.

ARMADA HOFFLER PROPERTIES INC
ASPEN INSURANCE HLDGS LTD

ASPEN INSURANCE HOLD LTD

ASPEN INSURANCE HOLD LTD 7.25%
ASPEN INSURANCE HLDGS 5.95% PFD FIX-FLT
ALLIED HEALTHCARE PRODS

AMN HEALTHCARE SVCS INC

ASHFORD HOSPITALITY TR INC
ASHFORD HOSPITALITY TR INC
ASHFORD HOSPITALITY TR INC
ASHFORD HOSPITALITY TRUST INC
SAFETY FIRST TRUST

ARLINGTON ASSET INVESTMENT CP
ISHARES S&P ASIA INDEX FD

APOLLO INVESTMENT CP 6.625% NT 10/15/42
APOLLO TACTICAL INCOME FD INC
AMERICAN INTL GROUP NEW
AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP INC
AEROSONIC CORP

ALTRA HOLDINGS INC.

ALBANY INTL CORP NEW

APOLLO INVESTMENT COR

ALLIANCE HEALTHCARE SERVICES INC
AAR CORP

AIR METHODS CORP

AIR T INC

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECH INC
APARTMENT INVT & MGMT CO
APARTMENT INVESTMENT & MANAGEMENT CO
ARLINGTON ASSET INVT 6.625% NTS 5/1/23
AIXTRON SE

ASSURANT INC

SAFETY FT ON S&P 500 3/27/14
ARTHUR J GALLAGHER & CO

AKAMAI TECHNOLOGIES INC

ASANKO GOLD INC

ANDINA-B-

ANDINA-B-

ALLIANCE CA MUNI INCOME FUND
ACADIA REALTY TRUST

AKORN INC

AK STEEL HOLDING CORP

AIR LEASE CORP



ALB

ALC
ALCO
ALCS
ALD
ALDW
ALE
ALEX
ALFA
ALG
ALGN
ALGT
ALIM
AU

ALK
ALKS
ALL
ALL/PRB
ALLB
ALLT
ALLY/PRA
ALLY/PRB
ALN
ALNY
ALOG
ALOT
ALP/PRN
ALP/PRO
ALP/PRP
ALR
ALR/PRB
ALSK
ALSN
ALTI
ALTL
ALTR
ALTV
ALU

ALV
ALVR
ALX
ALXA
ALXN
AM
AMAG
AMAP
AMAT

ALBEMARLE CORP

ASSISTED LIVING CONCEPTS (NEW)
ALICO INC

ALCO STORES INC

WISDOMTREE ASIA LOCAL DEBT FUND
ALON USA PARTNERS LP

ALLETE INC

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN INC NEW
ALPHACLONE ALTERNATIVE ALPHA ETF
ALAMO GROUP INC

ALIGN TECHNOLGY INC

ALLEGIANT TRAVEL COMPANY
ALIMERA SCIENCES, INC

ALON USA ENERGY INC

ALASKA AIR GROUP INC

ALKERMES PLC

ALLSTATE CORPORATION

ALLSTATE CORP 5.1% FIX-FLT DEB 1/15/53
ALLIANCE BANCORP INC OF PENNSYLVANIA
ALLOT COMMS LTD

GMAC CAPITALTR | 2/15/40

ALLY FINANCIAL INC

AMERICAN LORAIN CORP

ALNYLAM PHARMACEUTICALS
ANALOGIC CORP

ASTRO MED INC NEW

ALABAMA PWR CO

ALABAMA PWR CO

ALABAMA PWR CO

ALERE INC

ALERE INC

ALASKA COMM SYSTEMS GROUP
ALLISON TRANSMISSION HOLDINGS INC
ALTAIR NANOTECHNOLOGIES INC

RBS US LARGE CAP ALTERNATOR ETN
ALTERA CORP

ALTEVA

ALCATEL-LUCENT

AUTOLIV INC

ALVARION LTD NEW

ALEXANDERS INC

ALEXZA PHARMACEUTICALS INC
ALEXION PHARMACEUTICALS
AMERICAN GREETINGS CORP

AMAG PHARMACEUTICALS INC.
AUTONAVI HLDGS LTD

APPLIED MATERIALS INC



AMBA AMBARELLA INC

AMBC AMBAC FINANCIAL GROUP INC
AMBCW AMBAC FINANCIAL GROUP INC 4/30/23
AMBI AMBIT BIOSCIENCES CORPORATION
AMBO AMBOW EDUCATION HOLDING LTD
AMBT AMBIENT CORP

AMCC APPLIED MICRO CIRCUITS CORP
AMCF ANDATEE CHINA MARINE FUEL SVC CORP
AMCN AIRMEDIA GROUP INC

AMCX AMC NETWORKS INC (A)

AMD ADVANCED MICRO DEVICES INC

AME AMETEK INC

AMED AMEDISYS INC

AMG AFFILIATED MANAGERS GRP INC

AMGN AMGEN INC

AMIC AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP

AMID AMERICAN MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP
AM) JP MORGAN ALERIAN MLP 5/24/24
AMKR AMKOR TECHNOLOGY INC

AMLP ALERIAN MLP ETF

AMM SAFETY FIRST TRUST

AMNB AMERICAN NATL BANKSH DANVL V
AMOT ALLIED MOTION TECHNOLOGIES
AMOV AMERICA MOVIL SAB DE CV ADS

AMP AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL, INC
AMP/PRA  AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL INC

AMPE AMPIO PHARMACEUTICALS INC
AMPS ISHARES UTILITIES SECTOR BOND FUND
AMRB AMERICAN RIVER BANKSHARES
AMRC AMERESCO INC

AMRE AMREIT INC NEW

AMRI ALBANY MOLECULAR RESRCH INC
AMRN AMARIN CORP PLC

AMRS AMYRIS INC

AMS AMERICAN SHARED HOSP SVC

AMSC AMERICAN SUPERCONDUCTOR CP
AMSF AMERISAFE INC

AMSG AMSURG CORP

AMSWA AMERICAN SOFTWARE INC

AMT AMERICAN TOWER REIT

AMTD TD AMERITRADE HLDG CORP

AMTG APOLLO RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE INC
AMTG/PRA APOLLO RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE INC 8.00%(A)
AMU ETRACS ALERIAN MLP INDEX ETN
AMWD AMERICAN WOODMARK CORP

AMX AMERICA MOVILSABDECYV

AMZN AMAZON.COM INC



AN
ANAC
ANAD
ANAT
ANCB
ANCI
ANCX
AND
ANDA
ANDAU
ANDAW
ANDE
ANEN
ANF
ANFI
ANGI
ANGL
ANGO
ANH
ANH/PRA
ANH/PRB
ANIK
ANLY
ANN
ANR
ANSS
ANTH
ANTP
ANV
ANW
AOA
AOD
AOI
AOK
AOL
AOM
AON
AOR
AOS
AOSL
AP
APA
APA/PRD
APAGF
APAM
APB
APC

AUTONATION INC

ANACOR PHARMACEUTICALS INC
ANADIGICS INC

AMERICAN NATL INS CO

ANCHOR BANCORP

AMERICAN CARESOURCE HOLDINGS INC
ACCESS NATIONAL CORP

GLOBAL X FTSE ANDEAN 40 ETF
ANDINA ACQUISITION CORPORATION
ANDINA ACQUISITION CORPORATION
ANDINA ACQUISITION CORPORATION
ANDERSONS INC

ANAREN INC

ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO

AMIRA NATURE FOODS LTD

ANGIE'S LIST, INC.

MARKET VECTORS FALLEN ANGEL HIGH YLD BD
ANGIODYNAMICS INC

ANWORTH MORTGAGE ASSET CORP
ANWORTH MORTGAGE ASSET CORP PFD
ANWORTH MORTGAGE ASSET

ANIKA THERAPEUTICS INC

ANALYSTS INTL CORP

ANN INC

ALPHA NATURAL RESOURCE INC

ANSYS INC

ANTHERA PHARMACEUTICALS INC
PHAZAR CORP

ALLIED NEVADA GOLD CORP

AEGEAN MARINE PETRO NETWORK
ISHRS S&P AGGRESSIVE ALLOC

ALPINE TOTAL DYNAMIC DIV

ALLIANCE ONE INTL INC

ISHRS S&P CONSERVATIVE ALLO

AOL INC

ISHRS S&P MODERATE ALLO

AON PLC (UK)

ISHRS S&P GROWTH ALLOCATION
SMITH A O CORP

ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED
AMPCO PITT CORP

APACHE CORP

APACHE CORPORATION

APCO OIL AND GAS INTL INC

ARTISAN PARTNERS ASSET MGMT INCCL A
ASIA PACIFIC FUND INC

ANADARKO PETROLEUM CORP



APD AIR PRODS & CHEMS INC

APEI AMERICAN PUBLIC EDUINC.

APF MORGAN STANLEY ASIA PAC FD INC
APFC AMERICAN PAC CORP

APH AMPHENOL CORP

API ADVANCED PHOTONIX INC

APL ATLAS PIPELINE PARTNERS L.P.

APO APOLLO GLOBAL MANAGEMENT LLC
APOG APOGEE ENTERPRISES INC

APOL APOLLO GROUP INC

APP AMERICAN APPAREL INC

APPY VENAXIS INC

APRI APRICUS BIOSCIENCES INC

APSA ALTO PALERMO SA

APT ALPHA PRO TECH LTD

APTS PREFERRED APARTMENT COMMUNITIES INC.
APU AMERIGAS PARTNERS LP

APWC ASIA PACIFIC WIRE & CABLE CORP LTD
AQ ACQUITY GROUP LTD

AQQ AMERICAN SPECTRUM REALTY INC
AQU AQUASITION CORP

AQUUU AQUASITION CORP
AQUUW AQUASITION CORP

ARAY ACCURAY INC

ARB ARBITRON INC

ARC ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS INC

ARCC ARES CAPITAL CORP

ARCI APPLIANCE RECYCLNG CTRS AMER

ARCO ARCOS DORADOS HOLDINGS INC

ARCP AMERICAN REALTY CAPITAL PROPERTIES INC
ARCW ARC GROUP WORLDWIDE INC

ARDC ARES DYNAMIC CREDIT ALLOCATION FUND INC
ARDNA ARDEN GRP INC

ARE ALEXANDRIA REL ESTATE EQU INC

ARE/PRE  ALEXANDRIA RL EST EQUITIES INC 6.45(E)
AREX APPROACH RESOURCES INC

ARG AIRGAS INC

ARGT GLOBAL X FTSE ARGENTINA 20 ETF

ARH/PRC  ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD 6.75 (C)

ARI APOLLO COMMERCIAL RL EST FIN

ARI/PRA APOLLO COMMERCIAL RL EST FIN 8.625% (A)
ARIA ARIAD PHARMACEUTICALS

ARII AMERICAN RAILCAR INDUSTRIES

ARK BLACKROCK SENIOR HI INCM PTF

ARKR ARK RESTAURANTS CORP

ARL AMERICAN RLTY INVESTORS INC

ARLP ALLIANCE RES PARTNERS L.P.



ARMH
ARN
ARNA
ARO
AROW
ARP
ARPI
ARQL
ARR
ARR/PRA
ARR/PRB
ARR/WS
ARRS
ARRY
ARS
ARSD
ARTC
ARTNA
ARTW
ARTX
ARU
ARUN
ARW
ARWR
ARX
ARY
ASA
ASBB
ASBC
ASBCW
ASBI
ASCA
ASCMA
ASDR
ASEA
ASEI
ASFI
ASG
ASGN
ASH
ASI
ASIA
ASM
ASMI
ASML
ASNA
ASP

ARM HOLDINGS PLC

ARES CAP CORP 7% SR NOTES 2/15/22
ARENA PHARMACEUTICALS INC
AEROPOSTALE INC

ARROW FIN CORP

ATLAS RESOURCE PARTNERS L P
AMERICAN RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC
ARQULE INC

ARMOUR RESIDENTIAL REIT INC
ARMOUR RESIDENTIAL REIT (A) 8.25% PFD A
ARMOUR RESIDENTIAL REIT INC (B)
ARMOUR RESIDENTIAL REIT INC

ARRIS GROUP INC NEW

ARRAY BIOPHARMA INC

ALERIS CORPORATION

ARABIAN AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT CO
ARTHROCARE CORP

ARTESIAN RES CORP

ARTS WAY MFG INC

AROTECH CORPORATION

ARES CAPITAL CORP 5.875% NTS 10/1/22
ARUBA NETWORKS, INC.

ARROW ELECTRONICS INC

ARROWHEAD RESEARCH CORP NEW
AEROFLEX HOLDING CORP

ARES CAPITAL CORP 7.75 10/15/40

ASA GOLD AND PRECIOUS METALS LIMITED
ASB BANCORP, INC

ASSOCIATED BANC CORP

ASSOCIATED BANC CORP WTS 11/21/18
AMERIANA BANCORP

AMERISTAR CASINO

ASCENT CAPITAL GROUP INC (A)
VELOCITYSHARES EMERGING ASIA DR ETF
GLOBAL X FTSE ASEAN 40 ETF
AMERICAN SCIENCE & ENGINEERING
ASTA FUNDING

LIBERTY ALL STAR GROWTH FD

ON ASSIGNMENT INC

ASHLAND INC NEW

AMERICAN SAFETY INSUR HLDGS
ASIAINFO LINKAGE INC

AVINO SILVER & GOLD MINES LTD

ASM INTERNATIONAL N.V.

ASML HOLDING NV NY REG SHS

ASCENA RETAIL GROUP, INC.

AMERICAN STRATEGIC INC PTFL



ASPS
ASR
ASRV
ASRVP
ASTC
ASTE
ASTI
ASTM
ASTX
ASUR
ASX
ASYS
AT
ATA
ATAI
ATAX
ATE
ATEA
ATEC
ATHN
ATHX
ATI
ATK
ATL
ATLC
ATLO
ATLS
ATMI
ATML
ATMP
ATNI
ATNY
ATO
ATOS
ATR
ATRC
ATRI
ATRM
ATRO
ATRS
ATSG
ATTU
ATU
ATV
ATVI
ATW
ATX

ALTISOURCE PTF SOLU SA

GRUPO AEROPORTUARIO DEL SURE
AMERISERV FINANCIAL INC
AMERISERV FINANCIAL INC CAP
ASTROTECH CORP

ASTEC INDS INC

ASCENT SOLAR TECHS INC
AASTROM BIOSCIENCES INC NEW
ASTEX PHARMACEUTICALS INC
ASURE SOFTWARE INC

ADVANCED SEMICONDUCTOR ENGINEERING INC
AMTECH SYSTEMS INC

ATLANTIC POWER CORP

SAFETY FIRST TRUST 03/06/14

ATA INC

AMERICA FIRST TAX EXMP INVEST
ADVANTEST CORPORATION

ASTEA INTERNATIONAL INC
ALPHATEC HOLDINGS INC
ATHENAHEALTH INC.

ATHERSYS INC

ALLEGHENY TECHNOLOGIES INC
ALLIANT TECHSYSTEMS INC
ATLATSA RESOURCES CORPORATION
ATLANTICUS HLDGS CORP

AMES NATL CORP

ATLAS ENERGY L P

ATMIINC

ATMEL CORP

BARCLAYS ETN PLUS SELECT MLP ETN 3/43
ATLANTIC TELE NETWORK INC

API TECHNOLOGIES CORP

ATMOS ENERGY CORP

ATOSSA GENETICS INC
APTARGROUP INC

ATRICURE INC

ATRION CORPORATION

AETRIUM INC

ASTRONICS CORP

ANTARES PHARMA INCORPORATED
AIR TRANSPORT SVCS GROUP INC
ATTUNITY LIMITED

ACTUANT CORP NEW

ACORN INTERNATIONAL
ACTIVISION BLIZZARD INC
ATWOOD OCEANICS INC

A.T. CROSS CO



AU
AU/PRA
AUBN
AUD
AUDC
AUMN
AUNZ
AUO
AUQ
AUSE
AUXL
AUY
AV
AVA
AVAV
AVB
AVD
AVEO
AVG
AVGO
AVHI
AVID
AVIV
AVK
AvVL
AVNR
AVNW
Avp
AVT
AVV
AVX
AVY
AWAY
AWC
AWF
AWH
AWI
AWK
AWP
AWR
AWRE
AWX
AXAS
AXDI
AXDX
AXE
AXEN

ANGLOGOLD ASHANTI LIMITED
ANGLOGOLD ASHANTI HOLDINGS FINANCIAL PLC
AUBURN NATL BANCORP

PIMCO AUSTRALIA BOND INDEX ETF
AUDIOCODES LTD

GOLDEN MINERALS CO
WisdomTree Australia & New Zealand Debt
AU OPTRONICS CORP

AURICO GOLD INC

WISDOM TREE AUSTRALIA DIVIDEND
AUXILIUM PHARMACEUTICALS INC
YAMANA GOLD INC

AVIVA PLC

AVISTA CORP

AEROVIRONMENT INC

AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES INC
AMERICAN VANGUARD CORP

AVEO PHARMACEUTICALS INC

AVG TECHNOLOGIES N V

AVAGO TECH LTD

AV HOMES INC

AVID TECH INC

AVIV REIT INC

ADVENT CLAYMORE CV SECS&INCM
AVALON RARE METALS INC

AVANIR PHARMACEUTICALS INC
AVIAT NETWORKS INC

AVON PRODUCTS INC

AVNET INC

AVIVA PLC 12/1/2041

AVX CORPORATION

AVERY DENNISON CORP
HOMEAWAY INC

ALUMINA LIMITED

ALLIANCE BERNSTEIN GL HIGH INC
ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE CO
ARMSTRONG WORLD INDS INC
AMERICAN WATER WORKS CO
ALPINE GLBL PREMIER PPTY FD
AMERICAN STATES WTR CO

AWARE INC

AVALON HOLDINGS CORP

ABRAXAS PETROLEUM CORP

ISH MSC! ACWI EX US CONS DISCR
ACCELERATE DIAGNOSTICS INC
ANIXTER INTL INC

ISH MSCI ACWI EX US ENERGY SECTOR



AXFN ISH MSCI ACWI EX US FIN SECTOR INDX

AXHE ISH MSCl ACWI EX US HEALTH CARE

AXID ISHARES MSCI ACWI EX US INDUS SECT
AXIT ISHARES MSCI ACWI EX US INFO TECH

AXIL WISDOM TREE ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN

AXJS ISH MSCI ALL COUNTRY ASIA EX JPN SM CAP
AXL AMERICAN AXLE&MFG HLDGS INC

AXLL AXIALL CORP

AXMT ISHARES MSCI ACWI EX US MATERIALS SECTOR
AXN AOXING PHARMA CO INC

AXP AMERICAN EXPRESS CO

AXR AMREP CORP

AXS AXIS CAPITAL HLDGS LTD

AXS/PRC  AXIS CAPITAL HLDGS LTD 6.875% PFD SER C
AXS/PRD  AXIS CAPITAL HLDGS LTD 5.50% PFD SER D

AXSL ISHARES MSCI ACWI EX US CONS STAP
AXTE ISHARES MSCI ACWI EX US TELECOM SVCS
AXTI AXT INC

AXU ALEXCO RESOURCE CORP

AXUT ISHARES MSCI ACW! EX US UTILITIES SECTOR
AXX ALDERON IRON ORE CORP

AYI ACUITY BRANDS INC

AYN ALLIANCE NY MUNI INCM FUND

AYR AIRCASTLE LIMITED

AYT iPATH GEMS ASIA 8

AZC AUGUSTA RESOURCE CORP

AZIA GLOBAL X CENTRAL ASIA & MONGOLIA ETF
AZK AURIZON MINES LTD

AZN ASTRAZENECAPLC

AZO AUTOZONE INC (NEV)

AZPN ASPEN TECHNOLOGY INC

AZZ AZZ INCORPORATED

AZZST Test Symbol

B BARNES GRP INC

BA BOEING COMPANY

BAA BANRO CORP

BAB POWERSHARES BUILD AMERICA BOND
BABS SPDR NUVEEN BARCLAYS BLD AMR BD ETF
BABY NATUS MEDICAL INCORPORATED

BABZ PIMCO BUILD AMERICA BOND STRATEGY FUND E
BAC BANK OF AMERICA CORP NEW

BAC/PRD  BANK OF AMERICA 6.204% PFD D
BAC/PRE  BANK OF AMERICA CORP PFD E
BAC/PRI BANK AMERICA CORPORATION
BAC/PRJ BANK OF AMERICA CORP
BAC/PRL  BANK OF AMERICA CORP
BAC/PRZ  BAC CAPITAL TRUST VIlI



BAC/WSA
BAC/WSB
BAF
BAGL
BAGR
BAH
BAK
BAL
BALT
BAM
BAMM
BANC
BANCL
BANF
BANFP
BANR
BAP
BARL
BAS
BAS!
BAX
BBBY
BBCN
BBD
BBDO
BBEP
BBF
BBG
BBGI
BBH
BBK
BBL
BBN
BBNK
BBOX
BBRC
BBRG
BBRY
BBSI
BBT
BBT/PRD
BBT/PRE
BBT/PRF
BBT/PRG
BBVA
BBW
BBX

BANK OF AMERICA CORP

BANK OF AMERICA CORP

BEN INT BLACKROCK MUNI INCM INVT QUAL
EINSTEIN NOAH RESTAURANT GROUP, INC NEW
DIVERSIFIED RESTAURANT HOLDINGS INC
BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATION
BRASKEM S A

IPATH DJ-UBS COTTON

BALTIC TRADING LTD

BROOKFIELD ASSET MANAGEMENT INC.
BOOKS A-MILLION INC

FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC

FIRST PACTRUST BANCORP INC SR NT 4/15/20
BANCFIRST CORP

BANCFIRST CORP

BANNER CORPORATION

CREDICORP LTD

MS S&PS500 OIL ETNS

BASIC ENERGY SERVICES INC.
BIOANALYTICAL SYSTEMS INC

BAXTER INTL INC

BED BATH & BEYOND INC

BBCN BANCORP INC

BANCO BRADESCO S A NEW

BANCO BRADESCO S A

BREITBURN ENERGY PARTNERS
BLACKROCK MUNI INCM TR

BILL BARRETT CORP

BEASLEY BROADCAST GRP INC

MKT VECTORS BIOTECH ETF

BLACKROCK MUNI BOND TRUST

BHP BILLITON PLC

BLACKROCK BUILD AMERICA BD TR
BRIDGE CAPITAL HOLDINGS

BLACK BOX CORPORATION

EGSHARES BEYOND BRICS ETF

BRAVO BRIO RESTAURANT GROUP INC
RESEARCH IN MOTION LIMITED

BARRETT BUSINESS SERVICES

BB&T CORP

BB&T CORP PFD SER D DEP SHS

BB&T CORP REP 1/1000TH PFD SER E
BB&T CORPORATION

BB&T CORPORATION

BANCO BILBAO VIZCAYA ARGENTARIA
BUILD-A-BEAR WORKSHOP INC

BBX CAPITAL CORP



BBY
BC
BCA
BCBP
BCC
BCE
BCEI
BCF
BCH
BCM
BCO
BCOM
BCOR
BCOV
BCPC
BCR
BCRX
BCS
BCS/PR
BCS/PRA
BCS/PRC
BCS/PRD
BCSB
BCV
BCX
BDBD
BDC
BDCL
BDCS
BDD
BDE
BDG
BDGE
BDJ
BDL
BDMS
BDN
BDN/PRE
BDR
BDSI
BDX
BEAM
BEAT
BEAV
BEBE
BECN
BEE

BEST BUY CO INC

BRUNSWICK CORP

CORPBANCA

BCB BANCORP INC

BOISE CASCADE COMPANY

BCE INC

BONANZA CREEK ENERGY INC
BLACKROCK REAL ASSET EQTY TR

BANCO DE CHILE

IPATH PURE BETA BROAD COMMODITY ETN
BRINKS COMPANY (THE)

B COMMUNICATIONS LTD

BLUCORA INC

BRIGHTCOVE INC

BALCHEM CORP

BARD CRINC

BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS INC
BARCLAYS PLC

BARCLAYS BANK PLC

BARCLAYS BK PLC

BARCLAYS BK PLC

BARCLAYS BANK PLC

BCSB BANCORP

BANCROFT FUND LTD

BLACKROCK RESOURCES & COMD STRA TR
BOULDER BRANDS INC

BELDEN INC

2X LEV LONG ETRACS WF BUSI DEV CO 5/41
UBS AG E-TRACS LLNKD TO WELLS FARGO DEV
PWRSH DB BASE MET DBLE LONG

BLACK DIAMOND INC

PWRSH DB BASE MET LG

BRIDGE BANCORP INC

BLACKROCK ENHANCED EQUITY DIVIDEND TR
FLANIGANS ENTRPS INC

BIRNER DENTAL MANAGEMENT SVC
BRANDYWINE REALTY TR

BRANDYWINE REALTY TR 6.9% PFD SER E
BLONDER TONGUE LABS INC
BIODELIVERY SCIENCES INTL

BECTON DICKINSON & CO

BEAM INC

CARDIONET INC

B/E AEROSPACE INC

BEBE STORES INC

BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY INC
STRATEGIC HTLS & RESORTS INC



BEE/PRA  STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS 8.50% PFD A
BEE/PRB  STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS 8.25% PFD B
BEE/PRC  STRATEGIC HOTELS & RESORTS 8.25% PFD C
BELFA BEL FUSE INC

BELFB BEL FUSE INC

BEN FRANKLIN RESOURCES INC

BERK BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC NEW
BERY BERRY PLASTICS GROUP INC

BF/A BROWN FORMAN CORP

BF/B BROWN FORMAN CORP

BFAM BRIGHT HORIZONS FAMILY SOLUTIONS
BFIN BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
BFK BLACKROCK MUNI INCM TR

BFO BLACKROCK FL MUNI2020 TRM TR
BFR BBVA BANCO FRANCES S V

BFS SAUL CENTERS INC

BFS/PRA  SAUL CENTERS INC
BFS/PRC SAUL CENTERS INC 1/100TH 6.875% PFD C

BFY BLACKROCK NY MUN INC TR II
BFZ BLACKROCK CALIF MUNI INCM TR

BG BUNGE LTD

BGB BLACKSTONE /GSO STRATEGIC CREDIT FD

BGC GENERAL CABLE CORP

BGCA BGC PARTNERS INC 8.125% DUE 6/15/42

BGCP BGC PARTNERS INC (A)

BGE/PRB  BGE CAPITALTRII

BGFV BIG 5 SPORTING CORP

BGG BRIGGS & STRATTON CORP

BGH BABSON CAP GLBL SHORT DURATION HIGH YLD
BGMD BG MEDICINE INC

BGR BLACKROCK ENERGY & RES TR

BGS B&G FOODS INC

BGSC BGS ACQUISITION CORP

BGSCU BGS ACQUISITION CORP
BGSCW BGS ACQUISITION CORP

BGT BLACKROCK FLTG RATE INCOME
BGX BLACKSTONE / GSO LONG SHORT CREDIT INCOM
BGY BLACKROCK INTL GRWTH/INC TR
BH BIGLARI HOLDINGS INC

BHB BAR HARBOR BANKSHARES

BHD BLACKROCK STRATEGIC BD TR
BHE BENCHMARK ELECTRONICS INC
BHI BAKER HUGHES INC

BHK BLACKROCK CORE BOND TRUST
BHL BLACKROCK DEF OPP CR TR
BHLB BERKSHIRE HILLS BANCORP INC

BHP BHP BILLITON LTD



BHV BLACKROCK VIRGINIA MUN BD TR

BHY BLACKROCK HIGH YIELD TRUST

BIB PROSHARES ULTRA NASDAQ BIOTECH
BICK FIRST TRUST BICK INDEX

BID SOTHEBY 'S

BIDU BAIDU INC

BIE BENEFICIAL INT OF BLACKROCK MUNI
BIF BOULDER GROWTH & INCM FD INC
BIG BIG LOTS INC OHIO

BIIB BIOGEN IDEC INC

BIK SPDR IDX SH FDS S&P BRIC 40

BIL SPDR BARLCAYS 1-3 MNTH T-BILL ETF
BIN PROGRESSIVE WASTE SOLUTIONS LTD
BIO BIO RAD LABORATORIES INC

BIO/B BIO RAD LABORATORIES INC

BIOA/U BIOAMBER INC

BIOD BIODEL INC.

BIOF BIOFUEL ENERGY CORP

BIOL BIOLASE INC

BIOS BIOSCRIP INC

BIP BROOKFIELD INFRASTRUCTURE
BIR/PRA  BERKSHIRE INCOME REALTY INC

BIRT ACTUATE CORPORATION

BIS PROSH ULTRASHORT NASDAQ BIOTECH
BIT BLACKROCK MULTI-SECTOR INCOME TR
BITA BITAUTO HOLDINGS LTD

BIV VANGUARD INTERMED-TERM BOND
BIZD MARKET VECTORS BDC INCOME ETF
BJK MARKET VECTORS GAMING ETF

BJRI BJ'S RESTAURANTS INC

BJZ BLACKROCK CA MUNI 2018 TERM

BK BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP
BK/PRC BANK OF NY MELLON CORP (THE) (C)
BKCC BLACKROCK KELSO CAP CORP

BKD BROOKDALE SENIOR LIVING INC

BKE BUCKLE INC

BKEP BLUEKNIGHT ENERGY PARTNERS
BKEPP BLUEKNIGHT ENERGY PARTNERS L.P. L.L.C
BKF ISHARES MSCI BRIC INDEX FD

BKH BLACK HILLS CORP

BKI BUCKEYE TECHNOLOGIES INC

BKJ BANCORP OF NEW JERSEY INC

BKK BLACKROCK MUNI 2020 TERM TR
BKLN POWERSHARES SENIOR LOAN PORTFOLIO
BKMU BANK MUTUAL CORP

BKN BLACKROCK INVT QUAL MUN TRU

BKOR OAK RIDGE FIN SERVICES INC



BKR

BKS
BKSC
BKT

BKU
BKW
BKYF
BLC
BLDP
BLDR
BLE

BLH

BLIN

BU

BLK
BLKB
BLL
BLMN
BLMT
BLND
BLNG
BLOX
BLRX
BLT

BLV
BLW

BLX
BMA
BMC
BME
BMI
BM)
BML/PRG
BML/PRH
BML/PRI
BML/PRJ
BML/PRL
BMO
BMR
BMRC
BMRN
BMS
BMTC
BMY
BMY/PR
BNA
BNCL

BAKER MICHAEL CORP

BARNES & NOBLE INC

BANK OF SOUTH CAROLINA CORP
BLACKROCK INCOME TR INC
BANKUNITED INC

BURGER KING WORLDWIDE INC
BANK KENTUCKY FINL CP (THE)
BELO CORP

BALLARD POWER SYSTEMS INC
BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE INC
BLACKROCK MUN INC TR Il
BLACKROCK NY MUNI 2018 TM TR
BRIDGELINE DIGITAL INC
BLACKROCK NJ MUN BD TR
BLACKROCK INC

BLACKBAUD INC

BALL CORP

BLOOMIN' BRANDS INC

BSB BANCORP INC

ETRACS DJ-UBS CMDY INDEX 2-4-6 BLEND FUT
IPATH PURE BETA PRECIOUS METALS 4/18/41
INFOBLOX INC

BIOLINERX LTD

BLOUNT INTL INC NEW
VANGUARD LONG-TERM BOND
BLACKROCK LTD DURATION INC
BANCO LATINOAMERICANO COMERC
BANCO MACRO S.A.

BMC SOFTWARE INC

BLACKROCK HEALTH SCIENCES TR
BADGER METER INC

BIRKS AND MAYORS INC

BANK OF AMERICA CORPORATION
BANK OF AMERICA CORPORATION
BANK OF AMERICA CORPORATION
BANK OF AMERICA CORPORATION
BANK OF AMERICA CORPORATION
BANK OF MONTREAL

BIOMED REALTY TRUST INC

BANK OF MARIN BANCORP
BIOMARIN PHARMACEUTICALS
BEMIS CO INC

BRYN MAWR BK CORP
BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO
BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO
BLACKROCK INCOME OPPTY TR
BENEFICIAL MUT BANCORP INC



BNCN
BND
BNJ
BNNY
BNO
BNS
BNSO
BNY
BOBE
BOCH
BODY
BOE
BOFI
BOH
BOI
BOIL
BOKF
BOLT
BOM
BONA
BOND
BONE
BONO
BONT
BOOM
BORN
BOS
BOSC
BOTA
BOTJ
BOXC
BP
BPAX
8PFH
BPFHP
BPFHW
BPHX
BPI
BPK
BPL
BPO
BPOP
BPOPM
BPOPN
BPS
BPT
BPY

BNC BANCORP (NC)

VANGUARD TOTAL BOND MARKET
BLACKROCK NJ MUNI! INCM TR

ANNIES INC

UNITED STATES BRENT OIL FUND LP

Bank of Nova Scotia (The)

BONSO ELECTRONICS INTL INC

BLACKROCK NY MUNI INCM TR

BOB EVANS FARMS INC

BANK OF COMMERCE HLDGS

BODY CENTRAL CORP

BLACKROCK GLBL OPP EQ TR

BOFI HOLDINGS INC

BANK OF HAWAII CORP

BROOKFIELD MORTGAGE OPPORTUNITY INCM FD
PROSHARES ULT NATGAS NEW

BOK FINANCIAL CORP

BOLT TECHNOLOGY CORP

PWRSH DB BASE MET DBLE SH

BONA FILM GROUP LIMITED

PIMCO TOTAL RETURN EXCHANGE-TRADED FUND
BACTERIN INTERNATIONAL HLDGS INC.
MARKET VECTORS LATAM AGGREGATE BOND ETF
BON TON STORES INC

DYNAMIC MATERIALS CORP

CHINA NEW BORUN CORP

PWRSH DB BASE MET SHORT

B.0O.S. BETTER ONLINE SOLUTIONS

BIOTA PHARMACEUTICALS INC

BANK OF JAMES FINANCIAL GROUP INC (THE)
BROOKFIELD CANADA OFFICE PROPERTIES
BP PLC

BIOSANTE PHARMACUTICALS

BOSTON PRIVATE FINANCIAL HDG

BOSTON PRIVATE FINANCIAL HLDGS
BOSTON PRIVATE FINANCIAL HOLDINGS INC
BLUEPHOENIX SOLUTIONS LTD
BRIDGEPOINT EDUCATION INC.

BLACKROCK MUNI 2018 TERM TR

BUCKEYE PARTNERS LP

BROOKFIELD OFFICE PROPERTIES INC
POPULAR INC
POPULAR INC POPULAR CPTL TR I
POPULAR INC

BLACKROCK PA STRTGC MUN TR

BP PRUDHOE BAY ROYALTY TR
BROOKFIELD PROPERTY PARTNERS L P



BPZ
BQH
BQR
BQY
BR
BRAF
BRAQ
BRAZ
BRC
BRCD
BRCM
BRD
BRE
BRE/PRD
BREW
BRF
BRFS
BRID
BRK/A
BRK/B
BRKL
BRKR
BRKS
BRLI
BRN
BRO
BRP
BRS
BRSS
BRT
BRXX
BRY
BRZS
BRZU
BSAC
BSBR
BSCD
BSCE
BSCF
BSCG
BSCH
BSCI
BSCJ
BSCK
BSD
BSDM
BSE

BPZ RESOURCES INC

BLACKROCK NY MUN! BOND TR
BLACKROCK ECOSOLUTIONS INVT
BLACKROCK S&P QUALITY RNKNGS
BROADRIDGE FIN'L SOLUTIONS

GLOBAL X BRAZIL FINANCIALS ETF
GLOBAL X BRAZIL CONSUMER ETF
GLOBAL X BRAZIL MID CAP ETF

BRADY CORPORATION

BROCADE COMM SYS INC NEW
BROADCOM CORPORATION

Brigus Gold Corp

BRE PROPERTIES INC MARYLAND

BRE PROPERTIES INC MARYLAND

CRAFT BREW ALLIANCE INC

MKT VECT BRAZIL SMALL-CAP

BRF S.A.

BRIDGFORD FOODS CORP

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY DE - CL A
BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY DE-CL B
BROOKLINE BANCORP INC

BRUKER CORPORATION

BROOKS AUTOMATION INC

BIO REFERNCE LAB INC
BARNWELL INDS INC

BROWN & BROWN INC

BROOKFIELD RESIDENTIAL PPTYS INC
BRISTOW GROUP INC

GLOBAL BRASS & COPPER HOLDINGS INC
BRT REALITY TR

EGShares Brazil Infrastructure ETF

BERRY PETE CO

DIREXION DAILY BRAZIL BEAR 3X SHARES
DIREXION DAILY BRAZIL BULL 3X SHARES
BANCO SANTANDER CHILE

BANCO SANTANDER BRASILS A
CLAYMORE BULLETSH 2013 CORP BD
CLAYMORE BULLETSH 2014 CORP BD
CLAYMORE BULLETSH 2015 CORP BD
CLAYMORE BULLETSH 2016 CORP BD
CLAYMORE BULLETSH 2017 CORP BD
GUGGENHEIM BULLETSHARES 2018 CORP BOND
GUGGENHEIM BULLETSHARES 2019 CORP BOND
GUGGENHEIM BULLETSHARES 2020 CORP BOND
BLACKROCK STRATEGIC MUNI TR

BSD MEDICAL CORP

BLACKROCK NY MUNICIPAL INCOME QUALITY TR



BSET
BSFT
BSI
BSID
BSIE
BSJF
BSJG
BSIH
BSJI
BSL
BSMX
BSP
BSPM
BSQR
BSRR
BSTC
BSV
BSX
BT
BTA
BTAL
BTE
BTF
BTH
BTI
BTN
BTO
BTT
BTU
BTUI
BTX
BTZ
BUD
BUI
BUND
BUNL
BUNT
BUR
BUSE
BV
BVA
BVN
BVSN
BVX
BWA
BwC
BWEN

BASSETT FURNITURE INDS INC

BROADSOFT INC

ALON BLUE SQUARE ISRAEL LTD

GUGGENHEIM BULLETSHARES 2013 HI YLD
GUGGENHEIM BULLETSHARES 2014 HI YLD
GUGGENHEIM BULLETSHARES 2015 HI YLD
GUGGENHEIM BULSH 2016 HIGH YLD CORP BOND
GUGGENHEIM BULSH 2017 HIGH YLD CORP BOND
GUGGENHEIM BULSH 2018 HIGH YLD CORP BOND
BLACKSTONE / GSO SR FLOATING RATE TRM FD
GRUPO FINANCIERO SANTANDER MEXICO S A B
AMERICAN STRAT INCM PTF Il

BIOSTAR PHARMACEUT INC.

BSQUARE CORP NEW

SIERRA BANCORP

BIOSPECIFICS TECH CORP

VANGUARD SHORT-TERM BOND

BOSTON SCIENTIFIC CORP

BT GROUP PLC

BLACKROCK LONG-TERM MUNI

QUANTSH U.S. MKT NEUT ANTI-BETA FACTOR
BAYTEX ENERGY CORP

BOULDER TOTAL RETURN FD INC

BLYTH INC

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO PLC
BALLANTYNE STRONG INC.

JOHN HANCOCK FINANCIAL OPPORTUNITIES FD
BLACKROCK MUNICIPAL TARGET TERM TR
PEABODY ENERGY CORP

BTU INTL INC

BIOTIME INC

BLACKROCK CREDIT ALLOCATION INCOME FD
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV SA

BLACKROCK UTILITY & INFRASTRCTURE TR
PIMCO GERMANY BOND INDEX ETF

PWRSH DB GERMAN BUND FUT ETN 3/31/21
PWRSH DB 3X GRMN BUND FT ETN3/31/21
BURCON NUTRASCIENCE CORPORATION

FIRST BUSEY CORPORATION

BAZAARVOICE INC.

CORDIA BANCORP INC

COMPANIA MINAS BUENAVENTURA
BROADVISION INC

BOVIE MEDICAL CORPORATION

BORG WARNER INC

BABCOCK & WILCOX CO NEW

BROADWIND ENERGY INC



BWG
BWINA
BWINB
BWL/A
BWLD
BWP
BWS
BWV
BWX
BWZ
BX
BXC
BXDB
BXE
BXMT
BXP
BXP/PRB
BXS
BXS/PRA
BXUB
BXUC
BYD
BYFC
BYI
BYM
BZ
BZC
BZF
BZH
BZM
BZQ
BZT
BZU

C
C/PRC
C/PRE
C/PRN
C/PRP
C/PRQ
C/PRR
C/PRS
C/PRW
C/WSA
C/WSB
CA
CAAS
CAB

LEGG MASON BW GLOBAL INCM OPPORTUNITIES
BALDWIN & LYONS INC

BALDWIN & LYONS INC

BOWL AMERICA

BUFFALO WILD WINGS INC

BOARDWALK PIPELINE PRTNRS

BROWN SHOE COMPANY INC

IPATH CBOE S&P 500 BUYWRITE

SPDR BARCLAYS INTL TREA BOND ETF

SPDR BARCLAYS SH TM INTL TR

BLACKSTONE GROUP (THE) L.P.

BLUELINX HOLDINGS INC

BARCLAYS SHORT B LEVERAGED S&P 500 TR
BELLATRIX EXPLORATION LTD

BLACKSTONE MORTGAGE TRUST INC
BOSTON PROPERTIES INC

BOSTON PPTYS DEP SH 1/100TH 5.25% PFD B
BANCORPSOUTH INC

BANCORPSOUTH CAPITAL TR |

BARCLAYS LONG B LEVERAGED S&P 500 TR
BARCLAYS LONG C LEVERAGED S&P 500 TR
BOYD GAMING INC

BROADWAY FINANCIAL CORP

BALLY TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

BLACKROCK MUNICIPAL INCOME QUALITY TRUST
BOISE INC

BREEZE-EASTERN CORP

WISDOMTREE BRAZILIAN REAL FUND
BEAZER HOMES USA INC

BLACKROCK MARYLAND MUN BD TR
PROSHARES ULTRASHORT MSCI BRAZIL CAPPED
BEAZER HOMES USA INC 7.50%TANGIBLE EQ UT
BEAZER HOMES USA INC

CITIGROUP INC

CITIGROUP INC. 5.80% (C)
CITIGROUP CAP XVII

CITIGROUP CAPITAL XllI

CITIGROUP INC DEP SHS 1/1000

CITIGROUP CAPITAL XI

CITIGROUP CAPITAL X

CITIGROUP CAPITAL IX

CITIGROUP CAP XVI

CITIGROUP INC WTS CL A 1/4/19

CITIGROUP INC WTS CL B 10/28/18

CA INCORPORATED

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE SYS INC

CABELA'S INC



CAC CAMDEN NATIONAL CORP

CACB CASCADE BANCORP
CACC CREDIT ACCEP CORP MICH
CACG CHART ACQUISITION CORP

CACGU CHART ACQUISITION CORP
CACGW CHART ACQUISITION CORP

CACH CACHE INC

CACI CACI INTL INC

CAD PIMCO CANADA BOND INDEX ETF
CADC CHINA ADV CONS MAT GRP INC
CADX CADENCE PHARMACEUTICALS INC
CAE CAE INC

CAF MORGAN STANLEY A SHR FD
CAFE IPATH PURE BETA COFFEE ETN
CAF! CAMCO FINANCIAL CORP

CAG CONAGRA FOODS INC

CAH CARDINAL HEALTH INC

CAJ CANON INC

CAK CAMAC ENERGY INC.

CAKE CHEESECAKE FACTORY INC

CALD CALLIDUS SOFTWARE INC

CALl CHINA AUTO LOGISTICS INC.
CALL MAGICJIACK VOCAL TEC LTD
CALM CAL MAINE FOODS INC

CALX CALIX INC

CAM CAMERON INTNL CORP

CAMP CALAMP CORP

CAMT CAMTEK LTD

CANE TEUCRIUM SUGAR FUND

CAP CAl INTERNATIONAL INC

CAPE BARCLAYS ETN+ SHILLER CAPE ETN
CAR AVIS BUDGET GROUP INC

CARB CARBONITE INC

CART CAROLINA TRUST BANK

CARV CARVER BANCORP INC

CARZ FR TR NASDAQ GLOBAL AUTO INDEX FUND
CAS CASTLEA M & CO

CASH META FINANCIAL GRP INC

CASM CAS MEDICAL SYS INC

CASS CASS INFORMATION SYSTEM INC
CASY CASEYS GEN STORES INC

CAT CATERPILLAR INC

CATM CARDTRONICS INC

CATO CATO CORP (THE) NEW

CATY CATHAY GENERAL BANCORP
CAVM CAVIUM INC.

CAW CCA INDUSTRIES INC



cB CHuUBB CORP

CBAK CHINA BAK BATTERY INC

CBAN COLONY BANKCORP INC

cBB CINCINNATI BELL INC

CBB/PRB  CINCINNATI BELL INC

CcBD COMPANHIA BRASILEIRA DE DISTRIBUICAO
CBEY CBEYOND INC.

CBF CAPITAL BANK FINANCIAL CORP (A)
CBG CBRE GROUP INCCL A COM

CBI CHICAGO BRIDGE & IRON CO

CBIN COMMUNITY BK SHS OF INDIANA
CBK CHRISTOPHER & BANKS CORP

CBL CBL & ASSOCIATES PPTYS INC

CBL/PRD  CBL & ASSOCIATES PPTYS INC
CBL/PRE CBL & ASSOCIATES PROPERTIES 6.625% (E)

CBLI CLEVELAND BIOLABS INC

CBM CAMBREX CORP

CBMX COMBIMATRIX CORPORATION
CBMXW COMBIMATRIX CORP

CBND SPDR BARCLAYS ISSUER SCORED CORP ETF
CBNJ CAPE BANCORP INC

CBNK CHICOPEE BANCORP INC

CBO NYSE TEST SYMBOL

CBOE CBOE HOLDINGS, INC

cep CHINA BOTANIC PHARMACEUTICAL INC
CBPO CHINA BIOLOGIC PRODUCTS INC
CBR CIBER INC

CBRL CRACKER BARREL OLD CNT STORE
CBRX COLUMBIA LABS INC

CBS CBS CORPORATION

CBS/A CBS CORPORATION

CBSH COMMERCE BANCSHARES INC
CBST CUBIST PHARMACEUTICALS INC
CBT CABOT CORP

cBU COMMUNITY BANK SYSTEM INC
CBX NYSE TEST SYMBOL

CBZ CBIZ INC

CCA MFS CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FD
CCBG CAPITAL CITY BANK GROUP

Cccc CALGON CARBON CORP

CCCL CHINA CERAMICS CO. LTD

CCE COCA COLA ENTERPRISES INC NEW
CCF CHASE CORPORATION

CccG CAMPUS CREST COMMUNITIES INC
CCG/PRA  CAMPUS CREST COMMUNITIES INC 8% PFD A
CCH COCA-COLA HBC AG

Cccl CROWN CASTLE INTL CORP



CCIH
CCIX
ca
CCK
CCL
CcCMm
CCMP
CCNE
cco
CCol
CCRN
CCsC
Cccu
CCUR
cev
ccxX
CCXE
CCXI
ccz
CDE
CDE/WS
CDI
CDNS
CDR
CDR/PRB
CDTI
CDXS
cDYy
cDzI
CE
CEA
CEB
CEC
CECE
CECO
CEDU
CEE
CEF
CEL
CELG
CELGZ
CEM
CEMB
CEMI
CEMP
CENT
CENTA

CHINA CACHE INTL HLDGS LTD

COLEMAN CABLE INC

CAMECO CORPORATION

CROWN HLDGS INC (HOLDING CO)

CARNIVAL CORP NEW

CONCORD MEDICAL SERVICES HOLDINGS LTD
CABOT MICROELECTRONICS

CNB FINANCIAL CORP PA

CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HLDGS

COGENT COMMUNICATIONS GRP

CROSS COUNTRY HEALTHCARE INC
COUNTRY STYLE COOKING CHAIN CO LTD
COMPANHIA CERVECERIAS UNIDAS
CONCURRENT COMPUTER CORP

COMCAST CORP NEW 5% NTS 12/15/61
WISDOMTREE COMMODITY CURRENCY FUND
WISDOM TREE COMMODITY COUNTRY EQUITY
CHEMOCENTRYX INC

COMCAST HOLDINGS CORP 2% DEBS 10/15/20
COEUR MINING INC

COEUR MINING INC (DEL) WTS 4/16/17

CDI CORP

CADENCE DESIGNS SYS

CEDAR REALTY TRUST INC

CEDAR REALTY TR INC 7.25% PFD SER B
CLEAN DIESEL TECH INC

CODEXIS INC.

CARDERO RESOURCE CORP

CADIZ INC

CELANESE CORPORATION

CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORP

CORP EXECUTIVE BOARD CO (THE)

CEC ENTERTAINMENT INC

CECO ENVIRONMENTAL CORP

CAREER EDUCATION CORP

CHINAEDU CORPORATION

CENTRAL EUROPE RUSSIA & TURKEY FD INC
CENTRAL FUND OF CANADA LTD

CELLCOM ISRAEL LTD

CELGENE CORP

CELGENE CORPORATION

CLEARBRIDGE ENERGY MLP FD INC

ISHARES EMERGING MKTS CORPORATE BOND FD
CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS INC

CEMPRA INC

CENTRAL GARDEN & PET CO

CENTRAL GARDEN & PET COMPANY



CENX CENTURY ALUMINUM CO

CEO CNOOC LIMITED

CEP CONSTELLATION ENERGY PARTNERS LLC
CERE CERES INC

CERN CERNER CORP

CERS CERUS CORPORATION

CET CENTRAL SECS CORP

CETV CENTRAL EUROPEAN ENTERP

Cev EATON VANCE CA MUNI INCM TR

CEVA CEVAINC

CEW WISDOMTREE EMERGINC CURRENCY FUND
CF CF INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS

CFBK CENTRAL FEDERAL CORP

CFC/PRA  COUNTRYWIDE CAP IV NEW
CFC/PRB. COUNTRYWIDE CAPITAL V NEW

CFD NUVEEN DIVERSIFIED COMMODITY FUND
CFFI C&F FINANCIAL CORP

CFFN CAPITOL FEDERAL FINANCIAL INC
CFI CULP INC

CFN CAREFUSION CORP

CFNB CALIFORNIA FIRST NATL BANCORP
CFNL CARDINAL FINANCIAL CORP

CFP CORNERSTONE PROGRESSIVE RET
CFR CULLEN FROST BANKERS INC
CFR/PRA  CULLEN FROST BANKERS INC 5.375% (A)
CFT ISHARES BARCLAYS CREDIT BOND
CFX COLFAX CORPORATION

CcG CARLYLE GROUP L.P. (THE) UNITS
CGA CHINA GREEN AGRICULTURE
CGEN COMPUGEN LTD

CGG CGG

cal CELADON GROUP INC

CGNX COGNEX CORP

CGO CALAMOS GLBL TOTAL RETURN
CGR CLAUDE RESOURCES INC (CDA)
CGW CLAYMORE S&P GLBL WATER
CGX CONSOLIDATED GRAPHICS INC
CH ABERDEEN CHILE FUND INC

CHA CHINA TELECOM CORP LTD

CHC CHINA HYDROELECTRIC CORP
CHC/WS CHINA HYDROELECTRIC CORP
CHCI COMSTOCK HOLDING COS

CHCO CITY HLDGS CO

CHD CHURCH & DWIGHT INC

CHDN CHURCHILL DOWNS INC

CHDX CHINDEX INTERNATIONAL INC

CHE CHEMED CORPORATION



CHEF
CHEP
CHEV
CHFC
CHFN
CHG
CHGS
CHH
CHI
CHIE
CHIl
CHIM
CHIQ
CHIX
CHK
CHK/PRD
CHKE
CHKP
CHKR
CHL
CHLC
CHLN
CHMG
CHMT
CHN
CHNR
CHOC
CHOP
CHRM
CHRW
CHS
CHSCP
CHSP
CHSP/PRA
CHT
CHTP
CHTR
CHU
CHUY
CHW
CHXF
CHXX
CHY
CHYR
C

CIA
CiB

CHEFS WAREHOUSE INC (THE)
QUANTSH U.S. MKT NEUTRAL VALUE FACTOR
CHEVIOT FINANCIAL CORP
CHEMICAL FiN CORP

CHARTER FINANCIAL CORP

CH ENERGY GRP INC (HLDG CO)
CHINA GENGSHENG MINERALS INC
CHOICE HOTELS INTL INC

CALAMOS CONV OPPTY&INCM FD
GLOBAL X CHINA ENERGY

GLOBAL X CHINA INDUSTRIALS
GLOBAL X CHINA MATERIALS ETF
GLOBAL X CHINA CONSUMER
GLOBAL X CHINA FINANCIALS
CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORP
CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORP
CHEROKEE INC

CHECK POINT SOFTWARE TECH
CHESAPEAKE GRANITE WASH TR
CHINA MOBILE LTD

MARKET VECTORS RENMINBI BOND ETF
CHINA HOUSING & LAND DEV INC
CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORP
CHEMTURA CORP

CHINA FD INC

CHINA NATURAL RESOURCES INC
IPATH PURE BETA COCOA ETN

China Gerui Adv Mat Grp Ltd

CHARM COMMUNICATIONS INC

C.H. ROBINSON WRLDWDE INC
CHICO'S FAS INC

CHS INC

CHESAPEAKE LODGING TR
CHESAPEAKE LODGING TR 7.75% PFD SER A
CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO LTD (NEW)
CHELSEA THERAPEUTICS INTL LTD.
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS INC (A)
CHINA UNICOM (HONG KONG) LTD
CHUY S HOLDINGS, INC

CALAMOS GLOBAL DYN INC FD
WISDOMTREE CHINA DIVIDEND EX-FINANCIALS
EGShares China Infrastructure ETF
CALAMOS CV & HI INCM FD

CHYRON HEGO CORPORATION

CIGNA CORP

CITIZENS INC

BANCOLOMBIA SA



CIDM CINEDIGM DIGITAL CINEMA CORP

CIE COBALT INTL ENERGY INC

CIEN CIENA CORPORATION

CIF MFS INTERMEDIATE HIGH INC FUND
CIFC CIFC CORP

CiG COMPANHIA ENERGETICA DE MINA
CIG/C COMPANHIA ENERGETICA DE MINA
Cll BLACKROCK ENHNCD CAP & INCM
CIK CREDIT SUISSE ASSET MGMNT INCM
Cim CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORP

CimMT CIMATRON LIMITED

CINF CINCINNATI FINL CORP

CIR CIRCOR INTL INC

Cis CAMELOT INFORMATION SYS INC
CISAA CIS ACQUISITION LTD. (A)

CISAU CIS ACQUISITION LTD

CISAW CIS ACQUISITION LTD

CISG CNINSURE INC.

CIT CIT GROUP INCORPORATED NEW
CITZ CFS BANCORP INC

Clu ISHARES BARCLAYS INT CREDIT BOND
CIX COMPX INTERNATIONAL INC

CIZN CITIZENS HOLDING COMPANY

CIES C&J ENERGY SERVICES INC

cuD China Jo-Jo Drugstores Inc

CK CKE INC

CKEC CARMIKE CINEMAS INC

CKH SEACOR HOLDINGS INC

CKp CHECKPOINT SYS INC

CKSW CLICKSOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES LTD
CKX CKX LANDS INC

CL COLGATE PALMOLIVE CO

CLACU CAPITOL ACQUISITION CORP. II

CLB CORE LABORATORIESN V

CLBH CAROLINA BANK HOLDINGS INC

CLC CLARCOR INC

CLCT COLLECTORS UNIVERSE

CLD CLOUD PEAK ENERGY INC

CLDT CHATHAM LODGING TR

CLDX CELLDEX THERAPEUTICS INC

CLF CLIFFS NATURAL RESOURCES INC
CLFD CLEARFIELD INC

CLGX CORELOGIC INC

CLH CLEAN HARBORS INC

CLI MACK CALI REALTY CORP

CLIR CLEARSIGN COMBUSTION CORPORATION

CLM CORNERSTONE STRTGC VAL FD NEW



CLMS CALAMOS ASSET MANAGEMENT INC

cLMmT CALUMET SPEC PROD PART L.P.

CLNE CLEAN ENERGY FUELS CORP

CLNT CLEANTECH SOLUTIONS INTERNATIONAL INC
CLNY COLONY FINANCIAL INC

CLNY/PRA  COLONY FINL INC 8.5% PFD SER A

CLP COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CLR CONTINENTAL RESOURCES INC

CLRO CLEARONE INC

CLRX COLLABRX INC

CLS CELESTICA INC

CLSN CELSION CORPORATION

cLus TOWN SPORTS INTL HLDG INC

CLv CLIFFS NATURAL RESOURCES 7% PFD A 2/1/16
CLvS CLOVIS ONCOLOGY INC.

CLW CLEARWATER PAPER CORP

CLWR CLEARWIRE CORP

CLWT EURO TECH HLDGS CO LTD NEW

CLX CLOROX COMPANY

CLY ISHARES 10 PLUS YEAR CREDIT BD FD
™M CANADIAN IMPERIAL BK OF COMM
CMA COMERICA INC

CMA/WS  COMERICA INC

CMBS ISHARES BARCLAYS CMBS BOND FUND
cMC COMMERCIAL METALS CO

CMCO COLUMBUS MCKINNON CORP NY

CMCSA COMCAST CORP NEW
CMCSK COMCAST CORP NEW

CMD PROSHS ULTRASHORT DJ-UBS COM
CME CME GROUP INC

CMF ISHARES S&P CALIF AMT FREE MUNI
CMFO CHINA MARINE FOOD GRP LTD

CMG CHIPOTLE MEXICAN GRILL INC

CMGE CHINA MOBILE GAMES AND ENT GROUP
cMmi CUMMINS INC

CMK MFS INTERMARKET INC TRUST |

CMLP CRESTWOOD MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP
CMLS CUMULUS MEDIA INC

CMN CANTEL MEDICAL CORP

CMO CAPSTEAD MTG CORP

CMO/PRE  CAPSTEAD MORTGAGE CORP 7.50% (E)
cmp COMPASS MINERALS INTL INC

CMRE COSTAMARE INC

CMRX CHIMERIX INC

CMS CMS ENERGY CORP

CMS/PRA  CONSUMERS ENERGY CO
CMS/PRB  CONSUMERS ENERGY CO



CMSB
cMmMT
CMTL
cMu
CNA
CNAM
CNBC
CNBKA
CNC
CNCO
CNDA
CNDO
CNET
CNH
CNI
CNIT
CNK
CNL
CNMD
CNO
CNOB
CNP
CNPF
CNQ
CNQR
CNR
CNS
CNsI
CNSL
CNTF
CNTY
CNW
CNX
CNY
CNYD
co
COA
COBK
COBO
COBR
coBZ
coco
CODE
CoDI
COF
COF/PRP
COF/WS

CMS BANCORP INC

CORE MOLDING TECHNOLOGIES INC
COMTECH TELECOMM CO

MFS HIGH YIELD MUNICIPAL TRUST
CNA FINANCIAL CORP

CHINA ARMCO METALS INC
CENTER BANCORP INC

CENTURY BANCORP INC MA
CENTENE CORPORATION
CENCOSUD SA

IQ CANADA SMALL CAP
CORONADO BIOSCIENCES INC
CHINANET ONLINE HOLDINGS INC
CNH GLOBAL NV NEW

CANADIAN NATL RAILWAY CO
CHINA INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INC
CINEMARK HOLDINGS INC

CLECO CORP {HOLDING COMPANY)
CONMED CORP

CNO FINANCIAL GROUP INC
CONNECTONE BANCORP INC.
CENTERPOINT ENERGY INC HLDG CO
GLOBAL CANADA PREFERRED ETF
CANADIAN NAT RES LTD

CONCUR TECHNOLOGIES INC
China Metro-Rural Hligs Ltd

COHEN & STEERS INC

COMVERSE INC

CONS COMMUNICATIONS HLDGS
CHINA TECHFAITH WIRELESS COM
CENTURY CASINOS INC

CON-WAY INC.

CONSOL ENERGY INC

MKT VECTORS-RENMINBI/USD
CHINA YIDA HOLDING CO.

CHINA CORD BLOOD CORP
COASTAL CONTACTS INC
COLONIAL FINANCIAL SVCS INC
PROSHARES USD COVERED BOND
COBRA ELECTRONICS CORP

COBIZ FINANCIAL INC.
CORINTHIAN COLLEGES INC
SPANSION INC

COMPASS DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS
CAPITAL ONE FINL CORP

CAPITAL ONE FINANCIAL CORP (B)
CAPITAL ONE FINANCIAL CORPORATION



CoG
COGO
COH
COHR
COHU
COKE
CcoL
coLs
cowm
COLX
CONE
CONN
coo
cooL
cop
COPX
COR
COR/PRA
CORE
CORN
CORP
CORR
CORT
Cosli
CosT
coT
cov
COVR
cow
COWN
coy
cp
CPA
CPAC
CPAH
CcpPB
CPBC
CPE
CPER
CPF
CPGlI
CPHC
CPHD
CPHI
CPI
CPIX
CPK

CABOT OIL & GAS CORP

COGO GROUP INC

COACH INC

COHERENT INC

COHU INC

COCA COLA BOTTLING CO CONS
ROCKWELL COLLINS INC

COLUMBIA BKG SYS INC

COLUMBIA SPORTSWEAR CO

MARKET VECTORS COLUMBIA ETF
CYRUSONE INC

CONN'S INC

COOPER COMPANIES INC

MAJESCO ENTERTAINMENT CO
CONOCOPHILLIPS

GLOBAL X COPPER MINERS

CORESITE REALTY CORP

CORESITE REALTY CORPORATION 7.25% (A)
CORE MARK HOLDINGS CO INC
TEUCRIUM COMMODITY TR CORN FD SHS ETF
PIMCO INV GRADE CORPORATE BOND INDEX ETF
CORENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST INC
CORCEPT THERAPEUTICS INC

COSI INC NEW

COSTCO WHOLESALE CORP

COTT CORPORATION
COVIDIEN P L C NEW

COVER ALL TECH INC

BARCLAYS IPATH DJ UBS LIVESTK

COWEN GROUP INC (A)

BLACKROCK CORP HIGH YIELD FD
CANADIAN PAC RAILWAY LTD NEW

COPA HOLDIGNS, S.A

CEMENTOS PACASMAYO SS A
COUNTERPATH CORPORATION
CAMPBELL SOUP CO

COMMUNITY PARTNERS BANCORP
CALLON PETROLEUM CO

UNITED STATES COPPER INDEX FUND
CENTRAL PACIFIC FINL CORP

CHINA SHENGDA PACKAGING GROUP INC.
CANTERBURY PARK HOLDING CORP
CEPHEID

CHINA PHARMA HOLDINGS INC

IQ Real Return ETF

CUMBERLAND PHARMA INC

CHESAPEAKE UTIL CORP



CPL
CPLA
CPLP
CPN
CPRT
CPRX
CPSI
CPSL
CPSS
CPST
CPT
CPTS
CPWR
cas
cap
caaqQ
CR
CRAI
CRAY
CRBQ
CRD/A
CRD/B
CRDC
CRDS
CREE
CREG
CRESW
CRESY
CRF
CRFN
CRH
CRI
CRIS
CRK
CRL
CRM
CRMB
CRMBU
CRMBW
CRMD
CRMD/WS
CRME
CRMT
CRNT
CROC
CROP
CROX

CPFLENERGIAS A

CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY
CAPITAL PRODUCT PARTNERS
CALPINE CORPORATION

COPART INC

CATALYST PHARMACEUTICAL
COMPUTER PROGRAMS & SYS INC
CHINA PRECISION STEEL INC
CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SVCS INC
CAPSTONE TURBINE CORP
CAMDEN PROPERTY TRUST
CONCEPTUS INC

COMPUWARE CORP

CHIQUITA BRANDS INTL INC NEW
CHENIERE ENERGY PARTNERS, LP
CLAYMORE CHINA TECHNOLOGY
CRANE CO

CRA INT'L INC

CRAY INC

JEFF TR J CRB GLBL CMDTY EQ
CRAWFORD & CO

CRAWFORD & CO

CARDICA INC

CROSSROADS SYSTEMS INC

CREE INC

CHINA RECYCLING ENERGY CORP
CRESUDSACIFYA

CRESUD SACIF YA

CORNERSTONE TTL RETURN FD INC NEW
CRESCENT FINANCIAL BANCHARES INC
CRHPLC

CARTER'S INC

CURIS INC

COMSTOCK RESQURCES INC
CHARLES RIVER LABS INTL INC
SALESFORCE.COM INC

CRUMBS BAKE SHOP INC
CRUMBS BAKE SHOP INC
CRUMBS BAKE SHOP INC
CORMEDIX INC

CORMEDIX INC.3/24/15
CARDIOME PHARMACEUTICALS CORPORATION
AMERICA'S CAR-MART INC
CERAGON NETWORKS LTD
PROSHARES ULTSHT AUD

1Q GLOBAL AGRIBUSINESS SMALL CAP ETF
CROCS INCORPORATED



CRR CARBO CERAMICS INC

CRRB CARROLLTON BANCORP

CRRC COURIER CORP

CRS CARPENTER TECH CORP

CRT CROSS TIMBERS ROYALTY TR

CRTX CORNERSTONE THERAPEUTICS INC
CRUD TEUCRIUM CRUDE OIL FUND

CRUS CIRRUS LOGIC INC

CRV COAST DISTR SYSTEM INC (DEL)
CRVL CORVEL CORP

CRvP CRYSTAL ROCK HLDGS INC

CRWN CROWN MEDIA HLDGS INC

CRWS CROWN CRAFTS

CRY CRYOLIFE INC

CRZO CARRIZO OIL & GAS INC

Cs CREDIT SUISSE GROUP

CSBK CLIFTON SAVINGS BANCORP INC
CsC COMPUTER SCIENCES CORP

CSCD CASCADE MICROTECH INC

csco CISCO SYSTEMS INC

CsD GUGGENHEIM SPIN-OFF ETF

CSE CAPITALSOURCE INC

CSFL CENTERSTATE BANKS INC

CSFS CASH STORE FINANCIAL SVCS INC
CsG CHAMBERS STREET PROPERTIES
CSGP COSTAR GROUP INC

CSGS CSG SYSTEMS INTL INC

CSH CASH AMERICA INTL INC

csi CUTWATER SELECT INCOME FUND
csi CARDIOVASCULAR SYS INC

csia CANADIAN SOLAR INC

CSJ ISHARES BARCLAYS 1-3 YEAR CR BD
CSL CARLISLE COMPANIES

CSLS CREDIT SUISSE LONG/SHORT LIQUID INDX
CSM PROSHARES LARGE CAP CORE PLUS
CSMA CS AG ETN 6/10/20 LNK CS MG ARB LIQ INDX
CSMB CREDIT SUISSE MERGER ARBITRAGE LIQ INDX
CSMN MK NT GLB EQ ETN LNK HS MK HOLT11/15/31
CSOD CORNERSTONE ON DEMAND INC
csp AMERICAN STRA INC PTFL INC

CSPI CSP INC

csQ CALAMOS STRG TTL RETURN FD
CSRE CSRPLC

Css CSS INDS INC

CsT CST BRANDS INC

CSTE CAESARSTONE SDOT-YAM LTD

CST™ CONSTELLIUM N.Vv.



CSTR
csu
CSUN
csv
cswc
CSX
CTAS
CTB
CTBI
CTC
CTCH
CTCM
CTCT
CTF
CTGX
CTHR
CTiB
CTIC
CTL
CTNN
CT0
cTP
cTQ
CTR
CTRN
CTRP
CTRX
CTs
CTSH
CTuU
cTw
CTWS
CTX
CTXS
Ty
CTZ/PRA
CTZsST
cu
CuBs
CUBA
CUBE
CUBE/PRA
CuBI
cul
CUK
CUNB
cuo

COINSTAR INC

CAPITAL SENIOR LIVING CORP
CHINA SUNERGY CO LTD
CARRIAGE SERVICES INC

CAPITAL SOUTHWEST CORP

CSX CORP

CINTAS CORP

COOPER TIRE & RUBBER CO
COMMUNITY TRUST BANCORP INC
IFM INVESTMENTS LTD
COMMTOUCH SOFTWARE LTD
CTC MEDIA INC

CONSTANT CONTACT INC

NUVEEN LONG/SHORT COMMODITY TR FUND
COMPUTER TASK GRP INC
CHARLES & COLVARD LTD

CTI INDUSTRIES CORP

CELL THERAPEUTICS INC
CENTURYLINK INC

IPATH PURE BETA COTTON ETN
CONSOLIDATED TOMOKA LD CO
CTPARTNERS EXECUTIVE SEARCH INC.
QWEST CORP 7.375% 6/1/51
CLEARBRIDGE ENERGY MLP TOTAL RETURN FD
CITI TRENDS INC

CTRIP.COM INTERNATIONAL LTD
CATAMARAN CORPORATION

CTS CORP

COGNIZANT TECH SOLUTIONS CRP
QWEST CORP 7% NOTES 7/1/2052
QWEST CORP 7.50% NTS 9/15/51
CONNECTICUT WTR SVC INC
QWEST CORP 7.0% NTS 4/1/52
CITRIX SYSTEMS INC

QWEST CORP 6.125% NTS 6/1/53
CITIZENS FUNDING TRUST |

Test Symbol

FR TR ISE GLOBAL COPPER

CUBIC CORP

HERZFELD CARIBBEAN BASIN FD
CUBESMART

CUBESMART

CUSTOMERS BANCORP INC

CUI GLOBAL INC

CARNIVAL PLC

CU BANCORP

CONTINENTAL MATERIALS CORP



CUPM
CUR
CURE
cut
CUTR
cuz
CUZ/PRB
CVA
CvB
CVBF
cvC
cvco
cvey
CvD
CVE
CvG
Cval
CVGwW
Cvi
cvLt
CvLy
CVM
Cvo
CcvoL
CVR
CVRR
Cvs
CvTI
cvu
cwv
CvX
cvy
cw
cws
CwBC
cwco
CWEI
CWH
CWH/PRD
CWH/PRE
CWHN
CWHO
cwi
CWsST
CwWT
CWTR
cwz

IPATH PURE BETA COPPER ETN
NEURALSTEM, INC

DIREXION DAILY HEALTHCARE BULL 3X SHARES
CLAYMORE/BEACON GL TIMBER
CUTERA INC

COUSINS PPTYS INC

COUSINS PPTYS INC

COVANTA HOLDING CORP

CORP BKD TR CTFS LEHMAN ABS

CVB FINANCIAL CORP

CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORP

CAVCO INDUSTIRES INC

CENTRAL VALLEY COMMUNITY BANCP
COVANCE INC

CENOVUS ENERGY INC

CONVERGYS CORP

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE GRP INC
CALAVO GROWERS INC

CVR ENERGY INC

COMMVAULT SYSTEMS INC

CODORUS VY BANCORP INC

CEL SCI CORP

CENVEO INC

CITI VOLATILITY INDEX TOTAL RETURN
CHICAGO RIVET & MACH CO

CVR REFINING LP

CVS CAREMARK CORPORATION
COVENANT TRANSPORTATION GROUP, INC.
CPI AEROSTRUCTURES INC

CVD EQUIPMENT CORP

CHEVRON CORP

CLAYMORE/ZACKS YIELD HOG
CURTISS WRIGHT CORP

SPDR BARCLAYS CONV BD ETF
COMMUNITY WEST BANCSHARES
CONSOLIDATED WATER CO INC
CLAYTON WILLIAMS ENERGY INC
COMMONWEALTH REIT
COMMONWEALTH REIT
COMMONWEALTH REIT 7.25% PFD SER E
COMMONWEALTH REIT
COMMONWEALTH REIT 5.75% SEN NTS 8/1/42
SPDR IDX SH FDS MSCl ACWI (EX-US)
CASELLA WASTE SYSTEMS INC
CALIFORNIA WTR SVCS GRP DEL
COLDWATER CREEK INC

CORP BKD TR CTFS LEHMAN ABS



CX
CXA
CXDC
CXE
CXH
CXM
Cxo
CXPO
CXW
cxXz
cY
CYAN
CYB
CYBE
CyBX
CyCC
CYCCP
CYD
CYE
CYH
CYmi
CYN
CYN/PRC
CYNI
CYNO
cyou
CYs
CYS/PRA
CYS/PRB
cYr
CYTK
CYTR
CYTX
CYTXW
CZA
CZFC
CZNC
CZR
CZwi
Czz

DAC
DAEG
DAG
DAIO
DAKT
DAL

CEMEXS.A.B. DEC.V.

SPDR NUVEEN BARCLAYS CALIF MUNI BD ETF
CHINA XD PLASTICS CO LTD

MFS HIGH INCOME MUNI TRUST
MFS INV GRADE MUNICIPAL TRUST
CARDIUM THERAPEUTICS INC
CONCHO RESOURCES INC

CRIMSON EXPLORATION INC
CORRECTIONS CORP OF AMER NEW
CROSSHAIR ENERGY CORPORATION
CYPRESS SEMICONDUCTOR CORP
CYANOTECH CORP NEW
WISDOMTREE CHINESE YUAN FUND
CYBEROPTICS CORP

CYBERONICS INC

CYCLACEL PHARMA INC

CYCLACEL PHARMA INC

CHINA YUCHAI INTL LTD
BLACKROCK CORP HI YIELD FD 1l
COMMUNITY HEALTH SYS INC NEW
CYMER INC

CITY NATL CORP

CITY NATIONAL SHS 1/40TH 5.5% PFD C
CYAN INCORPORATED
CYNOSURE INC

CHANGYOU.COM

CYS INVESTMENTS INC

CYS INVESTMENTS INC 7.75% PFD (A)
CYS INVESTMENTS INC. 7.50% (B)
CYTEC INDUSTRIES INC
CYTOKINETICS INCORPORATED
CYTRX CORPORATION

CYTORI THERAPEUTICS INC

CYTORI THERAPEUTICS INC 9/13/14
CLAYMORE/ZACKS MID-CP CORE
CITIZENS FIRST CORPORATION
CITIZENS & NORTHN CORP
CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CITIZENS CMMTY BANCORP INC
COSAN LTD

DOMINION RES INC (VA) NEW
DANAOQOS CORP

DAEGIS INC

DB AGRICULTURE DOUBLE LONG
DATA | O CORP

DAKTRONICS INC

DELTA AIR LINES INC. (NEW)



DAN
DANG
DAR
DARA
DATA
DATE
DAVE
DB
DBA
DBB
DBBR
DBC
DBCN
DBD
DBE
DBEF
DBEM
DBIZ
DBJP
DBL
DBLE
DBLEP
DBO
DBP
DBS
DBU
DBV
DCA
DCE
DCl
DCIN
DCIX
DCM
DCNG
DCO
DCOM
DCT
DCTH
DD
DD/PRA
DD/PRB
DDC
DDD
DDE
DDF
DDG
DDM

DANA HOLDING CORPORATION
E-COMMERCE CHINA DANGDANG INC
DARLING INTL INC

DARA BIOSCIENCES INC

TABLEAU SOFTWARE INC

JIAYUAN.COM INTERNATIONAL LTD
FAMOUS DAVE'S OF AMERICA
DEUTSCHE BKA G

POWERSH DB AGRICULTURE FUND
POWERSH DB BASE METALS FUND

DB-X TRACKERS MSCI BRAZIL HDG EQ
POWERSHARES DB COMM TRK IND FD
DB-X TRACKERS MSCI CANADA HDG EQ
DIEBOLD INC

POWERSHARES DB ENERGY FUND

DB-X TRACKERS MSCI EAFE HDG EQ

DB X TRACKERS MSCI EMG MKT HDG EQ
ADVISORSHARES PRING TURNER BUSINESS CYCL
DB-X MSCI JAPAN HEDGED EQUITY FUND
DOUBLELINE OPPORTUNISTIC CREDIT FUND
DOUBLE EAGLE PET CO

DOUBLE EAGLE PETROLEUM CO
POWERSHARES DB OIL FUND

POWERSH DB PRECIOUS METAL FD
POWERSHARES DB SILVER FUND
WISDOM TREE GLOBAL EX US UTILITY
POWERSHARES DB G10 CUR HVST
VIRTUS TOTAL RETURN FUND
DEUTSCHE BK CAP FDG TR X
DONALDSON INC

DIGITAL CINEMA DESTINATIONS CORP
DIANA CONTAINERSHIPS INC.

NTT DOCOMO INC

IPATH SEASONAL NATURAL GAS ETN 4/18/41
DUCOMMUN INC DE

DIME COMMUNITY BANCSHARES

DCT INDUSTRIAL TRUST INC.

DELCATH SYSTEMS INC

DU PONT E | DE NEMOURS & CO

DU PONT E | DE NEMOURS & CO

DU PONT E | DE NEMOURS & CO
DOMINION DIAMOND CORP

3-D SYSTEMS CORP

DOVER DOWNS GAMING & ENTMNT
DELAWARE INVT DIV&INCM FD
PROSHARES SHORT OIL& GAS
PROSHARES ULTRA DOW30



DDP
DDR
DDR/PRH
DDR/PRJ
DDR/PRK
DDS
DDT

DE

DECK
DEE

DEF
DEFL
DEG

DEI

DEJ

DEL
DELL
DEM
DENN
DEO
DEPO
DES
DEST
DEW
DEX

DF

DFE

DFF

DFJ

DFP
DFRG
DFS
DFS/PRB
DFT
DFT/PRA
DFT/PRB
DFVL
DFVS
DFZ

DG
DGAS
DGAZ
DGI
DGICA
DGICB
DGl
DGIT

DB COMMODITY SHORT

DDR CORP

DDR CORP 7.375% PFD CLH

DDR CORPORATION 6.505 (J)

DDR CORP 6.25% PFD CLASS K
DILLARDS INC

DILLARDS CAPITAL TRUST |

DEERE & CO

DECKERS OUTDOOR CORP

DB COMMODITY DOUBLE SHORT
CLAYMORE/SABRIENT DEFENDER
PWRSH DB US DEFL ETN 11/21
ETABLISSEMENTS DELHAIZE FRE
DOUGLAS EMMETT INC

DEJOUR ENERGY INC

DELTIC TIMBER CORP

DELL INC

WISDOM TREE EMG MK EQ INC
DENNY'S CORPORATION

DIAGEO PLC NEW

DEPOMED INC

WISDOM TREE SMALL CAP DIV
DESTINATION MATERNITY CORP
WISDOM TREE GLBL EQTY INC FD
DELAWARE ENHNCD GLBL DIV&INC
DEAN FOODS CO NEW

WISDOM TREE EURO SM CAP DIV
MITTS LINKED TO THE DJIA

WISDOM TREE JAP SM CAP DIV
FLAHERTY & CRUMRINE DYNAMIC PFD INCM FD
DEL FRISCO'S RESTAURANT GROUP INC
DISCOVER FINANCIAL SERVICES
DISCOVER FINANCIAL SERVICES (B)
DUPONT FABROS TECH

DUPONT FABROS TECHNOLOGY INC
DUPONT FABROS TECHNOLOGY INC 7.625% B
IPATH US TREASURY 5-YEAR BULL ETN
IPATH US TREASURY 5-YEAR BEAR ETN
RG BARRY CORP

DOLLAR GENERAL CORP NEW

DELTA NAT GAS INC

VELOCITYSHARES 3X INVERSE NATURAL GAS
DIGITAL GLOBE INC

DONEGAL GROUP INC

DONEGAL GRP INC

DIGI INTL INC

DIGITAL GENERATION INC



DGL
DGLD
DGLY
DGP
DGRW
DGS
DGSE
DGT
DGX
DGZ
DHF
DHG
DHI
DHIL
DHR
DHRM
DHS
DHT
DHX
DHY
DIA
DIG
DIM
DIN
DIOD
DIRT
DIS
DISCA
DISCB
DISCK
DISH
DIT
DIV
DiCl
DJCO
DJP
DK
DKL
DKS
DKT
DL
DLA
DLB
DLBL
DLBS
DLHC
DLIA

POWERSHARES DB GOLD FUND

VLCTY SHS 3X INVS GLD ETN S&P GSCI GLD
DIGITAL ALLY NEW

DB DOUBLE LONG GOLD ETN
WISDOMTREE U.S. DIVIDEND GROWTH FUND
WISDOM TREE EMG MK SM CAP DV

DGSE COMPANIES INC

SPDR Global Dow ETF

QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INC

DB SHORT GOLD ETN

DREYFUS HI YLD STRATEGIES FD

DWS HIGH INCOME OPPORTUNITIES FD INC
DR HORTON INC

DIAMOND HILL INVESTMENT GROUP
DANAHER CORP

DEHAIER MEDICAL SYSTEMS LIMITED
WISDOM TREE EQUITY INC FD

DHT HOLDINGS INC

DICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CREDIT SUISSE HI YIELD BD FD

SPDR DA ETF Trust

PROSHARES ULTRA OIL & GAS

WISDOM TREE INTL MID CAP DIV
DINEEQUITY INC

DIODES INC

IPATH PURE BETA AGRICULTURE ETN 4/18/41
WALT DISNEY CO (THE)

DISCOVERY COMM INC

DISCOVERY COMM INC

DISCOVERY COMM INC

DISH NETWORK CORPORATION

AMCON DISTRIBUTING CO

GLOBAL X SUPERDIVIDEND U.S. ETF

UBS AG E-TRACS LINKED TO DJ-UBS COMMDIY
DAILY JOUR CO

IPATH ETN LNK DJ UBSCM IND TR

DELEK US HOLDINGS, INC

DELEK LOGISTICS PARTNERS LP

DICKS SPORTING GOODS INC

DEUTSCHE BK CONT CAPTLTR YV

CHINA DISTANCE EDUCATION

DELTA APPAREL INC

DOLBY LABORATORIES INC

IPATH US TREA LONG BD BULL ETN 8/20
IPATH US TREA LG BD BEAR ETN 8/20

DLH HOLDINGS CORP

DELIA*'S INC



DLLR
DLN
DLPH
DLR
DLR/PRE
DLR/PRF
DLR/PRG
DLS
DLTR
DLX
DM
DM/PRB
DMB
DMD
DMF
DMLP
DMND
DMO
DMRC
DNB
DNBF
DNDN
DNI
DNKN
DNL
DNN
DNO
DNP
DNR
DNY
DO
DOD
DOG
DOIL
DOL
DOLE
DOM
DON
D00
DORM
Dov
DOVR
pDow
DOX
DPD
DPG
DPK

DFC GLOBAL CORP

WISDOM TREE LARGE CAP DIV

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

DIGITAL REALTY TRUST INC

DIGITAL REALTY TRUST INC 7% PFD E
DIGITAL REALTY TRUST INC. 6.625% (F)
DIGITAL REALTY TR INC 5.875% (G)
WISDOM TREE INTL SM CAP DIV
DOLLAR TREE INC

DELUXE CORP

DOLAN COMPANY (THE)

DOLAN COMPANY 8.5% PFD SER B
DREYFUS MUNICIPAL BD INFRASTRUCTURE FD
DEMAND MEDIA INC

DREYFUS MUN INCM INC

DORCHESTER MINERALS LP

DIAMOND FOODS

WESTERN ASSET MORTGAGE DEFINED OPPORTUNI
DIGIMARC CORP

DUN & BRADSTREET CORP NEW

DNB FINL CORP

DENDREON CORP

DIVIDEND & INCOME FUND (DEL)
DUNKIN BRANDS GROUP INC

WISDOM TREE GLOBAL EX US GROWTH
DENISON MINES CORP

UNITED STATES SHORT OIL

DNP SELECT INCOME INC

DENBURY RES INC (HLDG CO)

DENALI FD INC

DIAMGOND OFFSHORE DRILLING
ELEMENTS ETN- DOGS OF THE DOW
PROSHARES SHORT DOW30
VELOCITYSHARESTM 3X INVERSE BRENT CRUDE
WISDOM TREE INTL LARGE CAP

DOLE FOOD CO INC NEW

DOMINION RES BLACK WARRIOR T
WISDOM TREE MID CAP DIV

WISDOM TREE INTL DIV EX FIN
DORMAN PRODUCTS INC

DOVER CORP

DOVER SADDLERY INC

DOW CHEMICAL CO

AMDOCS LIMITED

DOW 30 PRE& DIV INC FUND

DUFF & PHELPS GLOBAL UTILITY INCOME FD
DIREXION DLY DEV MKT BEAR 3X SHS



DPM
DPO
DPS
OPU
DPW
DPZ
DQ
DRAD
DRAM
DRC
DRCO
DRD
DRE
DRE/PRIJ
DRE/PRK
DRE/PRL
DRGS
DRH
DRI
DRIV
DRL
DRN
DRQ
DRR
DRRX
DRTX
DRU
DRV
DRW
DRW
DRYS
DSCI
DSCO
DSGX
Y
DSKX
DSL
DSLV
DSM
DSPG
DSS
DST
DSTJ
DSuU
DSUM
DSW
DSWL

DCP MIDSTREAM PARTNERS, LP
DOW 30 ENHNCD PRM & INC

DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP

DB COMMODITY LONG

DIGITAL POWER CORP

DOMINO'S PIZZA INC

DAQO NEW ENERGY CORP

DIGIRAD CORP

DATARAM CORP

DRESSER RAND GROUP INC
DYNAMICS RES CORP

DRDGOLD LIMITED

DUKE REALTY CORP

DUKE REALTY CORP

DUKE REALTY CORP

DUKE REALTY CORP

RBS GLOBAL BIG PHARMA EXCHANGE TRADED NO
DIAMOND ROCK HOSPITALITY CO
DARDEN RESTAURANTS INC

DIGITAL RIVER INC

DORAL FINANCIAL CORP NEW

DIREX DLY RL EST BULL 3X SH

DRIL QUIP INC

MARKET VECTORS DBLE SHT ETN
DURECT CORPORATION

DURATA THERAPEUTICS INC
DOMINION RES INC VA NEW

DIREX DLY RL EST BEAR 3X SH
WISDOMTREE GLOBAL EX USA REAL ESTATE
DRAGONWAVE INC

DRYSHIPS INC

DERMA SCIENCES INC

DISCOVERY LABORATORIES INC
DESCARTES SYSTEMS GROUP INC

ISH FTSE KLD 400 SOC IDX FD

DS HEALTHCARE GROUP INC NEW
DOUBLELINE INCOME SOLUTIONS FD
VLCTY SHS 3X INV SLR LNK S&P GSCI SLV ER
DREYFUS STRAT MUN BD FD INC

DSP GROUP INC

DOCUMENT SECURITY SYSTEMS INC
DST SYSTEMS INC

JPM -2X LB TSY FUT
BLACKROCK DEBT STRAT FD INC
POWERSHARES CHINESE YUAN DIM SUM BD PTF
DSW INC

DESWELL INDUSTRIES INC



DSX
DSXJ
DTD
DTE
DTF
DTH
DTK
DTLK
DTN
DTO
DTQ
DTSI
DTT
DTUL
DTUS
DTV
DTYL
DTYS
DTZ
DUA
buc
DUG
DUK
DUKH
DUST
DV
DVA
DVAX
DVCR
DVD
DVM
DVN
DVR
Dvy
DVYA
DVYE
DVYL
DW
DWA
DWAS
DWCH
DWM
DWRE
DWSN
DWTI
DWX
DX

DIANA SHIPPING INC

JPM -2X 10Y TSY FUT

WISDOM TREE TOT DIV

DTE ENERGY COMPANY

DTF TAX FREE INCOME INC

WISDOM TREE DEFA EQ INC
DEUTSCHE BK CONTNGNT CAP Il
DATALINK CORP

WISDOM TREE DIV EX FIN

PWRSH DB CRUDE OIL DBLE SH

DTE ENERGY CO 5.25% DEBS 12/1/62
DTS INC

DEUTSCHE BANK CAP

IPATH US TREA 2-YEAR BULL ETN 8/20
IPATH US TREA 2-YEAR BEAR ETN 8/20
DIRECTV

IPATH US TREA 10-YEAR BULL ETN 8/20
IPATH US TREA 10-YEAR BEAR ETN 8/20
DTE ENERGY CO 6.5% SER | DEB 12/1/61
DEUTSCHE BK CAP FDG TR VIl

DUFF & PHELPS UTIL & BD TRU
PROSHARES ULTRASH OIL & GAS

DUKE ENERGY CORP NEW

DUKE ENERGY CORP 5.125% DEBS 1/15/73
DIREXION DAILY GOLD MINERS BEAR 3X SHARE
DEVRY INC

DAVITA HEALTHCARE PARTNERS INC
DYNAVAX TECHNOLOGIES CORP
DIVERSICARE HEALTHCARE SERVICES INC
DOVER MOTORSPORTS INC

COHEN & STEERS DIV MAJORS FD
DEVON ENERGY CORP

CAL DIVE INTL INC

ISHARES DOW JONES SEL DIV IDX
ISHARES ASIA / PACIFIC DIVIDEND 30 INDEX
ISHARES EMERGING MARKETS DIVIDEND INDEX
ETRACS MONTHLY PAY 2XLEV DJ SEL DIV
DREW INDUSTRIES INC

DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

PS DWA SMALLCAP

DATAWATCH CORP

WISDOM TREE DEFA

DEMANDWARE INC

DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL CO
VELOCITYSHARES 3X INVERSE CRUDE
SPDR S&P INTL DIV

DYNEX CAPITAL INC



DX/PRA
DX/PRB
DXB
DXCM
DXD
DXJ
DXLG
DXM
DXPE
DXR
DXYN
DY
DYAX
DYN
DYN/WS
DYNT
DYSL
DYY
DzZK
DZZ
E

EA
EAA
EAB
EAC
EAD
EAPS
EARN
EAT
EBAY
EBF
EBIX
EBMT
EBND
EBR
EBR/B
EBS
EBSB
EBTC
EC
ECA
ECF
ECH
ECHO
ECL
ECNS
ECOL

DYNEX CAPITAL INC. 8.50% (A)

DYNEX CAPITAL INC. 7.625% (B)
DEUTSCHE BK

DEXCOM INC

PROSHARES ULTRASHORT DOW 30 NEW
WISDOMTREE JAPAN HEDGED EQUITY FUND
DESTINATION XL GROUP INC

DEX MEDIA INC

DXP ENTERPRISES INC

DAXOR CORP

DIXIE GROUP INC

DYCOM INDUSTRIES INC

DYAX CORP

DYNEGY INC NEW DEL

DYNEGY INC NEW DEL WTS 10/2/17
DYNATRONICS CORP

DYNASIL CORP OF AMERICA

DB COMMODITY DOUBLE LONG

DIREX DLY DEV MRT BULL 3X SHS

DB DOUBLE SHORT GOLD ETN

ENISPA

ELECTRONIC ARTS INC

ENTERGY ARKANSAS INC

ENTERGY ARKANSAS 4.9% 1ST MTG BD 12/1/52
ERICKSON AIR-CRANE INCORPORATED
Wells Fargo Adv Inc Oppor Fd

PAX MSCI EAFE ESG INDEX ETF

ELLINGTON RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE REIT
BRINKER INTL INC

EBAY INC

ENNIS INC

EBIX INC

EAGLE BANCORP MONTANA INC

SPDR BARCLAYS EMERGING MRKTS BD ETF
CENTRAIS ELC BRAS (COM)

CENTRAIS ELC BRAS (COM) CLASS B
EMERGENT BIOSOLUTIONS INC

MERIDIAN INTERST BANCORP INC
ENTERPRISE BANCORP INC MA
ECOPETROL S.A.

ENCANA CORPORATION

ELLSWORTH FUND LTD

ISHARES MSCI CHILE CAPPED INVEST MKT IND
ECHO GLOBAL LOGISTICS INC

ECOLAB INC

ISHARES MSCI CHINA SMALL CAP INDEX FUND
US Ecology Inc



ECOM CHANNELADVISOR CORP

ECON EGShares Emerging Markets Consumer ETF
ECPG ENCORE CAPITAL GROUP INCORPORA

ECT ECA MARCELLUS TR |

ECTE ECHO THERAPEUTICS INC.

ECTY ECOTALITY INC

ECYT ENDOCYTE INC

ED CONSOLIDATED EDISON INC

EDAP EDAP TMS SA

EDC DIEX DLY EMRG MKT BULL 3X SHS

EDD MORGAN STANLEY EMERGING

EDE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELEC CO

EDEN ISH MSCI DENMARK CAPPED INVST MKT

EDF STONE HBR EMERGING MARKETS INCOME FUND
EDG EDGEN GROUP INC

EDGW EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY INC

EDI STONE HARBOR EMERGING MKTS TOT INCOME FD
EDWV SPDR S&P EMER MRKTS DIV ETF

EDMC EDUCATION MNGMNT CORP

EDN EMPRESA DIST & COMM

EDR EDUCATION REALTY TRUST INC

EDS EXCEED COMPANY LTD

EDT ENTERGY TEXAS INC

EDU NEW ORIENTAL EDU & TECH

EDUC EDUCATIONAL DEV CORP

EDV VANGUARD EXT DURATION TSY

EDZ DIREX D